
City of Bethel 
         P.O. Box 1388 

    Bethel, Alaska 99559 

      Phone: 907- 543-2047 

         Fax: 907-543-3781 

Regular City Council Meeting 

Tuesday, May 22, 2018 

    6:30 P.M. 

Council Chambers; Bethel, Alaska 



Agenda posted on May 16, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing June 12, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
May 22, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

Rick Robb 
Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
rrobb@cityofbethel.net 

Fred Watson 
Vice-Mayor 
Term Expires 2018 
fwatson@cityofbethel.net 

Leif Albertson 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
lalbertson@cityofbethel.net  

Mark Springer 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2018 
msprigner@cityofbethel.net  

Thor Williams 
Council Member 
Term Expires 2019 
twilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Mitchell Forbes  
Council Member  
Term Expires 2019 
mforbes@cityofbethel.net 

Pete Williams 
City Manager 
543-2047 
pwilliams@cityofbethel.net 

Lori Strickler 
City Clerk 
543-1384 
lstrickler@cityofbethel.net  

Patty Burley 
City Attorney 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

III. ROLL CALL

IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD – Five minutes per person

V. APPROVAL OF CONSENT AGENDA AND REGULAR AGENDA

VI. APPROVAL OF MEETING MINUTES

a) *5-8-2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 

b) *5-10-2018 Special Meeting Minutes 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEE

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS

a) Appreciation for Council Member Naim Shabani (Mayor Robb)
b) Healthfitness Monthly Report (Mayor Robb)

c) Appointment Of Qualified Individual To Fill City Council Vacancy, Term Ending
October, 2018 (Mayor Robb)

d) Appointment Of Council Representative To Committee and Commission (Mayor
Robb)

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS

a) Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-10: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 5.08, Alcoholic
Beverages To Prohibit The Sale Of Alcohol With An Alcohol By Volume Percentage
Higher Than 20% In The City Of Bethel (Council Member Albertson)

b) Public Hearing of Budget Ordinance 17-28(m): Change To IT Dept. Other Professional
Services (City Manager Williams) 

X. NEW BUSINESS  

a) *Introduction of Ordinance 18-11: Submitting To The Qualified Voters Of The City Of 
Bethel, On October 2, 2018, A Ballot Proposition Initiated Through Local Option 
Petition (Mayor Robb) 

b) *Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28(n): Amending The Adopted Annual FY 2018 
Budget- Change To Administrative Dept.- Change To City Clerk’s Dept. (City Manager 
Williams) 

c) *Introduction of Ordinance 18-12: Establishing A City Of Bethel Budget For Fiscal Year 
2019 Beginning July 1, 2018 (City Manager Williams) 

d) *Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28(o): Amending The Adopted Annual FY 2018 
Budget- Cost Of Living Salary And Utility Services Cost Increases For City Of Bethel 
Employees (City Manager Williams) 

p.5
p.13

p.17

p.32

p.34

p.52

p.56

p.58

p.75

p.78

mailto:rrobb@cityofbethel.net
mailto:fwatson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lalbertson@cityofbethel.net
mailto:msprigner@cityofbethel.net
mailto:twilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:mforbes@cityofbethel.net
mailto:pwilliams@cityofbethel.net
mailto:lstrickler@cityofbethel.net


Agenda posted on May 16, 2018 at City Hall, AC Co., Swanson’s, and the Post Office. 

_________________________     
Kevin Morgan, Asst. City Clerk 
(Items on the agenda noted with an asterisk (*) are considered the consent agenda. 
All Resolutions noted with an asterisk (*) will automatically be adopted on the consent agenda unless removed from the consent agenda by Council.  
Ordinances introduced with an asterisk (*) on the consent agenda will automatically be introduced and set for Public Hearing June 12, 2018. 
The Council may, after 12:00am, and only by a unanimous consent vote to Fix the Time to Which To Adjourn for the following day at 6:30 p.m. 

City Council Meeting Agenda 
Regularly Scheduled Meeting 
May 22, 2018 – 6:30 pm 
City Hall 300 State Highway, Bethel, AK 
City of Bethel Council Chambers 

e) AM 18-38: Approve Alaska Pump & Supply As The Sole Source Vendor For All Pumps
And Related Equipment Purchased By The City Of Bethel For Its Sewer System (City
Manager Williams)

f) AM 18-39: Direct Administration To Send The Attached Letter To The Anchorage
USDA-RD Office In Order To Request A Reallocation Of $1,174,035 In USDA-RD
Grant/Loan Project Funds So That The City Can Purchase Five New Sewer Trucks (City
Manager Williams)

g) AM 18-40: Authorizing The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A Contract With
The Top Scoring Proposer For Billing Of Ambulance And Protective Custody Services
And For Collections Of Delinquent City Accounts (City Manager Williams)

h) AM 18-41: Confirming The Council’s $5,000 Financial Allocation In The FY 2019
Budget For 4th Of July Stage Performance Payment (Council Member Springer)

i) AM 18-42: Authorize The City Manager To Negotiate And Execute A Contract With
Capital Industries, Inc., For The Purchase Of Fifteen (15) Dumpsters With Lids (City
Manager Williams)

j) *IM 18-07: Public Works Department Initiates The Purchase And Installation Of A 
“Dollar Bill Machine” Formally Known As A Dollar Bill Validator, From Tecpro For 
Water Sales At The Bethel Heights Pumphouse (City Manager Williams) 

k) *IM 18-08: Financial Reports For Nine Month Period Ending March 31, 2018 (City 
Manager Williams) 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT
XII. MANAGER’S REPORTS

XIII. CLERK’S REPORT

XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a) In Accordance With AS 44.62.310(b), Providing Direction To The City Attorney
Regarding The Handling Of The Alcohol Beverage Control Board's Review Of Pending
Liquor Licenses (Mayor Robb)

XVI. ADJOURNMENT

p.81

p.86

p.106

p.126

p.127

p.131

p.134



 

Approval of the Meeting Minutes 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 



1 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 8, 2018 

Regular Meeting 
May 8, 2018 

 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Regular Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on May 8, 2018 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Richard Robb called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.  

 
II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 
III. ROLL CALL 

 

 
IV. PEOPLE TO BE HEARD   

Mary Nanuwak- Concerned with Ordinance 18-09. With remote communities, 
like Hooperbay and Scammon Bay, 911 is not available due to lack of 
services. Alcohol and drug combinations are dangerous and the City Council 
should reduce problems related to them. Concerned that certain committees 
have to be combined due to lack of quorum. Believes members of the 
committees are reluctant to present ideas to council due to Council 
disinterest. Feels that committee members would be more involved if they 
were elected instead of appointed. Worried about the roads not being fixed. 

 
Angie Smitley- Concerned about the state of the roads as well. The 6th avenue 

road is eroding into the slough. Concerned with loose trash around 
Dumpsters. Bear proof containers or similar dumpster options should be 

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Mayor Rick Robb Council Member Mark Springer 

Vice-Mayor Fred Watson Council Member Leif Albertson 

Council Member Mitchell Forbes   Council Member Thor Williams (Telephonically) 

Members Absent:   

Council Member Naim Shabani  

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler (Telephonically) 

City Attorney Patty Burley Asst. City Clerk Kevin Morgan 

5



2 

City Council Meeting Minutes City of Bethel, Alaska 

May 8, 2018 

considered to keep trash from littering the area. Concerned with children 
playing around loose trash. Wondered if there was a way to have 
Community Service address the loose trash on ground. 

V. APPROVAL OF THE CONSENT AND REGULAR AGENDA 

Main Motion: Approve the Consent and Regular Agenda. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

Primary 

Amendment: Move New Business Item G to follow Reports of Standing Committees. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb  Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

Removal from 

Consent: 

New Business Item A,B, and C: Ordinance 18-10, Budget Ordinance 17-28(m), 

Resolution 18-11. 

Moved by: Robb 

VI. APPROVAL OF THE MEETING MINUTES

Item A – 4-21-2018 Special Meeting Minutes 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 

Item B – 4-24-2018 Regular Meeting Minutes 
Passed on the Consent Agenda 

VII. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES

Public Safety and Transportation Commission – 
A quorum of the body could not be established. 

Port Commission- 
No meeting since last meeting. 

Planning Commission – 
Next meeting is Thursday at 6:30pm at City Hall. 

Parks, Recreation, Aquatic Health and Safety Center Committee- 

6



3 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 8, 2018 

Meeting next week 6:00p.m. at City Hall. 
 
Finance Committee- 
No Meeting since last meeting. Special meeting tomorrow at 6:30p.m. 
 
Public Works Committee – 
Working on agenda for next meeting. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 

Item G – Chief Of Police, Burke Waldron To Address The Council On Staffing 
Levels, Open Positions, And General Operations At The Police Department.
  

Chief of Police, Burke Waldron, addressed the Council about staffing and opiate use in 
the Community.  
 

VIII. SPECIAL ORDER OF BUSINESS 
 

IX. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
 

Item A – Public Hearing of Budget Ordinance 17-28(k): Amending the Adopted 
Annual FY 2018 Budget-Streets and Roads- Sewer Lagoon- Police Department- E 911 
Fund.  

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Budget Ordinance 17-28(k). 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

Primary 

Amendment: 

Insert “$50,000” Increase to Gravel 10-66-771; Insert “$50,000” Decrease to Central 
Treasury 10-10100. Insert “$50,000” in the bottom total box for the line “Net 

Change to Streets & Roads Appropriations.”  

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

7



4 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 8, 2018 

 
Item B – Public Hearing of Ordinance 18-09: Amending 5.30.100 (F) Of The Bethel 
Municipal Code – Striking GPS Requirements for Taxicab, River Taxi, Limousine and 
Bus Permits. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
 
 

Jared Karr- Public Safety and Transportation Committee –There is no GPS monitoring 
center in Bethel. A video camera may cost $50, while a GPS video camera may cost 
$500. It is a great difference in price for a technology that will not work here. 
Requiring cabs to have cameras with GPS and recording does not serve the cabs 
drivers and does not do what the council intends them to do. 
 
Burke Waldron- Police Chief- Stated that the current cameras have Video of the Front 
view of the cab and the interior. Having the cameras increases public safety. The 
Police Department often requests footage. They have never requested GPS 
information. Cellphones and radios are more important that GPS information.  If GPS 
is needed, it could be a separate device from the camera. Currently, the GPS in 
Bethel, does not reveal location, but keeps a log that can be referenced. 

 
Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 

 
Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 18-09. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 6-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

Item C – Public Hearing of Budget Ordinance 17-28(l): Amending The Adopted 
Annual FY 2018 Budget- Streets And Roads. 

Mayor Robb opened the Public Hearing. 
No one present to be heard. 

Mayor Robb closed the Public Hearing. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Ordinance 17-28(l). 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

 

8



5 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 8, 2018 

X. NEW BUSINESS 
 

Item A – Introduction of Ordinance 18-10: Amending Bethel Municipal Code 5.08, 
Alcoholic Beverages To Prohibit The Sale Of Alcohol With An Alcohol By Volume 
Percentage Higher Than 20% In The City Of Bethel. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 18-10. 

Moved by: Albertson 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 4-2 

In favor:  Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   Robb   

 
Item B – Introduction of Budget Ordinance 17-28(m): Change To IT Dept. Other 
Professional Services. 

 
Main Motion: Introduce Ordinance 17-28(m). 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-1 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Albertson   Springer   Forbes 

Opposed:  Williams   

 

Item C – Resolution 18-11: Supporting The Cama-i Dance Festival By Waiving The 
Requirement To Collect Sales Taxes At The Event. 

 
Council Member Albertson requested to be excused due to a fire call, as Council 
Member Albertson is a First Responder. 
Mayor Robb excused Council Member Albertson 
Council Member Albertson left the meeting at 7:49 P.M. 
 

Main Motion: Adopt Resolution 18-11. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion does not carry by a vote of 3-2 

In favor:  Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  Watson   Robb   

 
Item D – AM 18-35: Acceptance Of Council Member Naim Shabani’s Resignation 
Effective May 9, 2018 And Establishing A Process For The Council’s Consideration Of 
Qualified Candidates To Fill The Vacancy. 

 

9



6 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 8, 2018 

Main Motion: Approve AM 18-35. 

Moved by: Springer 
Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Primary 

Amendment: 

Strike “Each Council Member will be limited to two questions for each qualified 

candidate.” 

Moved by: Williams 

Seconded by: Springer 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item E – AM 18-36: Appointment of Juan Delgado, Jeff Sanders, Ryan Butte to Public 
Works Committee; Amber Jones to Community Action Grant Technical Review Board.
  

Passed on the Consent Agenda 
 

Item F – AM 18-37: Direct The City Clerk’s Office To Create And Post To Social Media 

And The City’s Website, The Identified Harm Reduction Campaign Ideas Once A Week 
For The Next Six Months. 

 
Main Motion: Approve AM 18-37. 

Moved by: Springer 

Seconded by: Forbes 
Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item H – Appointment Of Port Commission Council Representative. 

 
Mayor Robb appoints Council Member Springer to the Port Commission as Council 
Representative. 
 

Item I – Council's Consideration Of The City Clerk's Salary Increase Between Zero 
And 3% Based Off Of The Satisfactory Employment Evaluation Completed On April 
24th. 

 

Main Motion: Increase the City Clerk’s Salary 3%. 

Moved by: Springer 

10



7 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 8, 2018 

Seconded by: Forbes 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 

Item J – Leave Request For City Attorney, June 8 To June 22, 2018. 

Passed on the Consent Agenda 

 

XI. MAYOR’S REPORT 
XII. MANAGER’S REPORT 
XIII. CLERK’S REPORT 
XIV. COUNCIL MEMBER COMMENTS 

 
Mayor Richard Robb – Thanked Council Member Shabani for his service on the City 
Council. Congratulated him on being the first Albanian to serve on a City Council in 
the City of Bethel, the State of Alaska, and one of the first in the nation. A milestone 
for cultural diversity. Wishes everyone safe boating. Congratulated all the young 
people and commended the Coaches: Marty Smith, Daryl Smith, Rafe Johnson, Thor 
Williams, Ryan Wheeler, Darren Lieb, and Zach Pleasant, who took part in the 
wrestling tournament in Anchorage the previous weekend. Appreciated all the family 
and friends who supported them as well. Wishes a Happy Mother’s Day to all the 
Mothers out there and his own Mother in California. 
 
Vice-Mayor Fred Watson – Concerned with people not wearing life jackets. Urged 
everyone to wear their life jackets and be safe. 
 
Council Member Mark Springer – Reminded people that kids don’t float neither do 
adults. Shared Vice-Mayor Watson’s concern about life jackets. Thanked the 
Department of Transportation for removing signs on the corner of the highway and 
tower road. Brought attention to a possible AT&T cell tower in the planning report. 
Reminded People to be careful on the river as there is still a lot of ice. 
 
Council Member Thor Williams– Hoped that city calendar will be updated with budget 
meetings to encourage public participation. Spoke against the City being responsible 
for Maintenance of the Chief Eddie Hoffman Highway. 
 
Council Member Mitchell Forbes– Echoed the concerns of wearing life jackets. 
Thanked the volunteers and the Fire Department for their work in the community. 
Wishes everyone a safe, good time on the river this summer. 
 

XV. EXECUTIVE SESSION 
 

XVI. ADJOURNMENT 

11



8 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 8, 2018 

 
Main Motion: Adjournment. 

Moved by: Forbes 

Seconded by: Springer 

Action: Motion carries by a vote of 5-0 

In favor:  Robb   Watson   Springer   Williams   Forbes 

Opposed:  0 

 
Council adjourned at 8:28 p.m. 
 
 

 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk   

12



1 
 
City Council Meeting Minutes  City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 10, 2018 

Special Meeting 
May 10, 2018 

 
I. CALL TO ORDER   

 
A Special Meeting of the Bethel City Council was held on May 10, 2018 at 6:30 p.m., in 
the council chambers, Bethel, Alaska. 

 
II. ROLL CALL 

 

Due to a lack of a quorum, the meeting adjourned.  
 

 
 
_________________________ 
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
_______________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk   

          City Council Meeting  
       City of Bethel, Alaska 

Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following members were present: 

Council Member Leif Albertson Council Member Mitchell Forbes   

Members Absent:   

Council Member Mark Springer Mayor Rick Robb 

Council Member Thor Williams Vice-Mayor Fred Watson 

 Also in attendance were the following: 

City Manager Pete Williams City Clerk Lori Strickler 

City Attorney Patty Burley  

13



 

Reports of Standing Committees  
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14



 

 

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 1 City of Bethel, Alaska 

  May 2, 2018 

City of Bethel, Alaska  

Public Safety & Transportation Commission 
May 2, 2018 Regular Meeting Bethel, Alaska 

 

I. CALL TO ORDER 

 

A regular meeting of the Public Safety and Transportation Commission was held on May 2nd, 

2018 in the Bethel City Hall Council Chambers. 

  

This meeting was called to order at 6:45pm. 

 

 

II. ROLL CALL 

 

Present:  Eileen Henrikson Chair 

   Julene Webber 

    

Absent:  Jared Karr Vice Chair 

   Naim Shabani Council Representative 

   Mary Weiss 

   Joan Dewey  

   Monroe Tyler 

   William Howell III Fire Chief 

 

 

Ex-Officio Present: Burke Waldron Police Chief 

   Jesslyn McGowan Recorder 

  

 

A quorum was not established of the Commission. 

 

 

III. ADJOURNMENT 

 

Meeting adjourned at 6:45 pm. 

 

 

APPROVED THIS _______  DAY OF_______________________, 2018.    

   

    

 

    

_________________________    ________________________ 

Jesslyn McGowan, Recorder     Eileen Henrikson, Chair 

15



 

Special Order of Business 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 

16



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 1 of 15 

 

Schedule, Events and Programs  

 Memorial Day: 5/28/18 Facility Open 2pm-9pm 

 Free Lifeguard Training: May 29th – June 2nd, 12-6:30pm 

 Sport Club for youth ages 5-13 Starts May 29th  

 Summer 1 Classes start May 29th 

 Smart Fit Girls Program will start during the week of June 4th, dates, times and registration information will be 

available in May. 

 Free Women’s Self Defense Workshop, Saturday, June 23rd, 3:30-7:30pm  

 July 4th Facility Open 2-9pm  

 Free Women’s Self Defense Workshop, Sunday, July 8th, pm  

 

Staffing 

Operational Staff:   

 New Maintenance Tech begins May 14th, 2018 

 We are currently looking for Full Time Operations Staff able work as Lifeguard, Front Desk Staff and Facility 

Attendant interchangeably. 

 We are currently looking for 1-2 Front Desk and Facility Attendants 

Programming Staff: We are looking for programming staff to fill the below roles: 

 Youth Program Staff: We are currently looking for 3-4 youth program staff to work with our Summer Sports 

Club as well as with other developing youth programs. 

 Swim Instructors 

 Masters Swim Coach: Swim coach is not required to be American Red Cross Certified, but must have 

experience with coaching competitive swimming. 

 Fitness Instructors and Certified Personal Trainers 

 Instructors for any activity, craft or music patrons might be interested in learning.  

 

Anyone interested in working at the YK Fitness Center can call 543-0390 or visit ykfitness.org for information. 

 

  

17



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 2 of 15 

Facility Maintenance 

 

*Note: Facility opened in November of 2014 (FY15) 

Routine Maintenance:  Essential routine maintenance was completed.    

 

Corrective Maintenance: 

 Women’s Locker Room Suit Spinner – unit replaced, but replacement unit failed due to faulty rivets.  

Manufacturer replaced new unit.   

 Elliptical #1 is not running smoothly and may need replacement bearings, we are looking into options for 

repair/replacement. Update 4/29/18 bearings and slides inside elliptical #1 were cleaned and buildup 

removed, now working properly.  

 

Maintenance needed: 

 

Previously reported maintenance still pending: 

 Main drain at bottom of pool – looking at replacement drain covers and processes for installation.  

 Lamps for UV system are nearing the end of their use life and will need to be replaced.  Due to the delicate and 

highly technical nature of the work it may be necessary to bring in a contractor.  We are looking at options.   

 Overhead fans in pool area need maintenance. Working with City Facilities Department to develop a plan for safe 

access to trouble shoot the fans.  Jan 2018: City of Bethel is looking into purchasing a lift that will allow access to 

the fans as well as other maintenance areas in the pool. Update 3/18/18 a scissor lift has been identified and 

purchasing is being reviewed. 5/15/18 scissor lift scheduled to arrive on first barge.  

 While moving cardio machines we found that the treadmills are wearing groves into the linoleum in some places 

and causing the linoleum to bubble in others.  Need to look into alternative flooring options for under these 

pieces.  Jan 2018: no further damage has been found, but we continue to monitor and review flooring 

replacement options.  

 Experiencing difficulties with BIAMP Interface modules for playing music in the cardio/weight room and studio.  

We are reviewing system to determine whether they can be fixed or will need to be replaced.   

18



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 3 of 15 

Revenue 

FY18 Revenue 

 
 July Membership Revenue includes payment for LKSD FY18 Contract. 

 April Programs Revenue includes Community Action Grant Funds 

 

Revenue Comparisons FY17-FY18 

 

Revenue for December 2016 (FY17) included the Annual membership payments for the YKHC contract.  The 

FY18 contract has been renewed, partial funds were received in February and additional owed funds were 

received in April.  

 

 

  

Code Facility Revenue Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 Total FY18 Budgeted%attained

420 Memberships $94,430 $9,948 $17,239 $29,334 $17,032 $9,462 $8,715 $30,791 $8,664 $48,569 $274,185 $372,000 73.71%

430 Pro Shop $3,283 $3,246 $3,426 $5,195 $3,231 $3,172 $2,643 $4,315 $4,537 $2,289 $35,337 $39,675 89.07%

435 Concessions $4,078 $4,685 $5,635 $7,286 $5,834 $5,643 $5,367 $5,321 $6,691 $5,922 $56,463 $49,200 114.76%

460 Entry Fees $6,162 $7,629 $5,955 $6,151 $14,683 $5,749 $9,736 $5,925 $8,155 $7,667 $77,813 $78,480 99.15%

463 Facility Rental $661 $801 $542 $1,434 $987 $1,189 $1,258 $1,100 $834 $1,062 $9,869 $12,750 77.41%

465 Program Fees $2,741 $3,046 $7,053 $5,730 $5,352 $1,469 $6,194 $2,801 $5,927 $3,509 $43,822 $90,500 48.42%

Facility Revenue Total $111,356 $29,355 $39,850 $55,131 $47,120 $26,685 $33,914 $50,253 $34,808 $69,017 $497,489 $642,605 77.42%

Monthly Revenue Totals July August September October November December January February March April

FY17 $31,433 $26,142 $24,867 $43,503 $27,134 $57,131 $26,567 $37,829 $38,636 $25,144

FY18 $111,356 $29,355 $39,850 $55,131 $47,120 $26,685 $33,914 $50,253 $34,808 $69,017

Change $79,923 $3,213 $14,983 $11,628 $19,986 ($30,446) $7,346 $12,424 ($3,828) $43,873

19



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 4 of 15 

Revenue 

Concessions Comprisons FY17 and FY18 

 

 
 

 

Pro Shop Comprisons FY17 and FY18 

 

  

Concessions 

Sales Totals
July August September October November December January February March April

FY17 $2,384.89 $3,157.11 $3,092.41 $3,769.41 $3,426.47 $3,185.55 $3,648.41 $4,247.30 $4,669.61 $4,009.62

FY18 $3,954.28 $4,650.93 $5,633.56 $7,320.72 $5,834.03 $5,642.99 $5,366.89 $5,321.23 $6,690.87 $5,921.68

Value Change $1,569.39 $1,493.82 $2,541.15 $3,551.31 $2,407.56 $2,457.44 $1,718.48 $1,073.93 $2,021.26 $1,912.06

$0.00

$1,000.00

$2,000.00

$3,000.00

$4,000.00

$5,000.00

$6,000.00

PRO SHOP REVENUE

FY17 FY18

Pro Shop 

Sales Totals
July August September October November December January February March April

FY17 $3,913.00 $2,850.50 $2,092.54 $3,365.62 $2,231.18 $2,490.62 $2,239.62 $2,777.95 $4,032.94 $3,483.89

FY18 $3,289.74 $3,247.54 $3,365.77 $5,194.60 $3,231.28 $3,172.30 $2,643.08 $4,315.11 $4,537.02 $2,288.89

Value Change -$623.26 $397.04 $1,273.23 $1,828.98 $1,000.10 $681.68 $403.46 $1,537.16 $504.08 -$1,195.00

20



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 5 of 15 

FY18 Expenses 

 
*Wages are paid every 2 weeks.  Most months include 2 pay periods, September 2017 and March 2018 included 3 

pay periods.   

**During September the facility schedule shifted to a 7 day per week schedule adding an additional operational day 

per week of wages. 

  

Comparison of Monthly Expenses 

Primary influencer on the 

increase in expenses starting in 

September is the additional 

wages paid out to staff at the 

move to a 7 day per week 

schedule.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

  

Expenses Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 Total Budgeted % used remaining

Salary Wages $10,000 $10,110 $20,989 $13,382 $11,062 $14,108 $14,108 $14,108 $21,162 $14,108 $143,136 $233,050 61.42% $89,914

Hourly Wages $17,300 $18,171 $29,147 $20,984 $23,778 $23,239 $22,871 $21,890 $29,290 $19,416 $226,087 $331,500 68.20% $105,413

Benefits $5,527 $5,957 $11,198 $8,187 $8,677 $9,286 $9,312 $8,975 $12,269 $7,777 $87,166 $117,310 74.30% $30,144

520 Housing $3,000 $3,000 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $3,090 $30,720 $37,080 82.85% $6,360

545 Travel/Training $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,304 $280 $0 $1,584 $5,731 27.64% $4,147

561 Supplies $2,520 $6,925 $10,929 $4,807 $9,966 $2,458 $6,302 $5,472 $3,720 $5,063 $58,163 $95,696 60.78% $37,533

580 Boiler $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $187 $0 $202 $382 $232 $1,003 $5,250 19.10% $4,247

646 Contractors $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $11,667 $116,670 $144,200 80.91% $27,530

661 Vehicle Maintenance/Repair $0 $0 $0 $38 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $38 $750 5.06% $712

663 Janitorial Supplies/Services $219 $49 $134 $3,020 $574 $191 $125 $1,582 $1,949 $4,618 $12,462 $20,400 61.09% $7,938

668 Software Licenses $682 $308 $423 $581 $491 $245 $371 $406 $378 $692 $4,578 $6,869 66.65% $2,291

683 Minor Equipment $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $10,500 0.00% $10,500

684 Donations and Awards $90 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $90 $500 18.00% $410

721 Insurance $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $15,515 0.00% $15,515

724 Dues/Subscriptions $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $169 $1,693 $1,965 86.16% $272

727 Advertising $203 $168 $0 $0 $236 $269 $284 $0 $0 $68 $1,230 $10,000 12.30% $8,770

733 Postage $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $500 0.00% $500

736 Bank Charges $627 $699 $990 $1,640 $1,038 $686 $1,020 $1,181 $1,007 $844 $9,731 $14,060 69.22% $4,328

790 Allowance for Special Events $0 $0 $0 $294 $0 $0 $0 $0 $26 $0 $321 $800 40.08% $479

799 Miscellaneous $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $0 $5,058 0.00% $5,058

TOTAL $52,006 $57,223 $88,735 $67,861 $70,749 $65,596 $69,321 $70,047 $85,390 $67,745 $694,671 $1,056,735 65.74% $362,064

Monthly Expenses July August September October November December January February March April

FY17 $39,145 $70,114 $75,717 $58,716 $62,335 $61,668 $54,949 $72,965 $77,475 $70,907

FY18 $53,231 $58,448 $89,960 $69,086 $71,974 $65,596 $70,546 $71,272 $85,390 $67,745

Change $14,086 ($11,666) $14,242 $10,369 $9,638 $3,927 $15,597 ($1,694) $7,915 ($3,162)

21



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 6 of 15 

Facility Utilization 

Facility Check-In: Facility Check-In numbers represent the total number of patrons who visited the facility and are 

based on a compilation of the number of members who checked-in, the number of daily passes sold and the number 

of participants in programs, activities, rentals and special events.  These numbers represent facility visits, not 

individuals as most individuals visit the facility multiple times over the course of the month.  

 

Facility Utilization was lower than expected during March.  We assume that the bulk of this is due to the warm 

weather making travel difficult and to the large number of individuals impacted by the flu and other illnesses. 

 

 

 

 

Area Usage: Count of the number of individuals in each area at the top and bottom of each hour.  Showing trends 

and patterns of area usage, these numbers are not an accurate reporting of the overall number of patrons using the 

facility as patrons who remain in any area for more than 30 minutes are counted more than once. The below charts 

show average number of users for each area, by day of the week, per 30 minute period and are used from 

programming and operational hours planning.    

Facility Check-In Jul-17 Aug-17 Sep-17 Oct-17 Nov-17 Dec-17 Jan-18 Feb-18 Mar-18 Apr-18 Total

Member Checkins 1,983 2,347 2,737 2983 2,917 2,639 3,103 2,653 2,671 3,139 27,172

Daily Admissions 1,258 1,432 1,706 1790 925 1,388 1,607 1,714 1,485 1,443 14,748

Rentals 25 62 105 50 119 215 95 120 150 140 1,081

Fitness Programming 48 68 249 220 285 152 199 210 166 235 1,832

Aquatics Programming 20 30 98 96 105 55 125 167 101 140 937

Youth Programs 14 34 41 0 0 4 10 0 21 0 124

Monthly Totals 3,334 3,939 4,895 5,139 4,351 4,449 5,129 4,864 4,573 5,097 45,894

22



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 7 of 15 

Combined Facility Totals 

 

  

23



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 8 of 15 

 

  

24



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 9 of 15 

 

   

25



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 10 of 15 

  

26



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 11 of 15 

 

  

27



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 12 of 15 

  

28



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 13 of 15 

April 2018 Monthly Facility Averages by day of the week 

 

 

 

 

Total: Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Total: Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am

6:00am 4.4 3.5 6 6.75 5.75 6:00am

6:30am 8.2 10 11.75 10 13 6:30am

7:00am 10.6 12 14.25 11.5 11.25 7:00am

7:30am 8.8 7.5 11.5 6.75 8 7:30am

8:00am 6.4 5 10.25 3 4.75 8:00am

8:30am 3.2 5.75 6.75 5.25 4.5 8:30am

9:00am 4 4.5 5.5 6 3 9:00am

9:30am 4.8 5.5 5.25 6.75 3.75 9:30am

10:00am 6.6 6.25 3.5 7.75 5 10:00am 0 0

10:30am 6.8 8 6 5 4.5 10:30am 5.25 7.2

11:00am 8 13.5 8 10.25 4.75 11:00am 20 12.6

11:30am 7.6 10.25 5.25 5.25 5 11:30am 21.75 11.2

12:00pm 4 3.25 4 2.25 4 12:00pm 19.25 12.4

12:30pm 3.8 3.25 3.5 2.5 3 12:30pm 29.25 12

1:00pm 5 4 6 4.5 3 1:00pm 33.75 10.2

1:30pm 4.2 4.75 9.5 3.75 3.5 1:30pm 22.25 15

2:00pm 9.6 9 10.75 6.75 5.5 2:00pm 19 17

2:30pm 9 8.75 3.5 6.75 4.5 2:30pm 20.75 27.6

3:00pm 10.4 7.5 5 9 4.5 3:00pm 18.75 37

3:30pm 12 10.25 12.25 10 4.25 3:30pm 22.75 23.4

4:00pm 9.6 10.25 11.5 6 7.5 4:00pm 30 29.8

4:30pm 3.2 9 8.75 6.25 7.75 4:30pm 29.75 29.4

5:00pm 7.8 16 10.5 7.75 6 5:00pm 31.75 30.2

5:30pm 12 19.75 15.5 13.75 10.75 5:30pm 46 32

6:00pm 24.2 22.25 24 23 16.25 6:00pm 44 30.6

6:30pm 27.2 27 28.25 27.75 19.75 6:30pm 29.25 30.8

7:00pm 28.2 26 32 29.25 20.75 7:00pm 33.75 30.6

7:30pm 28.6 28.5 41 23.25 19.25 7:30pm 33.25 25.4

8:00pm 30.4 32.5 30.25 23 14.5 8:00pm 31.75 16.6

8:30pm 29 34.5 28.5 17 18.25 8:30pm 20.75 11.4

29



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 14 of 15 

April 2018 Monthly Area Averages 

 

  

Pool Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Pool Saturdays Sundays Spa Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Spa Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am

6:00am 0.6 1 1.25 1 1 6:00am 6:00am 0.2 0 0 0 0 6:00am

6:30am 1.8 3.5 2 2.25 1.75 6:30am 6:30am 0 0 0 0 0 6:30am

7:00am 3.8 3 5.5 3 2.5 7:00am 7:00am 0.2 0.25 0 0.5 0.25 7:00am

7:30am 5.8 2.5 7 1.5 2.5 7:30am 7:30am 0.2 0.25 0.25 0.75 0.5 7:30am

8:00am 3.2 2.5 7 1.25 1.75 8:00am 8:00am 0.4 0 0.25 0.5 0.75 8:00am

8:30am 1 2 4.25 1.75 1.25 8:30am 8:30am 0.6 1 0.25 0.25 0 8:30am

9:00am 1.4 1.5 2.75 1.75 2 9:00am 9:00am 0.4 0.5 0.5 1 0.25 9:00am

9:30am 0.6 0.5 1.25 2.25 2 9:30am 9:30am 0.6 0.5 1.5 0.25 0.25 9:30am

10:00am 1 0.25 0.25 3.25 1.25 10:00am 0 0 10:00am 0.4 0.5 0 0 0.5 10:00am 0 0

10:30am 4.4 0.25 4 3.25 2 10:30am 3 3.4 10:30am 0 0 0.25 0 0.5 10:30am 0 0.4

11:00am 5 0.75 5 3.25 3 11:00am 13.75 5.8 11:00am 0.8 0 1.25 0.25 0.25 11:00am 0.75 0.4

11:30am 4.4 1.25 2.25 0.75 2 11:30am 12.75 5 11:30am 0.2 0.25 1.5 0.75 0.5 11:30am 2.5 1.4

12:00pm 1.4 0.75 1.5 1 1 12:00pm 12.25 7 12:00pm 0 0.25 0 0 0.25 12:00pm 0.75 0.2

12:30pm 1.8 0.75 0.5 0.5 1 12:30pm 15 5.8 12:30pm 0.4 0 0 0.25 0.25 12:30pm 0.25 0.4

1:00pm 0.8 1 1.75 1.75 1 1:00pm 15.5 3.6 1:00pm 0.2 0 0.25 1 0 1:00pm 0.5 1

1:30pm 1 0.5 4 1.5 1.5 1:30pm 11.25 7 1:30pm 0.2 0.75 0 0.5 0.25 1:30pm 1.5 1.4

2:00pm 1.4 1 5 0.25 1.75 2:00pm 2.25 10.4 2:00pm 0.2 0.25 0.25 0 0.75 2:00pm 2.5 0.8

2:30pm 1.2 0.5 1 0.25 1.75 2:30pm 7.25 16.8 2:30pm 0.6 0.5 0 0 0 2:30pm 0.5 1

3:00pm 1.8 1 1.5 2.75 1.75 3:00pm 11 20 3:00pm 0 0.5 0.25 0 0 3:00pm 0.75 3.4

3:30pm 1.8 1.75 2.25 3.75 0.25 3:30pm 12.75 13 3:30pm 0 0.5 0.25 0.25 0.25 3:30pm 0.75 1

4:00pm 1.8 4 3.75 3.5 3.25 4:00pm 18.25 16 4:00pm 0 0.25 0.25 0.5 0 4:00pm 1.5 3.4

4:30pm 1 4.25 5.25 3.5 3.5 4:30pm 18.25 14.4 4:30pm 0 2.25 0.75 0.75 0.75 4:30pm 2.5 3.2

5:00pm 2.8 8.25 3.5 3.75 3.25 5:00pm 18 15.4 5:00pm 0.4 3 0.5 0.25 0 5:00pm 2.5 4.2

5:30pm 5.8 12 5 8 5.5 5:30pm 30 19.2 5:30pm 0.8 0.75 0.75 1.25 1.25 5:30pm 3.25 1.8

6:00pm 11.8 9.5 9.5 9.75 9 6:00pm 28.75 20.8 6:00pm 0.4 2.25 1.5 2 1 6:00pm 2 3

6:30pm 9 12.25 15.25 12.5 15 6:30pm 18 17.6 6:30pm 1.2 1.5 1.5 2 1 6:30pm 2 3.6

7:00pm 10 8 17 13.5 14.75 7:00pm 19.75 17.8 7:00pm 2 2 1 2 2 7:00pm 3.75 2.4

7:30pm 11.4 10 18.5 6.5 12.75 7:30pm 21.75 14.2 7:30pm 4 3.25 2.5 2.5 0.75 7:30pm 2.5 2.4

8:00pm 15 11.5 7.5 11.75 10.25 8:00pm 18.5 7 8:00pm 2 2.25 3.75 1.5 0.75 8:00pm 3.75 2.2

8:30pm 14.8 11.25 9 5.75 10.25 8:30pm 12 2.4 8:30pm 3.2 3.5 2.25 1.75 1 8:30pm 3 1.2

30



YKFC Monthly Report April 2018 05/15/2018 

  
 

Page 15 of 15 

April 2018 Monthly Area Averages 

 

 

Fitness Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Fitness Saturdays Sundays Studio Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Studio Saturdays Sundays Bikes Mon. Tues Wed Thurs. Fridays Bikes Saturdays Sundays 

5:30am 3.6 2.25 4.5 5.5 4.5 5:30am 5:30am 0 0 0 0 0 5:30am 5:30am 0 0.25 0.25 0.25 0.25 5:30am

6:00am 6.2 5.5 9 7.25 7.75 6:00am 6:00am 0.2 0.75 0.25 0 3.25 6:00am 6:00am 0 0.25 0.5 0.5 0.25 6:00am

6:30am 6.4 7.25 8.25 7 5.5 6:30am 6:30am 0.2 1.25 0.5 0.25 3 6:30am 6:30am 0 0.25 0 0.75 0 6:30am

7:00am 2.8 4 4 3.75 3.25 7:00am 7:00am 0 0.75 0.25 0.5 1.75 7:00am 7:00am 0 0 0 0.25 0 7:00am

7:30am 2.6 2.25 2.25 1 2.25 7:30am 7:30am 0.2 0 0.5 0 0 7:30am 7:30am 0 0.25 0.25 0.25 0 7:30am

8:00am 1.4 2.75 2 3 3.25 8:00am 8:00am 0 0 0 0 0 8:00am 8:00am 0.2 0 0.25 0.25 0 8:00am

8:30am 2 2.5 1.75 3 0.75 8:30am 8:30am 0.2 0 0.5 0 0 8:30am 8:30am 0 0 0 0.25 0 8:30am

9:00am 3.6 4.5 2.5 3.75 1.5 9:00am 9:00am 0 0 0 0.5 0 9:00am 9:00am 0 0 0 0 0 9:00am

9:30am 5.2 5.25 2.75 4.5 3.25 9:30am 9:30am 0 0.25 0.5 0 0 9:30am 9:30am 0 0 0 0 0 9:30am

10:00am 2.4 7.75 1.75 1.75 2 10:00am 4.25 2.6 10:00am 0 0 0 0 0 10:00am 0 0.6 10:00am 0 0 0 0 0 10:00am 0.5 0.2

10:30am 2.2 12 1.5 6.75 1.25 10:30am 6 5.2 10:30am 0 0.75 0.25 0 0.25 10:30am 0.25 0.2 10:30am 0 0 0 0 0 10:30am 0.75 1

11:00am 2.4 8.5 1.25 3.75 2.25 11:00am 7.5 4.6 11:00am 0.6 0.25 0.25 0 0.25 11:00am 0.5 0.2 11:00am 0 0 0 0 0 11:00am 0.25 0

11:30am 2.2 2.25 2 1 2.25 11:30am 7.25 4.4 11:30am 0.2 0 0.5 0.25 0.25 11:30am 1.25 0.6 11:30am 0.2 0 0 0 0.25 11:30am 0.5 0.2

12:00pm 1.6 2.5 2.25 1.5 1.25 12:00pm 6.75 4.2 12:00pm 0 0 0.75 0.25 0.5 12:00pm 6.75 0.6 12:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 12:00pm 3 1

12:30pm 2.8 2.25 2 1.5 2 12:30pm 8.5 4 12:30pm 1.2 0.25 2 0.25 0 12:30pm 8 0.6 12:30pm 0 0.5 0 0 0 12:30pm 2.75 1

1:00pm 1.6 1.25 2 1.25 1.75 1:00pm 6 5.2 1:00pm 1.4 2 3 0.25 0 1:00pm 5.25 0.8 1:00pm 0 0.25 0.5 0.25 0 1:00pm 0.25 0.6

1:30pm 1.4 1.75 0.5 1 2.75 1:30pm 5.75 4.6 1:30pm 6.6 5.75 4 4.25 0.25 1:30pm 9.5 0.8 1:30pm 0 0.25 1 1.25 0 1:30pm 0 0.4

2:00pm 1.8 1.75 0.25 1.75 2.25 2:00pm 5.5 4.8 2:00pm 5.4 6 2.25 4.75 0.5 2:00pm 9.5 3.6 2:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 2:00pm 0 1.4

2:30pm 2.8 1.25 1.25 1.5 2.25 2:30pm 6.5 5 2:30pm 5.8 4.75 2 4.75 0.5 2:30pm 3 6.4 2:30pm 0 0 0 0 0 2:30pm 0 2.2

3:00pm 3.4 2 2.75 2 3.75 3:00pm 6 4 3:00pm 6.8 6 7 4 0 3:00pm 5.5 5 3:00pm 0 0 0 0 0 3:00pm 0.5 0.4

3:30pm 1.8 2.5 2 2 4 3:30pm 6.75 5.6 3:30pm 6 3.5 5 0 0 3:30pm 5.75 4.2 3:30pm 0 0 0.5 0 0.25 3:30pm 0.25 0.6

4:00pm 2.2 2.25 2.5 2 3.5 4:00pm 7.25 6.8 4:00pm 0 0 0.25 0 0 4:00pm 4.5 3.4 4:00pm 0 0.25 0 0 0 4:00pm 0 1.6

4:30pm 4.4 4.5 5.25 2.75 2.75 4:30pm 5.75 5.4 4:30pm 0.2 0.25 0.75 0.5 0 4:30pm 7 4.4 4:30pm 0 0 0.5 0.5 0 4:30pm 0.75 0.8

5:00pm 3.8 6.5 6 3.5 3.5 5:00pm 6.75 6 5:00pm 1.4 0.5 3 0.5 0.25 5:00pm 6.5 4.6 5:00pm 0.2 0 0.75 0.5 0.25 5:00pm 1 0.4

5:30pm 8.4 8.25 7.75 8 5.5 5:30pm 7.75 3.6 5:30pm 3 1.75 4 2 0.5 5:30pm 6 3.2 5:30pm 0.6 0.5 1.25 1.25 0.25 5:30pm 0.75 0

6:00pm 12 9.5 6.75 10.5 3 6:00pm 7.5 4.8 6:00pm 4 2.25 3.75 2 0.5 6:00pm 4 4.4 6:00pm 1 1.5 1 0.75 0.25 6:00pm 0 0.4

6:30pm 10.6 11.25 8.25 9 3.5 6:30pm 9.5 5.2 6:30pm 4.8 4 3.75 4 0.25 6:30pm 1.75 5 6:30pm 0.8 0.75 2 0.75 0.25 6:30pm 0.25 0.2

7:00pm 10.4 11 11.5 9.25 5 7:00pm 8.25 5.4 7:00pm 2 4.25 6.25 3.75 0.75 7:00pm 2.25 3.4 7:00pm 0.8 0 2.25 1.25 0 7:00pm 0 0

7:30pm 10.8 12.75 10.75 7.5 2.75 7:30pm 8.25 5.4 7:30pm 2.2 5.5 7.25 2 0.75 7:30pm 3 1.8 7:30pm 0.4 0.5 1 0.25 0 7:30pm 0 0.2

8:00pm 10 12 11.5 8.25 6.5 8:00pm 7.25 6.6 8:00pm 0.8 7 5.25 1.25 0.25 8:00pm 1 1.2 8:00pm 0.2 0.75 0.5 0 0.25 8:00pm 0 0

8:30pm 8 10 8 4.25 5 8:30pm 6.75 2.4 8:30pm 0 0.5 1 0.25 0.25 8:30pm 1.5 0 8:30pm 0 0 0.5 0.5 0 8:30pm 0.25 0

31



 
WWW.CITYOFBETHEL.NET | EMAIL: CITYCLERK@CITYOFBETHEL.NET | PHONE: 907/543-1384 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
TO: City Council Members 

FROM: Lori Strickler 

DATE: May 10, 2018 

SUBJECT: Filing Council Vacancy  

 
The procedure for filling a council vacancy is as follows.  
 
For the appointment, council members will make a motion to nominate a qualified person to fill 
the vacant seat. As with any motion, it must have a second and pass by the majority of the body 
(4). After the nominations are made the clerk will provide each council member a slip of paper 
with their name on it and a blank line. On that line the council member will write the name of the 
individual they are voting to appoint onto city council. After all of the votes are cast the City Clerk 
will collect the slips and read the vote of each council member out loud (the council votes are not 
secret votes in an appointment process). The person receiving the majority of the votes (the 
majority of the votes is 4) shall read and sign their oath of office and take their council seat.  
 
IF None of the candidates receive the majority of the votes then the clerk will again hand out the 
slips of paper to each council member to hold another written vote, as mentioned above. The 
balloting can occur up to three (3) times, if after the third round of balloting the vacancy is not 
filled, two nominees with the highest number of votes and the second highest number of votes 
will draw straws. The person with the longest straw will fill the council seat.  
 
IF there is a tie vote between the individuals who received the second highest votes in the third 
round of balloting then all three individuals will draw straws.  
 
IF there is a tie vote between the individuals who received the highest votes the drawing of the 
straws would be between those two individuals.  
 
 
 
 
  

CITY OF BETHEL 
City Clerk’s Office 

 
 

32



 

Unfinished Business  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

33



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 1 of 18 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 1 

 2 

Ordinance # 18-10 3 

 4 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING BETHEL MUNICIPAL CODE 5.08, ALCOHOLIC 5 

BEVERAGES TO PROHIBIT THE SALE OF ALCOHOL WITH AN ALCOHOL BY VOLUME 6 

PERCENTAGE HIGHER THAN 20% IN THE CITY OF BETHEL 7 

 8 

 9 

WHEREAS,  State law provides the City authority to regulate alcohol sales within the 10 

City’s jurisdiction and the Bethel City Council finds it necessary to do so to 11 

reduce excessive alcohol consumption and its related harms;  12 

 13 

WHEREAS,  Alaska Statutes (AS) 04.21.010, Municipal Regulation and taxation, states:  14 

(a) A municipality may adopt ordinances governing the importation, 15 

barter, sale, and consumption of alcoholic beverages within the 16 

municipality and may ban possession of alcoholic beverages under 17 

04.11.491 (a) (5) (Local Options;  18 

 19 

WHEREAS,  in the YK Delta it is widely understood that alcoholic beverages with an 20 

Alcohol by Volume (ABV) above 20% (hard liquor) are the primary types of 21 

alcohol associated with public intoxication, ambulance and police responses, 22 

Search and Rescue missions, bootlegging and crimes such as domestic 23 

violence and sexual assault;  24 

 25 

WHEREAS,  the Police Department’s total calls for service increased from 17,052 in 2015 26 

when sales were not legal, to 20,634 in 2017, when sales were legal this 27 

represents a total increase of 19% between 2015 and 2017;  28 

 29 

WHEREAS,  the Fire Department’s Emergency Medical Services total calls for service in 30 

the community have increase from 1,172 in 2015, to 1,734 in 2017 - this 31 

represents a total increase of 38% between 2015 and 2017; 32 

 33 

WHEREAS,  public safety and public health concerns such as motor vehicle injuries and 34 

deaths, violence-related and other injuries, and bootlegging, coupled with 35 

undesirable community conditions, and an increased burden on a number of 36 

social services and agencies around the region have made it difficult for the 37 

City Council to ignore the significant impacts alcohol has had;  38 

 39 

WHEREAS,  the Bethel City Council members have a vested interest in preserving the 40 

quality of life for our citizens and want to improve the current situation by 41 

minimizing the amount of hard alcohol that is available in the region;  42 

 43 

34



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 2 of 18 

WHEREAS,  AS 04.21.010 gives the Council authority to regulate alcohol, the City Council 44 

believes that by prohibiting the purchase of alcohol with an ABV higher than 45 

20%, the negative effects associated with alcohol will be reduced;  46 

 47 

WHEREAS,  the prohibition to sell ABV in excess of 20% would not prevent people 48 

residing in Bethel from submitting written orders to vendors in Anchorage to 49 

purchase alcohol containing ABV of 21% and higher;  50 

 51 

WHEREAS,  Alaska Administrative Code (AAC) 304.645 Written orders for alcoholic 52 

beverages; other transporting of alcohol beverages; local governing body 53 

authority, would require the purchaser to list their physical residence 54 

address, which must be within an area that has not restricted the sale, 55 

importation, or possession of alcoholic beverages under AS 04.11.491;  56 

 57 

WHEREAS,   with written orders being the only way to legally obtain alcohol with an ABV 58 

over 20%, people residing in a community that has restricted the sale, 59 

importation, or possession of alcoholic beverages would not be able to place 60 

an order through a vendor in Anchorage;  61 

 62 

WHEREAS,  3 AAC 304.645 would also require a package store licensee who sells 63 

alcoholic beverages in response to a written order to provide notice to the 64 

Alcohol Beverage Control Board of any customer who engages in a regular 65 

practice of ordering large quantities of alcoholic beverages;    66 

 67 

WHEREAS,  these written order requirements should reduce the number of people able 68 

to access hard alcohol and would provide the State with a mechanism to 69 

better track high quantity purchases to better identify who is engaging in  70 

illegal sales;  71 

 72 

WHEREAS,  by prohibiting ABV of 21% and higher the City is able to uphold the decision 73 

of the voters while still establishing a certain amount of control over the 74 

distribution of hard alcohol in the community and the region;  75 

 76 

WHEREAS,  these actions are in line with one of the very purposes of Title 4 as stated in 77 

the legislative history 78 

 79 

WHEREAS,  the legislative history of Title 4 demonstrates a legislative focus to (a) allow 80 

for more municipal input and oversight and (b) protect the public health, 81 

safety and welfare of the people of the State of Alaska 82 

 83 

WHEREAS,  the protection of the public health, safety and welfare of the people was 84 

codified throughout Title 4 with the authority of the Board to deny licenses, 85 

permits, transfers and renewals because they are not in the best interests 86 

35



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 3 of 18 

of the public: AS 04.11.320(b)(1), AS 04.11.330(c)(1), AS 04.11.340(1), AS 87 

04.11.360(1) and AS 04.11.370(a)(6); 88 

 89 

WHEREAS,  this action by the City Council accomplishes the legislative goals and protects 90 

the people of not just Bethel, but also the YK Delta. 91 

 92 

 93 

Chapter 5.08 94 

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGES 95 

Sections: 96 

5.08.010    Definitions. 97 

5.08.020    Procedure for administrative review of license applications. 98 

5.08.030    City council review of license. 99 

5.08.040    Council action on liquor license applications. 100 

5.08.050    Recordkeeping required of all sellers. 101 

5.08.060    Conditional use permit required. 102 

5.08.070    Licensee responsible for employees’ actions on premises. 103 

5.08.080    Hours and days of operation. 104 

5.08.090    Obligation to enforce restrictions within licensed premises. 105 

5.08.100    Alcohol server training course requirement. 106 

5.08.110    Operation of licensed premises. 107 

5.08.120    Restrictions on purchase and sale of alcoholic beverages. 108 

5.08.130    Sale to intoxicated persons. 109 

5.08.140    Eviction of patrons. 110 

5.08.150    Open container. 111 

5.08.160    Transportation of alcohol. 112 

5.08.170    Inspection of premises. 113 

5.08.180    Access for enforcement. 114 

5.08.190    Alcohol offenses. 115 

5.08.200    Penalties. 116 

5.08.010 Definitions. 117 

A. “Alcoholic beverages” means all spirituous, vinous, malt or other fermented or 118 

distilled beverages whatever the origin, that are intended for human consumption as a 119 

beverage and that contain one-half of one (1) percent or more of alcohol by volume, 120 

whether produced commercially or privately. 121 

B. “Alcohol by volume” means the number of milliliters (ml) of pure ethanol present in 122 

100 ml of solution at 68 F.  123 

B. “Board” means the Alcoholic Beverage Control Board established under AS 124 

04.06.010. 125 

36



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 4 of 18 

C. “Intoxicated person” means a person whose physical or mental conduct is 126 

substantially impaired as a result of the introduction of an alcoholic beverage into the 127 

person’s body and who exhibits those plain and easily observed or discovered outward 128 

manifestations of behavior commonly known to be produced by the overconsumption of 129 

alcoholic beverages. 130 

D. “Licensed premises” means any or all designated portions of a building or structure, 131 

rooms or enclosures in the building or structure, or real estate leased, used, controlled, 132 

or operated by a licensee in the conduct of business for which the licensee is licensed 133 

by the ABC Board and the city at the specific address for which the license is issued. 134 

E. “Liquor license” means any of the licenses or permits described in AS 04.11.080 135 

F. “Open containers” means any original container or package without the Internal 136 

Revenue Service strip stamp intact upon such container or package; any container or 137 

package that has been opened at least once since purchase or manufacture; or any 138 

container or package containing an alcoholic beverage other than the original container 139 

or package. 140 

G. “Person” means an individual, partnership, cooperative, association, joint venture, 141 

corporation, estate trust, business, receiver, or any entity, group or combination acting 142 

as a unit.  143 

5.08.020  Procedure for administrative review of license applications. 144 

A. Upon receipt of notice from the Board of an application for the issuance, renewal, 145 

transfer of location or transfer to another person of a liquor license for a license location 146 

in the city, the clerk shall as soon as practicable distribute copies of the notice to the 147 

city manager, the city council and the city attorney. 148 

B. The city manager shall immediately refer the application for review as follows: 149 

1. To the planning director or their designee to determine if the applicant has 150 

complied with the conditional use provision of the Bethel Municipal Code; 151 

2. To the finance director or their designee to determine whether the licensee or 152 

license transferee is delinquent in paying to the city any tax, assessment, business 153 

license fee, or fee or charge for utility service for the business and/or affiliate (as 154 

defined in 3 AAC 304.990) that operates or will operate, under the liquor license. 155 

3. To the police and fire chiefs to determine whether, in their opinion, there have 156 

been excessive calls for service, excessive numbers of convictions or arrests for 157 

unlawful activity at the license location, police or ambulance reports, reports of 158 

unlawful activity at the license location, or police, fire or ambulance dispatches to 159 

the license location. 160 

37



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 5 of 18 

C. The fire chief, police chief, planning director and finance director shall forward 161 

written statements to the city manager within fourteen (14) calendar days after the 162 

application was referred by the city manager. 163 

D. The city manager shall provide a written report to the city council, with a copy to the 164 

applicant, listing any objections to the Board’s issuance of the application. The city 165 

manager’s report is due within twenty (20) days after the date of receipt of notice from 166 

the city clerk. 167 

E. An applicant who believes the city manager’s report contains factual errors shall file a 168 

written protest outlining, with specifics, the sections of the report believed to be 169 

factually incorrect. Such protest must be filed to the city manager not later than ten 170 

(10) calendar days after issuance of the city manager report. 171 

F. The city manager shall investigate the applicant’s protest and shall issue a written 172 

decision no later than ten (10) calendar days after receipt of the protest. 173 

G. The city clerk shall place the matter of the application upon the city council agenda 174 

not less than thirty (30) and not more than forty (40) calendar days after the date of 175 

receipt from the Board.  176 

5.08.030  City council review of license. 177 

The city council shall determine whether to protest or recommend with conditions, the 178 

issuance, renewal or transfer of a liquor license application and shall consider the 179 

following factors it believes are pertinent. Such factors shall include, but not be limited 180 

to: 181 

A. City records indicating whether the applicant and/or transferor is in violation of the 182 

city sales tax ordinances or regulations, has failed to comply with any of the filing, 183 

reporting or payment provisions of the city ordinances or regulations, or has any unpaid 184 

balance due on tax accounts for which the applicant and/or transferor is liable; 185 

B. The character and public interests of the surrounding neighborhood; 186 

C. Actual law enforcement problems with supporting data; 187 

D. The concentration of other licenses of the same and other types in the area; 188 

E. The adequacy of parking facilities; 189 

F. The safety of ingress to and egress from the premises; 190 

G. Compliance with state and local fire, health and safety codes; 191 

H. The degree of control the licensee has or proposes to have over the conduct of the 192 

licensed business. In determining the applicant’s demonstrated ability to maintain order 193 

and prevent unlawful conduct, the city council may consider police reports, the 194 

appearance of a readily identifiable pattern or practice of recurring violent acts or 195 

38



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 6 of 18 

unlawful conduct on the licensed premises, testimony presented before the council, 196 

written comments, or other evidence deemed to be reliable and relevant to the purpose 197 

of this subsection; 198 

I. Whether the applicant can demonstrate prospective or continued compliance with 199 

operations procedures for licensed premises set forth in BMC 5.08.110; 200 

J. The proximity to a school or alcohol inpatient or outpatient treatment; 201 

K. Any history of convictions of the applicants and affiliates of the applicants for: 202 

1. Any violation of AS Title 4; 203 

L. Any other factor the city council determines is relevant to a particular application.  204 

5.08.040  Council action on liquor license applications. 205 

A. If a city council member wishes to protest the application, a resolution shall be 206 

prepared and introduced at the next regularly scheduled council meeting or earlier if 207 

necessary to meet the requirements of AS 04.11.480. 208 

B. At least seven (7) calendar days prior to the council meeting, the city clerk shall 209 

provide the applicant with: 210 

1. A copy of the proposed resolution; and 211 

2. Notice of the date and time when council will consider the resolution; and 212 

3. Notice the applicant will have an opportunity, pursuant to 3 AAC 304.145(d), to 213 

appear before the council to defend the application. 214 

C. A protest by the council under this section cannot be based in whole or in part on 215 

police reports or other written materials available to the city but which were not 216 

provided to the affected applicant before the public hearing on that protest. 217 

D. At the conclusion of the public hearing, and any deliberation of the council, the 218 

council may choose to: 219 

1. Pass the resolution protesting to the Board the issuance, transfer or renewal of 220 

the liquor license application; or 221 

2. Recommend the license be approved with conditions; or 222 

3. Take no action on the application.  223 

5.08.050  Recordkeeping required of all sellers. 224 

A. Premises licensed under AS 04.11 shall keep and preserve suitable records of all 225 

sales made by the seller and such other books or accounts as may be necessary to 226 

determine the amount of tax which it is obliged to collect, including records of the gross 227 

daily sales, together with invoices of purchases and sales, bills of lading, bills of sale or 228 

39



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 7 of 18 

other pertinent records and documents as will substantiate and prove the accuracy of a 229 

tax return. 230 

B. “Suitable records of all sales made” as used in subsection A of this section shall mean 231 

at a minimum a daily “Z” or “Z-total” report or equivalent (a “Z” or “Z-total” report is 232 

the report generated by the cash register at the end of each business day, which 233 

calculates, at least, the totals for each department key, total sales and total receipts – 234 

although some cash registers have more detailed “Z” or “Z-total” reports). Whatever 235 

records are kept must reflect the total daily purchases of taxable items. If no taxable 236 

sales are made on a business day, the records kept shall so reflect “zero” sales on that 237 

day. Records must also be kept to substantiate any claimed deductions or exclusions 238 

authorized by law. Records may be written, stored on data processing equipment or 239 

may be in any form that the city may readily examine. 240 

C. All sellers within the city who sell alcoholic beverages must have a cash register and 241 

must record each retail sale on a cash register that provides, at a minimum, a daily “Z” 242 

or “Z-total” report, or equivalent. 243 

D. Records shall be kept in a systematic manner conforming to accepted accounting 244 

methods and procedures. Such records include: 245 

1. The books of accounts ordinarily maintained by a prudent business person. 246 

Records and accounting information stored on computers must be provided to the 247 

city in a readable form when requested by the city. 248 

2. Documents of original entry such as original source documents, pre-numbered 249 

sequential source documents, pre-numbered sequential receipts, cash register 250 

tapes, sales journals, invoices, job orders, contracts, or other documents of original 251 

entry that support the entries in the books of accounts. 252 

3. All schedules or working papers used to prepare gross and taxable sales results, 253 

including receipts or invoices showing exempt sales. 254 

E. Records must show: 255 

1. Gross receipts and amounts due from all taxable and exempt sales; and 256 

2. The total purchase price of all goods and other property purchased for sale, 257 

resale, consumption, or lease. 258 

F. Every seller shall preserve suitable records of sales for a period of three (3) years 259 

from the date of the return reporting such sales, and shall preserve for a period of 260 

three (3) years all invoices of goods and merchandise purchased for resale, and all such 261 

other books, invoices and records as may be necessary to accurately determine the 262 

amount of taxes which the seller was obliged to collect under this chapter. 263 

40



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 8 of 18 

G. The city finance department may examine and audit any relevant books, papers, 264 

records, returns or memoranda of any seller, may require the attendance of any seller, 265 

or any officer or employee of a seller, at a meeting with the finance director or his or 266 

her designee, and may require production of all relevant business records, in order to 267 

determine whether the seller has complied with this chapter.  268 

5.08.060  Conditional use permit required. 269 

Unless exempt, any use that includes the retail sale or dispensing of alcoholic beverages 270 

is permitted only by a conditional use permit. The conditional use requirement applies 271 

only to the retail sale or dispensing of alcoholic beverages and not to related principal 272 

or accessory uses.  273 

5.08.070  Licensee responsible for employees’ actions on premises. 274 

A. A licensee may neither knowingly allow agents or employees to violate this chapter 275 

or AS Title 4 or regulations adopted thereunder, or to recklessly or with criminal or civil 276 

negligence fail to act in accordance with the duties prescribed under AS 04.21.030 with 277 

the result that an agent or employee of the licensee violates a law, regulation or 278 

ordinance. 279 

B. The licensee shall be responsible for all acts or omissions of the licensee’s employees 280 

on the licensed premises. The licensee may be cited and prosecuted for all acts or 281 

omissions of employees which are committed on the licensed premises and which are in 282 

violation of this chapter; provided, however, that the prosecution of the licensee shall 283 

not prohibit the prosecution of the employee for acts or omissions committed by the 284 

employee in violation of any provision of this chapter.  285 

5.08.080  Hours and days of operation. 286 

A. Premises licensed under AS 04.11.080 for the service and consumption of alcoholic 287 

beverages shall be closed for the sale, service and consumption of alcoholic beverages 288 

between the hours of 1:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m. Monday through Friday, and between 289 

the hours of 2:00 a.m. and 11:00 a.m. on Saturday or Sunday or on a legal holiday 290 

recognized by the state under AS 44.12.010 with the exception of New Year’s Day 291 

during which the establishment shall close by 3:00 a.m. 292 

B. All other retail premises licensed under AS 04.11.080 shall be closed for the sale of 293 

alcoholic beverages between the hours of 11:00 p.m. and 11:00 a.m.  294 

C. A person may not sell, offer for sale, give, furnish, deliver or consume an alcoholic 295 

beverage on premises licensed under AS 04.11 during the hours of closure set forth in 296 

this section. 297 

D. A licensee, an agent, or employee may not permit a person to consume alcoholic 298 

beverages on the licensed premises between the hours of closure set forth in this 299 

section. 300 

41



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 9 of 18 

E.  As authorized by AS 04.16.070(b), the sale of alcoholic beverages on state and/or 301 

city election days is not prohibited. 302 

5.08.090  Obligation to enforce restrictions within licensed premises. 303 

A licensee, their agent or employee may not permit the consumption of alcoholic 304 

beverages by any person within the licensed premises unless it is permitted by the 305 

license.  306 

5.08.100  Alcohol server training course requirement. 307 

A. A licensee, their agent or employees may not sell or dispense alcoholic beverages to 308 

the public prior to the successful completion of a liquor server awareness training 309 

program approved by the Board. 310 

B. Licensees, their agents and employees who sell or dispense alcoholic beverages must 311 

be able to show proof of completion of a liquor server awareness training program 312 

approved by the Board upon request by a peace officer, the city manager (or their 313 

designee) or the Board.  314 

5.08.110 Operation of licensed premises. 315 

A. Except as otherwise provided in this section, the operations procedures set forth in 316 

subsection B of this section shall apply to all persons seeking the issuance, renewal or 317 

transfer of any license issued by the Board by virtue of AS Title 4 and other applicable 318 

provisions of law allowing the sale or service of alcoholic beverages. Subsection (B)(1 2) 319 

of this section shall not apply to persons seeking the issuance, transfer or renewal of 320 

licenses issued under AS Title 4 which do not authorize the sale or service of alcoholic 321 

beverages for consumption on the premises licensed. 322 

B. Persons seeking the issuance, transfer or renewal of licenses issued by the Board 323 

under AS Title 4 and other applicable provisions of law shall comply with the following 324 

operations procedures: 325 

1. Prohibited Sales. Licensed premises may not sell or offer to sell alcoholic 326 

beverages of which the alcohol by volume content is twenty-one (21%) percent or 327 

greater. 328 

1. 2. Happy Hours. The city adopts AS 04.16.015, Pricing and marketing of alcoholic 329 

beverages. 330 

2. 3. Public Transportation. Licensees shall make available to their patrons access to 331 

means of public transportation or permit patrons to make arrangements for 332 

transportation off the premises. 333 

3. 4.Notice of Penalties. Operators shall place, at conspicuous locations within 334 

licensed premises, a clear and legible sign describing applicable penalties for driving 335 

under the influence, and for service or sale of alcoholic beverages to minors or 336 

intoxicated persons. 337 

42



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 10 of 18 

4. 5. Availability of Nonalcoholic Drinks. Operators shall have nonalcoholic drinks 338 

available for their patrons. 339 

5. 6. Compliance Determination. In order to determine whether applicants seeking 340 

the issuance, renewal or transfer of alcoholic beverage licenses have complied with 341 

the provisions of this chapter, applicants shall, at the request of the city, submit to 342 

the city manager (or their designee) an alcoholic beverage licensee compliance 343 

form. Upon request, operators shall also provide the city manager with certificates 344 

from all current employees demonstrating that those employees have successfully 345 

completed a liquor service awareness training program such as the program for 346 

techniques in alcohol management (T.A.M.) as approved by the Board. 347 

6. 7. Warning Signs for Impoundment and Forfeiture of Vehicles Seized Pursuant to 348 

an Arrest for or Charge of Driving under the Influence or Refusal to Submit to 349 

Chemical Tests. Upon adoption of a municipal code allowing for the forfeiture, 350 

operators shall display at conspicuous places in licensed premises two (2) signs 351 

warning that vehicles are seized in cases of driving under the influence or refusal to 352 

submit to chemical tests. One of these warning signs shall be at least eleven (11) 353 

inches by fourteen (14) inches in size, and must read, in lettering at least one-half 354 

(1/2) inch high and in contrasting colors or black and white, “DRIVE UNDER THE 355 

INFLUENCE – LOSE YOUR CAR.” The sign described in the preceding sentence must 356 

carry a logo or illustration approved by the chief of police or their designee which 357 

shows an automobile being towed. The second warning sign shall be at least eleven 358 

(11) inches by fourteen (14) inches and must read, in letters at least one-quarter 359 

(1/4) inch high and in contrasting colors or black and white: 360 

WARNING: IF YOU DRIVE UNDER THE INFLUENCE OR LET ANYONE 361 

DRIVE YOUR VEHICLE UNDER THE INFLUENCE, YOU WILL LOSE 362 

YOUR VEHICLE. The police SEIZE cars and trucks driven by intoxicated 363 

drivers. A vehicle will be IMPOUNDED for 30 days for the driver’s first 364 

DUI offense. A vehicle will be FORFEITED if the driver has been 365 

convicted of DUI in the past ten (10) years. 366 

7. 8.Warning Signs Required Other. The city adopts AS 04.21.065(b). 367 

9. Warning stickers. Package Store License holders shall place a health warning 368 

sticker on each single alcohol bottle or case of beer sold stating: “HEALTH 369 

WARNING Drinking alcohol and driving increases the risk of injury or death.” This 370 

sticker shall also contain the name of the store selling the alcohol.  371 

C. Mandatory Identification Check in the Retail Sale of Alcoholic Beverages. Licensee or 372 

licensee’s employee or agent shall require any purchaser (and anyone accompanying 373 

the purchaser) of alcoholic beverages to produce a current government-issued 374 

identification with birth date and photograph for identification check prior to any on-375 

premises sale. The purpose of the identification check is to verify age and eligibility to 376 

purchase alcoholic beverages. Failure to conduct the mandatory identification check 377 

43



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 11 of 18 

required by this section is a violation of code and the licensee or licensee’s employee or 378 

agent failing to conduct the mandatory identification check shall be subject to the civil 379 

penalty provisions of this chapter. For purposes of mandatory identification check 380 

required by this section: 381 

1. “Current government-issued” means a state, federal or foreign government 382 

picture identification in force and effect for a specified period stated within the 383 

identification, when presented prior to expiration of the period stated. A state 384 

government identification with birth date and photograph issued by any state of the 385 

United States is included within the meaning of “current government-issued” if the 386 

period of validity is specified and the identification is presented prior to expiration of 387 

the period stated. 388 

2. The subsequent invalidation of the identification as a bona fide government-389 

issued identification does not invalidate the compliance. 390 

3. An ongoing pattern of noncompliance with the mandatory identification check 391 

required by this code may result in review of the conditions of use or may result in 392 

the revocation of a special use permit previously approved by the city council. 393 

Action by the city council on licensee’s special use permit under this section shall be 394 

in addition to any criminal or civil penalty applicable to the individual making the 395 

sale without performing the mandatory identification check. 396 

D. Security Personnel. Each premises licensed under AS 04.11.090, Beverage 397 

dispensary license, shall employ at least one (1) person who shall be on duty between 398 

8:00 p.m. and the closing hour of the licensed premises. This person shall not be the 399 

bartender on duty, and shall be on duty for the express purpose of maintaining order 400 

within the establishment and assuring compliance, by the clientele, with the provisions 401 

of this chapter. 402 

E. Security Cameras. At least one (1) twenty-four- (24-) hour time-lapse security 403 

camera is required to be installed and properly maintained in the interior of the building 404 

at all locations licensed under AS 04.11.150, Package store license. The cameras must 405 

be able to capture all sales transactions. To the extent allowed by law, the 406 

establishment operators may be required to provide any tapes or other recording media 407 

from the security camera to the police department. 408 

F. Premises to Be Cleared upon Closing. Upon closing, licensees shall clear alcoholic 409 

beverage establishment of all persons, other than necessary employees, within fifteen 410 

(15) minutes after the closing hours. 411 

G. Age Limit Signs to Be Exhibited. All licensees shall cause to remain displayed upon 412 

the premises and in the entrance to the premises of their establishments a conspicuous 413 

sign in a prominent place visible from outside the establishment, which shall in 414 

substance state: “No person under the age of twenty-one (21) years permitted. Any 415 

such person will be prosecuted to the full extent of the law.” Excepting that licensed 416 

44



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 12 of 18 

establishments regularly serving meals may modify the sign in accordance with the 417 

provisions of this chapter and AS Title 4.  418 

5.08.120  Restrictions on purchase and sale of alcoholic beverages. 419 

A. A person licensed under AS 04.11.090 (Beverage Dispensary License), 04.11.100 420 

(Restaurant or Eating Place), 04.11.110 (Club License), or 04.11.150 (Package Store) 421 

may not purchase, sell, or offer for sale an alcoholic beverage unless the alcoholic 422 

beverage being purchased, sold, or offered for sale was obtained from a person 423 

licensed under: 424 

1. AS 04.11.160 (wholesale licenses) as a primary source of supply for the alcoholic 425 

beverage being purchased, sold, or offered for sale; 426 

2. AS 04.11.150 (package store) and the alcoholic beverage being purchased, sold, 427 

or offered for sale was obtained from a person licensed under AS 04.11.160 428 

(wholesale) as a primary source of supply; or 429 

3. AS 04.11.130 (licensed brewery), 04.11.140 (licensed winery), or 04.11.170 430 

(licensed distillery).  431 

5.08.130  Sale to intoxicated persons. 432 

A. A licensee, his agent or employee may not knowingly or negligently: 433 

1. Sell, give or barter alcoholic beverages to an intoxicated person; 434 

2. Allow another person to sell, give or barter an alcoholic beverage to an 435 

intoxicated person within the licensed premises; 436 

3. Allow an intoxicated person to enter and remain within the licensed premises or 437 

to consume an alcoholic beverage within the licensed premises; or 438 

4. Permit an intoxicated person to sell or serve alcoholic beverages.  439 

5.08.140  Eviction of patrons. 440 

The licensee and employees of the licensee are expressly permitted to evict any person 441 

suspected of being under the age of twenty-one (21) or intoxicated and failure of such 442 

person to leave after oral request is unlawful and an offense on the part of that person.  443 

5.08.150  Open container. 444 

A. It shall be unlawful to consume an open container of alcoholic beverages on the 445 

public streets, sidewalks, alleys, parks, or other public places throughout the city. Open 446 

containers of alcoholic beverages may be carried in a vehicle in a locked truck or other 447 

secured location inaccessible to the driver and passengers within the vehicle. 448 

B. Open containers are permitted on private residential property, with the consent of 449 

the owner or legal occupant of the property.  450 

45



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 13 of 18 

5.08.160  Transportation of alcohol. 451 

The transportation of alcoholic beverages by common carrier or commercial carrier 452 

within the city of Bethel to a residential home or nonlicensed alcohol distribution facility 453 

is strictly prohibited except as expressly authorized by AS Title 4.  454 

5.08.170  Inspection of premises. 455 

A. The premises of licensees authorized to sell or distribute intoxicating liquor shall be 456 

easily accessible for inspection by police officers during all regular hours of the 457 

transaction of business upon the premises, and at any other time with reasonable 458 

notice by the officer. 459 

B. The police department may inspect any premises with an alcoholic beverage license 460 

for compliance with conditions on the license. Upon discovering a violation of such 461 

conditions, the police department shall submit a written report of the violation to the 462 

city clerk for review by the city council and provide a copy thereof to the licensee. 463 

C. If at any time there appears to be a readily identifiable pattern or practice of 464 

recurring violent acts or unlawful conduct in a licensed premises, the city may send 465 

notice of possible protest to the licensee that he or she must submit and implement a 466 

plan for remedial action or be in jeopardy that a protest will be filed to any renewal, 467 

transfer of location or transfer of ownership sought by the licensee. 468 

D. Upon receiving a report of conditions violation, the city council may: 469 

1. Revoke the premises’ conditional use permit; 470 

2. Protest the issuance, renewal, transfer, relocation or continued operation of the 471 

license; 472 

3. Recommend imposition of conditions on the state liquor license pursuant to AS 473 

04.11.480(c); or 474 

4. Notify the Board that a licensee has violated conditions and request that an 475 

accusation pursuant to AS 04.11.370 be brought against the licensee. 476 

E. Prior to taking any of the actions listed in subsection (D) of this section, the city shall 477 

give the permittee or licensee notice and an opportunity to be heard on the 478 

accusation(s) at a publicly noticed council meeting. 479 

5.08.180  Access for enforcement. 480 

A. The public entrance of licensed alcoholic beverage establishments shall be open and 481 

unlocked before and after the closing hour of such establishment if there are any 482 

patrons in the establishment. 483 

B. Licensees of licensed alcoholic beverage establishments, their employees and all 484 

patrons in such establishments shall permit and aid the entry of any law enforcement 485 

46



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 14 of 18 

officer during all hours of operation and at any other time when there are two or more 486 

persons in such licensed alcoholic beverage establishment. 487 

C. Lack of knowledge, lack of intent and absence from the premises shall not be 488 

defenses to any action brought under this section against any such employee in charge 489 

of such establishment or such licensee. 490 

D. Licensees shall provide the police chief with their current hours of operation. Any 491 

changes to the hours of operation shall be communicated, in writing, to the police chief, 492 

at least three (3) business days prior to the change being implemented.  493 

5.08.190  Alcohol offenses. 494 

A. Violation of any section of this chapter shall be an infraction. 495 

B. The Bethel police department shall have the authority to write and serve citations for 496 

violations of the provisions of any portion of this chapter.  497 

5.08.200 Penalties. 498 

  499 

Offense BMC Section 
Mandatory 

Court 
Appearance 

Penalty Amount 

Premises open during 
non permissible hours 

5.08.080(A) & (B) No 1st Offense: $150 
2nd Offense: $300 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $700 

Selling, offering for sale, 
giving, furnishing, 
delivering or consuming 
alcohol on premises 
during hours of closure 

5.08.080(C) No $300 

Allowing person to 
consume alcohol on 
premises during hours of 
closure 

5.08.080(D) No $300 

Allowing consumption on 
premises in violation of 
license 

5.08.090 No $500 

Selling or dispensing 
alcohol prior to 
successful completion of 
a liquor server 

5.08.100(A) Yes $1,000 

47



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 15 of 18 

Offense BMC Section 
Mandatory 

Court 
Appearance 

Penalty Amount 

awareness training 
program 

Allowing employee to 
sell or dispense alcohol 
prior to their successful 
completion of a liquor 
server awareness 
training program 

5.08.100(A) Yes $1,000 

Failure to show proof of 
successful completion of 
a liquor server 
awareness training 
program 

5.08.100(B) Correctable $300 

Prohibited sales 5.080.110 (B) (1) Yes $1,000 

Violation of happy hour 
rules 

5.08.110(B)(12) No $300 

Failure to provide access 
to means of public 
transportation to patrons 
or to arrange for 
transportation off 
premises 

5.08.110(B)(23) No $500 

Failure to properly post 
signs 

5.08.110(B)(34), 
(6), (7) 

No $250 

Failure to have 
nonalcoholic drinks 
available 

5.08.110(B)(45) No $150 

Failure to submit an 
alcoholic beverage 
compliance form upon 
request 

5.08.110(B)(56) No $300 

Failure to post warning 
signs and apply warning 
stickers.  

5.08.110 (B) (7,9) No $300 

48



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 16 of 18 

Offense BMC Section 
Mandatory 

Court 
Appearance 

Penalty Amount 

Failure to check 
identification of 
purchaser 

5.08.110(C) Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Acceptance of 
nonconforming 
identification for 
purchase of alcoholic 
beverage 

5.08.110(C) Yes 1st offense: $150 
2nd offense: $300 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $700 

Failure to have security 
personnel on premises 
as required 

5.08.110(D) No 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Failure to install or 
maintain security 
equipment 

5.08.110(E) Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Interior camera not 
positioned to capture 
sales transactions 

5.08.110(E) Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Failure to clear premises 
after closing 

5.08.110(F) No 1st offense: $150 
2nd offense: $300 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $700 

Failing to post age limit 
signs 

5.08.110(G) No $300 

Sale of alcoholic 
beverages improperly 
obtained 

5.08.120 Yes $700 

Sale of alcohol to an 
intoxicated person 

5.08.130 Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Providing alcohol to an 
intoxicated person 

5.08.130 Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 

49



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 17 of 18 

Offense BMC Section 
Mandatory 

Court 
Appearance 

Penalty Amount 

3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Allowing another person 
to sell or provide alcohol 
to an intoxicated person 

5.08.130(A)(2) Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Allowing an intoxicated 
person to enter and 
remain within licensed 
premises 

5.08.130(A)(3) Yes 1st offense: $150 
2nd offense: $300 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $700 

Permitting intoxicated 
person to consume 
alcoholic beverage within 
a licensed premises 

5.08.130(A)(3) Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Permitting an intoxicated 
person to sell or serve 
an alcoholic beverage 

5.08.130(A)(4) Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Carrying, possessing or 
consuming an open 
container in public  

5.08.150 No 1st offense: $150 
2nd offense: $300 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $700 

Transportation of alcohol 
by common carrier  

5.08.160 Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Transportation of alcohol 
by commercial carrier 

5.08.160 Yes 1st offense: $500 
2nd offense: $700 
3rd & subsequent 
offenses: $1,000 

Failure to make premises 
easily accessible for 
inspection by police 
officers 

5.08.170(A) Yes $700 

50



Introduced by: Council Member Albertson 
 Introduction Date May 8, 2018 

Public Hearing: May 22, 2018 
Action:  

 

City of Bethel, Alaska  Ordinance 18-10 

  Page 18 of 18 

Offense BMC Section 
Mandatory 

Court 
Appearance 

Penalty Amount 

Failing to maintain 
premises unlocked while 
patrons are on premises 

5.08.180(A) Yes $1,000 

Failure to permit or aid 
the entry of law 
enforcement during 
hours of operation 

5.08.180(B) Yes $700 

Failure to permit or aid 
the entry of law 
enforcement any time 
there are two (2) or 
more persons on the 
premises 

5.08.180(B) Yes $700 

 500 

 501 

NOW, BE IT ORDAINED, the City Council amends the Bethel Municipal Code, Chapter 502 

5.08, by amending the language for requiring a global positioning system.  503 

 504 

SECTION 1.  Classification.  This is a Codified Ordinance and shall become part of the 505 

Bethel Municipal Code. 506 

 507 

SECTION 2.  Amendments.  Bethel Municipal Code Chapter 5.08 is amended as follows: 508 

(new language is underlined and old language is stricken): 509 

 510 

 511 

SECTION 3.  Effective date.  This ordinance shall become effective June 15, 2018 after 512 

passage by the Bethel City Council.  513 

 514 

 515 

ATTEST:      __________________________ 516 

       Richard Robb, Mayor 517 

 518 

________________________ 519 

Lori Strickler, City Clerk 520 

51



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing:

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Increases

10-55-649 Other Professional Services Fund - Total Care Service by Arctic IT 47,000 

10-55-649 Other Professional Services Fund - Managed Virtual Firewall Service by GCI 2,400 

10-55-649 Other Professional Services Fund - Managed Print Services by CDW-G 600 

Total Increases 50,000 

Decreases

10-55-732 Equipment Rental Fund 35,000 

10-55-668 Software/Support Fund 20,000 

Total Decreases 55,000 

TOTAL Net Change to IT DEPARTMENT Fund Appropriations

TOTAL CHANGE TO OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 50,000 

Total Decreases

Cumulative Change to OTHER PROFESSIONAL SERVICES APPROPRIATIONS 50,000 

TOTAL CHANGE TO SOFTWARE/SUPPORT FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases

Total Decreases 20,000 

Cumulative Change to SOFTWARE/SUPPORT APPROPRIATIONS 20,000 

TOTAL CHANGE TO EQUIPMENT RENTAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases

Total Decreases 35,000 

Cumulative Change to EQUIPMENT RENTAL APPROPRIATIONS 35,000 

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

Change to Other Professional Services Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 50,000

Change to Equipment Rental and Software/SupportAppropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 55,000

These changes INCREASE↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 0

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF May 2018 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

                                                                                          ____________________________________

                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

Peter Williams, City Manager

May 8, 2018

ORDINANCE # 17-28 (m)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for Fiscal 

Year 2018, July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

Information Technology Department

Change to IT Dept Other Professional Services 10-55-649 - General Fund

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28 (m)

1 of 1

52



Budget Modification for 10-55-649 (Other Professional Services) 

A fast approaching issue is that the budget for the IT department’s professional services line item will be 
breached by about $50,000 by the end of the fiscal year. Because of this, there will need to be a budget 
modification to cover the costs, however, all of the money can be reallocated from within the IT 
department’s budget and shouldn’t need to be pulled from any other areas. 

The reasons that this line item was miscalculated was due to the following: 

- A service that had been under the equipment rental line item 10-55-732 (City of Bethel’s 
Barracuda Backup Service) was consolidated under the Total Care service inside of 10-55-649. 
This was due to a negotiation between the City Attorney and Arctic IT in order to have a single 
master contract rather than the three separate contracts we had with them at the beginning of 
the last fiscal year. This consolidation did not happen until after the FY18 budget was finalized. 
This means that roughly $34,000/yr that was going to be under 10-55-732 for the backup 
service would now be shifting into 10-55-649. 
 

- While I was coming up with the budget for FY18, an item came up after the fact that had I had 
missed while I was still trying to get a full grasp of everything the IT department was fiscally 
responsible for. This item was a managed virtual firewall service provided to us by GCI. The cost 
is relatively low, $2,388 for the year, but it is an amount that I hadn’t known was going to be 
there. As this is a managed service through GCI, its proper home is under 10-55-649 so that is 
where I’ve been allocating it to.  
 

- After my FY18 budget was approved, the City Manager approached me to inform that we (the 
City) would be assuming responsibility over the network at the YK fitness center. This meant I 
would need to extend my previously budgeted amount for the Total Care service to about nine 
more systems. Total Care itself is a variable service based on a per-unit cost and so this would 
not cause any problems with the contract we were under, but it would increase the cost by 
about $9,615 for the year to cover those computers.  
 

- The amount of servers and computers needing coverage at the Police Department increased by 
one each once we purchased and installed all the equipment needed for their new building 
surveillance system. Again, Total Care is a variable service and can easily absorb these new 
devices that came up after the FY18 budget finalization, but it would mean that an additional 
charge of $3,320/yr would be charged. 
 

- Costs for an item I had previously thought was going to be under 10-55-732 (the Managed Print 
Services agreement) is now being charged to 10-55-649 after some reconsideration. It is a 
professional service provided to us by CDW-G. Additionally, this charge is now being broken into 
different departments instead of being all in IT and so the money that had been put in IT for this 
can be shifted to cover the amount needed in 10-55-649.  
 
 
 

53



Money Reallocation Proposition: 

$35,000 Equipment Rental (10-55-732)  Other Professional Services (10-55-649) 

As was mentioned, the amount originally allocated to 10-55-732 for the Barracuda Backup Service has 
now been absorbed by the Total Care service under 10-55-649. So the roughly $35,000 that was in 10-
55-732 can follow it to 10-55-649.   

 

$20,000 Software/Support (10-55-668)  Other Professional Services (10-55-649) 

When I originally planned my budget, I was under the assumption that all of costs for the city’s managed 
print services agreement would be going to my department. After the budget finalization, these costs 
have instead been divided between the departments the service benefits. This leaves the amount 
budgeted ($18,000) free in my budget and therefore I think it can be shifted to 10-55-649 to help cover 
the overages.  

 

This should give 10-55-649 an additional $55,000, which should both cover the overages and also leave a 
small cushion in the event that a department needs an additional computer or server between now and 
the end of the fiscal year.  

54



 

New Business   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  
 
 
 
 

55



Introduced by:  Mayor Robb 

Date: May 22, 2018 

Public Hearing: June 12, 2018 

Action:   

Vote:  

 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #18-11 

    1 of 2  

    

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 
 

Ordinance #18-11 
 

AN ORDINANCE BY THE BETHEL CITY COUNCIL SUBMITTING TO THE 
QUALIFIED VOTERS OF THE CITY OF BETHEL, ON OCTOBER 2, 2018, A 

BALLOT PROPOSITION INITIATED THROUGH LOCAL OPTION PETITION  
 
WHEREAS;  Alaska Statute 04.11.507, Procedure for Local Option Election, states: 

Upon receipt of a petition of a number of registered voters equal to 35 
percent or more of the number of votes cast at the last regular municipal 
election, the local governing body of a municipality shall place upon a 
separate ballot at the next regular election, or at a special election, 
whichever local option, change in local option, or removal of local option 
constitutes the subject of the petition;  

 
WHEREAS; the City Clerk’s Office received a local option petition application on April 

3,2018 which was certified by the City Clerk on April 9 with petition 
booklets issued to the sponsors on April 17, 2018;   

 
WHEREAS; pursuant to AS 29.26.130, the petition sponsors had 90 days to obtain 

qualifying signatures from 248 Bethel registered voters (35% of the 
number of votes casts at the City’s last regular election);  

 
WHEREAS; the petition sponsors submitted their petition booklets to the City Clerk’s 

Office on April 27,2018 the petition was certified on April 30 with 297 
qualifying signatures;  

  
SECTION 1. ELECTION An election is to be held October 2, 2018 in and for the City of 
Bethel for the purpose of submitting questions and a ballot proposition to the qualified 
voters of the City of Bethel for approval or rejection.  
 
SECTION 2. PROPOSITION   The proposition must receive a majority vote of the qualified 
voters in the City of Bethel voting on the question to be approved. The Proposition shall 
be substantially in the following form: 
 

56



Introduced by:  Mayor Robb 

Date: May 22, 2018 

Public Hearing: June 12, 2018 

Action:   

Vote:  

 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska     Ordinance #18-11 

    2 of 2  

    

Shall the City of Bethel adopt a local option (4.11.491 (a) (1)), to prohibit the sale of 

alcoholic beverages.  

     Yes    No 

 

IMPARTIAL SUMMARY OF THE CHANGE IN LOCAL OPTION BEING PROPOSED: 

A yes vote on this ballot question means you want the community of Bethel to fall 

under Local Option, preventing the sales of alcoholic beverages in the community of 

Bethel. 

A no vote on this ballot questions means you want to the community of Bethel to 

remain out of local option, allowing for the sales of alcoholic beverages in the 

community of Bethel.  

 
SECTION 4. Classification.  This ordinance is of permanent nature and shall not 
become a part of the Bethel Municipal Code. 
 
SECTION 5. Effective Date. This Ordinance shall become effective upon the approval 

by the Bethel City Council.  
 
BE IT ENACTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BETHEL ALASKA, 
THIS __ DAY OF JUNE 2018, BY A VOTE OF _ IN FAVOR AND _ OPPOSED.  

 
 
 
 
_________________________  
Richard Robb, Mayor  

ATTEST: 
 
 
 
___________________________ 
Lori Strickler, City Clerk 
  

57



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing: June 12, 2018

Action:

Vote:

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

Whereas The City has previously not paid its' invoices timely, resulting in D&B's worst credit rating

of "4", on a scale of 1 to 4, 4 being the worst. 

Whereas The City has determined the debit card system, which was implemented as a fix to not having 

adequate vendor relartionships; is not a desirable means to pay its bills, 

Whereas The City finance department is moving the City away from debit cards and is opening new vendor 

accounts on credit, resulting in an orderly payment process of City expenditures, 

the City recommends we hire Dunn and Bradstreet, the most prominent credit rating firm, to manage

its credit rating for (1) year in order to repair its credit rating, which willl allow the City to 

better control its' expenditures and reduce the use of debit cards. 

Whereas The standard D&B fee for this (1) year service is $9,999 and has been negotiated down 

to $6,000.

ACCOUNT # Increases

10-51-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES 6,000 

Total Increases 6,000 

Decreases

10-51-733 POSTAGE (6,000)

Total Decreases (6,000)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

ACCOUNT # Increases

10-52-682 ELECTION EXPENSES 6,259 

Total Increases 6,259 

Decreases

10-512-541 COUNCIL TRAVEL AND TRAINING (6,259)

Total Decreases (6,259)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 0 

Total Decreases 0 

Cumulative Change to APPROPRIATIONS 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Change to General Fund Revenues 0 

Change to General Fund Appropriations 0 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance 0 

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 0

Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 0

These changes INCREASE↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 0

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF June 2018 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

Whereas, while agreed upon in May, the fees associated with this lease could not commence until the City received the equipment in 

good operating condition which did not occur until August of 2017;    
Whereas, Exhibit A of the contract identifies May 4, as the invoice date for the annual lease payment which means since the City wasn't 

able to take possession of and sign off on the equipment until August, the City is being charged for two years of the lease payment in this 

fiscal year;         

Whereas, the Council has excess funds in the Council's training and travel budget with no travel scheduled for the remaining of this Fiscal 

Year. 

CHANGE TO CITY CLERK"S DEPARTMENT

Peter Williams, City Manager

May 8, 2018

ORDINANCE # 17-28(n)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for Fiscal 

Year 2018, July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

Whereas, in May of 2017 Council authorized the purchase/lease of election equipment so, for the first time, the Bethel voters would be 

able to automatically case the City ballot as opposed to having the ballots run after the close of the polls;                                                                                                                                                    

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

                                                                                          ____________________________________

                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

GENERAL FUND

CHANGE TO ADMINISTRATIVE DEPARTMENT

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28(n)

1 of 1

58



VOTING SYSTEM AND MANAGED SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN 

DOMINION VOTING SYSTEMS, INC. 
AND THE CITY OF BETHEL, AK 

This Managed Services Agreement (the "Agreement"), dated May 4, 2017 (the "Effective 
Date"), for a voting system hardware services, software licenses and related services is made by 
and between City of Bethel, Alaska, having its principal office located at 300 State Highway, 
Bethel, AK 99559 (hereinafter the "Customer"), and Dominion Voting Systems Inc., having its 
principal office located at 1201 18th Street, Suite 210, Denver, CO 80202 (hereinafter 
"Dominion"). This Agreement may refer to Dominion and the Customer together as the 
"Parties," or may refer to Dominion or the Customer individually as a "Party." 

WHEREAS, the Customer desires to lease voting system services, and a software use 
license; and 

WHEREAS, Dominion designs, manufactl.!_res, licenses, voting system products, and 
provides services for its voting systems. 

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants contained herein, and in 
accordance with the terms and conditions set forth herein, Dominion agrees to license and 
furnish to Customer the System (as defined herein), including the products and services 
described more fully below: 

1. Composition of Agreement. Exhibits A and B are attached and incorporated herein by 
reference and form a part of this Agreement (the "Agreement"). This Agreement consists 
of the terms and conditions contained in the following sections and the listed Exhibits: 

Exhibit A: 
Exhibit B: 

Pricing/Payment Summary and Deliverables Description 
Software License Terms and Conditions 

2. Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, the following are defined terms: 

2.1. "Acceptance" means the successful completion of the acceptance testing performed 
by the Customer on the Dominion Hardware, after delivery in accordance with 
testing criteria developed and updated from time to time by Dominion, or the 
occurrence of other events defmed in Section 8. 

2.2. "Dominion Software" means the lmageCast® Precinct Scanner firmware licensed to 
the Customer by Dominion and any associated documentation. 

2.3. "Dominion Hardware" means the ImageCast® Precinct Scanner (or "ICP"), the 
ImageCast® Precinct Scanner with BMD (or "ICP-BMD") and the Plastic Ballot 
Boxes as more specifically described in Exhibit A. 

2.4. "Election" means a single election event administered by the Customer including 
any absentee and early voting activity associated with the election event. Election 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 1 of 8 

59



shall not mean any follow-on events occurring after the initial election event, 
including without limitations, run-offs or recall replacements elections. Any follow 
on event shall be considered an Election in and of itself. 

2.5. "License" has the meaning set forth in Section 7. 

2.6. "System" shall have the same meaning as the Dominion Hardware. 

3. Term of Agreement. The "Term" of this Agreement shall begin on the Effective Date and 
shall continue until May 3, 2025. 

4. Dominion's Responsibilities. Dominion shall: 

4.1. Provide the System and services as described in Exhibit A - Pricing and Payment 
Summary and Deliverables Description. 

4.2. Provide the Customer with a Dominion Software use License as described m 
Exhibit B - Software License Terms. 

4.3. Assist in the Acceptance Testing process as described in Section 8 and Exhibit A. 

4.4. Provide the Customer with one (1) reproducible electronic copy of the user 
documentation. 

5. Customer's Responsibilities. Customer shall: 

5.1. Pay invoices in a timely manner and no later than thirty (30) calendar days from 
receipt of a Dominion invoice. 

5 .1.1. Dominion shall issue invoices to Customer pursuant to the invoice 
schedule listed in Exhibit A. 

5.1.2. Payments specified in this Section 5 are exclusive of all excise, sale, use 
and other taxes imposed by any governmental authority, all of which shall 
be reimbursed by the Customer. If the Customer is exempt from taxes, 
Customer shall supply Dominion a tax exemption certificate or other 
similar form demonstrating its exempt status. 

5.2. Conduct Acceptance Testing process as required by Section 8. 

6. Title and Risk of Loss. 

6.1. Title to the System. The System shall be delivered by Dominion to the Customer as 
part of the managed services described herein. Title to the System or any portion 
thereof, shall not pass to the Customer and shall remain with Dominion. 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 2 of 8 

60



6.2. Software. Dominion Software is licensed, not sold. The original and any copies of 
the Dominion Software, or other software provided pursuant to this agreement, in 
whole or in part, including any subsequent improvements or updates, shall remain 
the property of Dominion, or any third party that owns such software. 

6.3. Risk of Loss. Dominion shall bear the responsibility for all risk of physical loss or 
damage to each portion of the System until such portion is delivered to the "ship to" 
address, except to the extent such damage is caused by Customer. Customer shall 
provide Dominion with a single location for shipment and Dominion shall not be 
responsible for shipping to more than one location. To retain the benefit of this 
clause, Customer shall notify Dominion of any loss or damage within ten (10) 
business days of the receipt of any or all portions of the System, or such shorter 
period as may be required to comply with the claims requirements of the shipper, 
and shall cooperate in the processing of any claims made by Dominion. 

7. Dominion Software License and Use. Upon mutual execution of this Agreement, 
Dominion grants to the Customer, and the Customer accepts a non-exclusive, non
transferable, license ("License") to use the Dominion Software subject to the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement and the Software License Terms attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

8. Acceptance. After delivery of the Dominion Hardware, the Customer will conduct 
acceptance testing of such items, in accordance with the acceptance criteria developed and 
updated, from time to time, by Dominion. Such acceptance testing shall occur at a time 
mutually agreed upon by the Parties, but no later than ten (10) business days after delivery. 

9. Dominion Software Warranty. 

9.1. Dominion Software Warranty. The Dominion Software Warranty is subject to the 
Software License Terms attached hereto as Exhibit B. 

9.2. No Other Software Warranties. DOMINION DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
SOFTWARE WARRANTIES AND REPRESENTATIONS, WHETHER 
WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING ANY 
WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR 
PURPOSE AND ANY WARRANTY BASED ON A COURSE OF DEALING, 
COURSE OF PERFORMANCE OR USAGE OF TRADE. 

10. Dominion Hardware Warranty. 

10.1. Dominion Hardware Warranty Terms. Dominion warrants that when used with the 
configuration approved by Dominion, each component of Dominion Hardware will 
be free of defects that would prevent the Dominion Hardware from operating in 
conformity in all material respects with its specifications. The Dominion Hardware 
Warranty shall remain in effect during the Agreement Term. 

10.2. Dominion Hardware Warranty Services. Dominion shall repair or replace the 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 3 of 8 

61



Dominion Hardware so that each item thereof operates in conformity with its 
specifications, so long as such Dominion Hardware is operated with its designated 
software and third party products (if applicable) approved by Dominion for use with 
the Dominion Hardware. If any Dominion Hardware item fails to operate in 
conformity with the specifications during the Agreement term, Dominion shall fully 
repair or, at Dominion's sole option, replace the Dominion Hardware. The 
following conditions apply to the Dominion Hardware services: 

10.2.1. Dominion shall bear the shipping costs to return the malfunctioning item 
to Dominion, and Dominion shall bear the costs for shipping the repaired 
or replaced item to Customer. 

10.2.2. The following services are not covered by the Dominion Hardware 
warranty, but may be available for purchase at Dominion's then current 
time and material rates: 

a. Except as otherwise provided in Section 3.3 of Exhibit A to this 
Agreement, replacement of consumable items including but not 
limited to batteries, pens, paper rolls, seals, printer ink, removable 
memory devices, etc.; 

b. Repair or replacement of Dominion Hardware damaged by of 
accident, disaster, theft, vandalism, neglect, abuse, or any improper 
usage; 

c. Repair or replacement of Dominion Hardware modified by any 
person other than those expressly authorized in writing by 
Dominion; 

d. Repair or replacement of Dominion Hardware products from which 
the serial numbers have been removed, defaced or changed. 

10.3. No Other Warranties. DOMINION DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER WARRANTIES 
AND REPRESENTATIONS, WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS, 
IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF 
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND 
ANY WARRANTY BASED ON A COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF 
PERFORMANCE OR USAGE OF TRADE. 

11. Confidential Information. 

11.1. For purposes of this Agreement, confidential information ("Confidential 
Information") is defined as those materials, documents, data, and technical 
information, specifications, business information, customer information, or other 
information that the disclosing Party maintains as trade secrets or confidential and 
which are disclosed to a receiving Party in tangible form conspicuously marked as 
"confidential," or with words having similar meaning or which are expressly 
identified in this Subsection 11.1. Confidential Information includes, without 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 4 of 8 

62



limitation, Dominion Software source code and associated documentation. 

11.2. Each Party shall treat the other Party's Confidential Information as confidential 
within their respective organizations. 

11.3. Neither Party shall disclose the other Party's Confidential Information to any person 
outside their respective organizations unless disclosure is made in response to, or 
because of, an obligation to any federal, state, or local governmental agency or 
court with appropriate jurisdiction, or to any person properly seeking discovery 
before any such agency or court. 

11.4. The parties understand and agree that Customer is a public entity that may be 
subject to Public Record Laws. Therefore, any covenant of confidentiality given by 
the Customer in this Agreement shall be governed by and superseded by the 
provisions and limitations of applicable Public Record Laws. 

11.5. Any specific information that Dominion claims to be confidential must be clearly 
identified as such by the Customer. To the extent consistent with Public Record 
Laws, Customer shall maintain the confidentiality of all such information marked 
by Dominion as confidential. If a request is made to view such confidential 
information, Customer will notify Dominion of such request and the date the 
information will be released to the requestor unless Dominion obtains a court order 
enjoining such disclosure. If Dominion fails to obtain such court order enjoining 
such disclosure, the Customer will release the requested information on the date 
specified. Such release shall be deemed to have been made with Dominion's 
consent and shall not be deemed to be a violation of law or this Agreement. 

12. Limitation of Liability. Dominion's total aggregate liability for any loss, damage, costs or 
expenses under or in connection with this Agreement, howsoever arising, including without 
limitation, loss, damage, costs or expenses caused by breach of contract, negligence, strict 
liability, breach of statutory or any other duty shall in no circumstances exceed the total dollar 
amount of the Agreement. Neither party shall be liable for any loss of profits, loss of business, 
loss of data, loss of use or any other indirect, incidental, special or consequential loss or damage 
whatsoever, howsoever arising, incurred by the other party or any third party, whether in an 
action in contract, negligence or other tort, even if the parties or their representatives have been 
advised of the possibility of such damages. 

13. Indemnification. To the extent that the City is required to indemnify Dominion, the obligation 
to indemnify is effective only to the extent permitted by law. The obligation to indemnify is further 
conditioned on the availability of a valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation. The parties to this 
Agreement recognize and agree that the City has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify 
under the provisions of this Agreement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to 
finance a payment under these provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council and the City 
Council's failure to make the appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of the City. However, 
during all times pertinent to this Agreement, the City will maintain sufficient insurance coverage to 
protect against any damage to or suits arising out of City"s use of Dominion's voting system and related 
software. 
14. Assignment. Neither Party may assign its rights, obligations, or interests in this Agreement 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 5 of 8 

63



without the written consent of the other Party. 

15. Termination for Default. In the event either Party violates any provlSlons of this 
Agreement, the injured Party shall serve written notice upon the violating Party identifying the 
violation and providing a reasonable cure period. Except as otherwise noted herein, such cure 
period shall be at least thirty (30) days. In the event the violating Party has not remedied the 
infraction at the end of the cure period, the injured Party may serve written notice upon the 
violating Party of its intent to terminate, and seek legal remedies for breach of contract as 
allowed hereunder. If the breach identified in the notice cannot be completely cured within the 
specified time period, no default shall occur if the Party receiving the notice begins curative 
action within the specified time period and thereafter proceeds with reasonable diligence and in 
good faith to cure the breach as soon as practicable. 

16. Termination for Non-Availability of Government Funds 
If the City Council fails to appropriate sufficient funds or to authorize the expenditure of sufficient funds 
to continue service under this agreement, City may submit a written notice to Dominion terminating this 
Agreement. Such notice shall be in writing and shall be not less than thirty (30) days prior to the date of 
termination. The notice shall include a written statement documenting the reason for termination and an 
official document certifying the non-availability of funds (e.g., city council action; official budget or other 
official government document). City shall be liable to Dominion for all charges and costs incurred for 
products and/or services prior to the effective date of the termination. 

17. Survival. The provisions of Sections 2, 11, 12, 13, 19, and 20 shall survive the expiration 
or termination of this Agreement. 

18. Force Majeure. Should any circumstances beyond the control of either Party occur that 
delay or render impossible the performance of any obligation due under this Agreement, such 
obligation will be postponed for the period of any delay resulting from any such circumstances, 
plus a reasonable period to accommodate adjustment to such extension. Such events may 
include, without limitation, accidents; war, acts of terrorism; natural disasters; labor disputes; 
acts, laws, rules or regulations of any government or government agency; or other events beyond 
the control of Dominion and Customer. Dominion shall not be liable under this Agreement for 
any loss or damage to the Customer due to such delay or performance failures. Notwithstanding 
the foregoing, both Parties shall use their best efforts to minimize the adverse consequences of 
any such circumstances. This Section shall not operate to excuse any Party from paying amounts 
that are owed pursuant to this Agreement. 

19. Notices. All notices required or permitted to be given hereunder shall be given in writing and 
shall be deemed to have been given when personally delivered or by nationally recognized 
overnight carrier or mailed, certified or registered mail, return receipt requested, addressed to the 
intended recipient as follows: 

If to Dominion: 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Attn: Contracts Administrator 
1201 181

h St., Suite 210 
Denver, CO 80202 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 6 of 8 

64



If to the Customer: 

City of Bethel 
Attn: Lori Strickler 
POBox 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 

20. Choice of Law. Interpretation of this Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the 
Customer's State, and the courts of competent jurisdiction located in that State will have 
jurisdiction to hear and determine questions relating to this Agreement. 

21. Waiver. Any failure of a Party to assert any right under this Agreement shall not constitute 
a waiver or a termination of that right or any provisions of this Agreement. 

22. Legality and Severability. This Agreement and the Parties' actions under this Agreement 
shall comply with all applicable federal, state and local laws, ordinances, rules, regulations, court 
orders, and applicable governmental agency orders. If any term or provision of this Agreement is 
held to be illegal or unenforceable, the remainder of this Agreement shall not be affected thereby 
and each term or provision of this Agreement shall be valid and enforceable to the fullest extent 
permitted by law. The Parties agree that any court reviewing this Agreement shall reform any 
illegal or unenforceable provision to carry out the express intent of the Parties as set forth herein 
to the fullest extent permitted by law. 

23. Entire Agreement. This Agreement and its Exhibits incorporated herein by reference 
constitute the entire agreement, understanding and representations between Dominion and the 
Customer, and supersede and replace all prior agreements, written or oral. No modifications or 
representations to the Agreement shall be valid unless made in writing and signed by duly 
authorized representatives of both the Customer and Dominion, and incorporated as an 
Addendum hereto. 

24. Third-Party Beneficiary. No person shall be a third-party beneficiary pursuant to this 
Agreement. No obligation of Dominion or Customer may be enforced against Dominion or 
Customer, as applicable, by any person not a party to this Agreement. 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 7 of 8 

65



IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement the day and year 
first above written. 

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA 

Qt&.~uJdi~ 
AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

/t{er bli II [6tm S 

TITLE 5/ :2-Cj I t-1 
DATE I t 

DOMINION VOTING SYSTEMS, INC. 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE 

PRINTED NAME 

TITLE 

DATE 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. LQ Managed Services Agreement 6/16/14 
Page 8 of 8 

66

pria.ingrum
Typewritten Text

pria.ingrum
Typewritten Text

pria.ingrum
Typewritten Text

pria.ingrum
Typewritten Text

pria.ingrum
Typewritten Text
John Poulos

pria.ingrum
Typewritten Text
President & CEO

pria.ingrum
Typewritten Text
5/26/2017



EXHIBIT A 

VOTING SYSTEM AND MANAGED SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN DOMINION VOTING SYSTEMS, INC. 

AND THE CITY OF BETHEL, AK 

PRICING AND PAYMENT SUMMARY AND DELIVERABLES DESCRIPTION 

1. Pricing/Payment Summary and Descriptions 

1.1 Pricing Summary. The total annual managed service contract pricing shall equal 
$6,437/year for a total of 8 years. 

1.2 Payment Summary. The following is the invoicing schedule for the annual Customer 
payments. The Customer shall pay invoices in a timely manner and no later than thirty 
(30) calendar days from receipt of a Dominion invoice. All payments shall be made is 
in U.S. Dollars. 

1.2.1 Year 1 shall cover the time period from the Agreement Effective Date through 
5/3/2018. The Year 1 invoice of $6,259 shall be issued immediately after 
System Acceptance by the Customer. 

1.2.2 Year 2: 5/4/2018-5/3/2019: $6,259 invoice shall be issued on 5/4/2018. 

1.2.3 Year 3: 5/4/2019-5/3/2020: $6,259 invoice shall be issued on 5/4/2019. 

1.2.4 Year 4: 5/4/2020- 5/3/2021: $6,259 invoice shall be issued on 5/4/2020. 

1.2.5 Year 5: 5/4/2021 - 5/3/2022: $6,259 invoice shall be issued on 5/4/2021. 

1.2.6 Year 6: 5/4/2022- 5/3/2023: $6,259 invoice shall be issued on 5/4/2022. 

1.2. 7 Year 7: 5/4/2023- 5/3/2024: $6,259 invoice shall be issued on 5/4/2023. 

1.2.8 Year 8: 5/4/2024- 5/3/2025: $6,259 invoice shall be issued on 5/4/2024. 

2. System Description 

DESCRIPTION QTY UNIT PRICE EXTENSION 
Precinct Tabulation Hardware & Software 

ICP BMD Audio Tabulator (320C) 
Each ICE-DD Tabulator includes: 

-Tabulator I Scanner 

-Internal Back-up Battery 

-Thermal Printer with Paper Roll 

-Two BG Flash Memory Cards 

-Two /-Buttons 

-Paper Based ADA Solution 

-ADA Audio Tactile Interface (A Tl) wlheadphones 

ICP Ballot Box - Plastic 

Implementation Services 

Year 1 fees: 
Project Management & Implementation 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit A 

Sub-Total: 

2 $4,500 $9,000 

2 $1,000 $2,000 

$11,000 

$3,000 $3,000 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 1 of 4 

67



Democracy Suite EMS Programming - Base Setup 1 $2,000 $2,000 
Democracy Suite EMS Programming - Per Precinct 3 $50 $150 
Democracy Suite EMS Programming - Per Tabulator 2 $30 $60 
On-site Services - Election Day * 1 $5,000 $5,000 
Delivery of election media 1 $50 $50 
Onsite User Training - ICP $3,000 $3,000 

Sub-Total: $13,260 
Accessories and Consumables I 

ICP Cleaning Sheet 3 $20.00 $60 
ICP Paper Roll (857 5 $4.00 $20 
ICP /-Button Security Key - Black 2 $25.00 $50 
ICP Plastic Ballot Box Adapter Kit 2 $0.00 $0 

Sub-Total: $130 

Shipping Services 

Estimated Shipping $1,526 

Sub-Total: $1,526 

Election Support Fees: Yr 2 - 8 I 
Yr2 fees: $2,260 
Yr3 fees: $2,260 
Yr4 fees: $2,260 
Yr5 fees: $2,260 
Yr6 fees: $2,260 
Yr7 fees: $2,260 
YrB fees: $2,260 

Sub-Total: $15,820 

Ongoing Annual Fees: 

Firmware Licenses Per Year 
ICP 2 $228 $456 

Extended Wa"anty Per Year 
ICP 2 $135 $270 

Sub-Total: $726 

Managed Services Program - Annual Fee: $6,437 1 

Managed Services Program -Total Cost of Ownership {8 Years} $51,494 1 

INCLUDES: 12 Mo. Hardware Warranty & Software Ucense 

Amounts due in years 2 and thereaf!er are subject to annual increases reflective of inflation 

All Shipping Costs to be invoiced separately to customer 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit A 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 2 of 4 

68



Detailed Description 

2.1 lmageCasf Precinct Scanner and Tabulator (Hardware and Software) is a 
precinct optical scan ballot tabulator designed to scan marked paper ballots, 
interpret voter marks on the paper ballot, communicate these interpretations back to 
the voter and upon acceptance by the voter, deposit the ballots into the ballot box. 
Each lmageCast® provided to the Customer shall consist of the following items: 

2.1.1 Two (2) optical imaging scanners for creating a duplex scanned image of 
each side of the ballot. Ballots can be fed in all four (4) orientations. 

2.1.2 uCiinux Operating System 

2.1.3 Two (2) Compact Flash memory cards. Compact Flash Memory Cards are 
placed behind two securable doors (Administrator Door and Pollworker 
Door). Dominion shall provide a standard securing device for the 
Administrator Door at no additional cost to the Customer. Any replacement 
securing devices will be the responsibility of the Customer. 

2.1.4 An integrated interactive electronic display in the form of an ultra-high 
contrast graphical LCD screen, with white background, 5.7" diagonal viewing 
area, and a built-in touch screen for administration purposes. The LCD 
display screen is located on the top right side of the machine. 

2.1.5 An internal thermal printer and five (5) paper rolls for generating reports. 

2.1.6 Two (2) administrative security keys (iButtons) used with an integrated 
receptacle (physically attached to the top of the unit and electrically 
connected to the motherboard) used for a variety of verification and security 
tasks such control, data confidentiality and integrity functions. 

2.1.7 A motorized paper feed mechanism for detecting and moving the ballot 
within the scanner. Ballots used with the lmageCast® must be 8.5" wide by 
a variable length (11", 14", 17" and 22"). The paper feed mechanism is 
physically capable of moving the ballot forward into the machine, across 
image sensors, enabling complete image capture of both sides of the ballot. 

2.1.8 Power supply module uses 120 Vac, 60 Hz, one phase power. It has a 
power consumption of 0.07 Amps at 120 Volts AC. 

2.1.9 An internal battery which is rated to provide two (2) hours of normal use in 
the absence of AC power. 

2.1.1 0 Audit functionality, known as the AuditMark®. For each ballot that is scanned, 
interpreted and accepted into the unit, a corresponding ballot image is 
created and stored for audit purposes. The image consists of two parts 
described below. These images can be used to audit the unit's interpretation 
of each individual ballot. 

• The top portion of the image contains a scanned image of the ballot. 

• The bottom portion consists of a machine-generated type-out showing 
each mark that the unit interpreted for that particular ballot. This is 
referred to as an AuditMark®. 

2.2 The lmageCast® Precinct Scanner and Tabulator does not include consumable 
products including, without limitation, pens, seals, replacement batteries, additional 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit A 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 3 of4 

69



paper rolls, additional Compact Flash Memory Cards not specifically itemized in this 
Agreement, and voting booths. 

2.3 lmageCas~ Precinct Scanner with BMD (Hardware and Software) includes all 
of the components of the standard ICP described in this Exhibit A, Section 2.1, and 
in addition includes the following items: 

2.3.1 An integrated inkjet printer for producing marked paper ballot during the 
accessible voter sessions. 

2.3.2 One (1) ATI is included with the lmageCast Precinct BMD. The ATI 
connects to the lmageCast Precinct BMD via the port located on the right 
side of the unit. A set of headphones (also included) connects directly to the 
ATI controller. 

2.2 lmageCasfJ Precinct Scanner and Tabulator Software see section 2.1 of this 
Exhibit A for general description. The annual license fee shall be paid on the first 
anniversary of the Agreement's Effective Date and in each successive year 
thereafter pursuant to the terms of the Software License Agreement. 

2.3 Additional Compact Flash Memory Cards are provided for Customer spare or 
replacement Compact Flash Memory Cards 

2.4 Plastic Ballot Boxes. The System includes two (2) textured molded plastic ballot 
boxes made of three compartments, designed for use with the ICP. 

2.5 Annual Election Programming Costs. 

2.5.1 Democracy Suite EMS programming - base set-up. Dominion will 
provide one (1) day of remote programming. 

2.5.2 Democracy Suite EMS Programming - per precinct, includes one 
absentee precinct. Dominion will provide three (3) programmed sets of compact 
flash cards .. 

2.5.3 Democracy Suite EMS programming - per tabulator. Dominion will 
provide remote (not onsite) programming of 2 cards and 2 iButtons per tabulator, 
and return shipping to customer. 

2.6 Implementation and System Training. Dominion will provide one (1) day of 
Implementation services and System training 

2. 7 On-Site Support during the Election. Dominion will provide direct on site support 
for the first Customer Election. 

2.8 Standard and Extended Hardware Warranty provisions are defined in the terms 
and conditions section of this Agreement. 

2.9 Software Warranty provisions are defined in the terms and conditions section of 
this Agreement and related Software License Agreement. 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit A 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 4 

70



EXHIBIT B 
VOTING SYSTEM AND MANAGED SERVICES AGREEMENT 
BY AND BETWEEN DOMINION VOTING SYSTEMS, INC. 

AND THE CITY OF BETHEL, AK 

SOFTWARE LICENSE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Definitions. 

1.1 . "Licensee" shall mean the City of Bethel. 

1.2. "Licensor'' shall mean Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 

1.3. "Party" or "Parties" Licensor and Licensee may hereinafter be referred to 
individually as a Party and collectively as the Parties. 

1.4. "Software" means the Democracy Suite® and lmageCast® software licensed by 
Licensor hereunder, in object code form, including all documentation therefore. 

1.5. "Specifications" means descriptions and data regarding the features, functions 
and performance of the Software, as set forth in user manuals or other applicable 
documentation provided by Licensor. 

1.6. "Third-Party Products" means any software or hardware obtained from third-party 
manufacturers or distributers and provided by Licensor hereunder. 

2. License Terms. 

2.1. License to Software. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, Licensor grants 
Licensee a non-exclusive, non-transferrable license to use the Software solely for the 
Licensee's own internal business purposes and solely in conjunction with the Software 
and hardware. This License shall only be effective during the Term and cannot be 
transferred or sublicensed. 

2.2. Print Coovriaht License. Subject to the Print Copyright License terms and 
conditions as defined in Schedule A to this Agreement, Licensor grants to Licensee a 
non-exclusive, non-transferable print copyright license as defined in Schedule A. 

2.3. Third-Party Products. Subject to the terms of this Agreement and when 
applicable, Licensor agrees to sublicense any software that constitutes or is contained 
in Third-Party Products, in object code form only, to Licensee for use during the Term 
as part of the System. This sublicense is conditioned on Licensee's continued 
compliance with the terms and conditions of the end-user licenses contained on or in 
the media on which such software is provided. 

2.4. No Other Licenses. Other than as expressly set forth in this Agreement, (a) 
Licensor grants no licenses, expressly or by implication, and (b) Licensor's entering into 
and performing the Agreement will not be deemed to license or assign any intellectual 
property rights of Licensor to Licensee or any third party. Without limiting the foregoing 
sentence, Licensee agrees not to use the Software as a service bureau for elections 
outside the Licensee's jurisdiction and agrees not to reverse engineer or otherwise 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit B 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 1 of 4 

71



attempt to derive the source code of the Software. The Licensee shall have no power to 
transfer or grant sub-licenses for the Software. Any use of all or any portion of the 
Software not expressly permitted by the terms of this Agreement is strictly prohibited. 

3. Payment. In consideration of the grant of the license, the Licensee shall pay the 
fees set forth in Exhibit A of this Agreement. 

4. Upgrades and Certification. During the Term, Licensor may provide upgrades 
to Licensee under the following terms and conditions. 

4.1. Upgrades. In the event that Licensor, at its sole discretion, certifies a software 
upgrade under the applicable provisions of the election laws and regulations of the 
Licensee's State, Licensor may make the certified software upgrade available to the 
Licensee and install the upgrade during a regularly schedule preventive maintenance as 
described in Exhibit A. 

4.2. Certification Requirement. Notwithstanding any other terms of this Agreement, 
Licensor shall not provide, and shall not be obligated to provide under this Agreement 
any upgrade, enhancement or other software update that has not been certified under 
the applicable provisions of the election laws and regulations of the Licensee's State. 

5. Warranties. The following warranties will apply to all Software during the Term. 

5.1. Software. Licensor warrants that during the Term, the Software will function 
substantially in accordance with the Specification. If the Licensee believes that the 
Software is not functioning substantially in accordance with the Specifications, the 
Licensee shall provide Licensor with written notice of the material failure within thirty 
(30) days of discovering the material failure, provided that the Licensee can reproduce 
the material failure to Licensor. The foregoing warranty shall be void in the event of the 
Software (i) having been modified by any party other than Licensor or (ii) having been 
used by the Licensee for purposes other than those for which the Software was 
designed by Licensor. If Licensor establishes that the reported material failure is not 
covered by the foregoing warranty, the Licensee shall be responsible for the costs of 
Licensor's investigative and remedial work at Licensor's then current rates. 

5.2. Third-Party Products. The warranties in this Section 5 do not apply to any Third
Party Products. However, to the extent permitted by the manufacturers of Third-Party 
Products, Licensor shall pass through to Licensee all warranties such manufacturers 
make to Licensor regarding the operation of such Third-Party Products. 

5.3. NO OTHER WARRANTIES. LICENSOR DISCLAIMS ALL OTHER 
REPRESENTATIONS AND WARRANTIES, WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS, 
IMPLIED OR STATUTORY, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY 
OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY WARRANTY BASED ON A 
COURSE OF DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE OR USAGE OF TRADE. 

6. Prohibited Acts. The Licensee shall not, without the prior written permission of 
Licensor: 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit B 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 2 of4 

72



6.1. Transfer or copy onto any other storage device or hardware or otherwise copy 
the Software in whole or in part except for purposes of system backup; 

6.2. Reverse engineer, disassemble, decompile, decipher or analyze the Software in 
whole or in part; 

6.3. Alter or modify the Software in any way or prepare any derivative works of the 
Software or any part of parts of the Software; 

6.4. Alter, remove or obstruct any copyright or proprietary notices from the Software, 
or fail to reproduce the same on any lawful copies of the Software. 

7. Return of Software. Upon termination or expiration of this Agreement, Licensee 
shall (i) forthwith return to Licensor all Software in its possession or control, or destroy 
all such Software from any electronic media, and certify in writing to Licensor that it has 
been destroyed. 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit B 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 3 of 4 

73



SCHEDULE A 

PRINT COPYRIGHT LICENSE TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

1. Definitions. For the purposes of this Agreement, the following are defined terms: 

1.1. "Derivative Works" shall mean any work that is based upon or derived from 
the Licensor's voting systems' ballots, including without limitation, sample 
ballots and voting booklets. 

1.2. "Voting Systems' Ballots" shall mean any ballot created for use with any 
voting system owned or licensed by the Licensor. 

2. Print Copyright License and Use. 

2.1. Copyright License Grant. Licensor grants to the Licensee a non-exclusive, 
non-transferable copyright license to print, reproduce, distribute or otherwise 
copy the Licensor's Voting Systems' Ballots or any Derivative Works 
(collectively the "Materials") pursuant to the terms and conditions of this 
Schedule A. 

2.2. Copyright License Use. Other than as expressly set forth herein, (a) 
Licensor grants no other licenses, expressly or by implication, and (b) 
Licensor's entering into and performing the Agreement will not be deemed 
to license or assign any intellectual property rights of Licensor to Licensee 
or any third party, (c) the copyright license granted herein cannot be 
transferred or sublicensed and the Voting Systems' Ballots or Derivative 
Works cannot be reproduced by any third party without the prior written 
consent of the Licensor, including without limitation: 

(i) any commercial or non-commercial printer 
(ii) any third party vendor using ballot on demand system. 

2.3. Rights and Interests. All right, title and interest in the Material, including 
without limitation, any copyright, shall remain with the Licensor. 

3. No Copyright Warranties. LICENSOR DISCLAIMS ALL REPRESENTATIONS 
AND WARRANTIES, WHETHER WRITTEN, ORAL, EXPRESS, IMPLIED OR 
STATUTORY, INCLUDING ANY WARRANTY OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS 
FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE AND ANY WARRANTY BASED ON A COURSE OF 
DEALING, COURSE OF PERFORMANCE OR USAGE OF TRADE. 

Dominion Voting Systems, Inc. 
Template- Exhibit B 

Managed Services Agreement 
Page 4 of 4 

74



Introduced by: Peter Williams

Introduction Date: May 22, 2018

Public Hearing: June 12, 2018

Action:

Vote: 

Section 1.  That Ordinance 18-12, a non-code ordinance, establishes a City of Bethel

fiscal year beginning July 1, 2018, the sum of $25,601,001, which sum is deemed by Council to 

appropriated in accordance with the attached budget proposal as follows:

City Administration 634,191$                     

City Clerk & Council 287,286$                     

Finance Department 1,085,009$                  

Planning Department 376,435$                     

Information Technology Services 731,837$                     

City Attorney 247,950$                     

Fire Department 1,261,046$                  

Police Department 2,895,833$                  

Public Works-Administration 152,101$                     

Streets & Roads 1,181,105$                  

Property Maintenance 829,658$                     

Community Services 347,600$                     

In-Kind & Transfers 717,232$                     

Indirect Cost Recovery (1,442,487)$                 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND - OPERATING 9,304,797$                  

Streets & Roads 616,400$                     

TOTAL GENERAL FUND - PROJECTS 616,400$                     

Fire 71,071$                      

General Fund - Payments on Debt

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA
ORDINANCE # 18-12

AN ORDINANCE ESTABLISHING A CITY OF BETHEL BUDGET FOR FISCAL YEAR 

2019 BEGINNING JULY 1, 2018

Be it Ordained by the City Council of Bethel as follows:

Annual Budget for fiscal year 2019.

Section 2.  There is hereby appropriated out of the revenues of the City of Bethel, for the 

be necessary to defray all expenditures of the City during said budget year to be divided and 

GENERAL FUND

General Fund - Operating

General Fund - Project Expeditures

Ordinance# 18-12

Page 1 of 375



Streets & Roads 27,356$                      

TOTAL GENERAL FUND - PAYMENTS ON DEBT 98,427$                      

Planning 110,000$                     

Police 370,000$                     

Property Maintenance 68,000$                      

TOTAL GENERAL FUND - CAPITAL EXPENDITURES 548,000$                     

Transfers To - YKRH Aquatic Center 561,917$                     

Transfers To - Transit 155,315$                     

TOTAL GENERAL FUND - Transfers 717,232$                     

TOTAL GENERAL FUND 11,186,428$              

Special Revenue Funds

CSP 289,669$                     

E-911 Services 144,172$                     

TOTAL SPECIAL REVENUE FUNDS 433,841$                   

Capital Project Funds

Park Development Fund 103,552$                     

Institutional Corridor 300,000$                     

TOTAL CAPITAL PROJECT FUNDS 403,552$                   

Enterprise Fund-YK Regional Health & Aquatic Center

YK H&F Center 1,550,238$                  

Capital Expenditures 30,000$                      

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND-YK Regional Pool 1,550,238$                

Enterprise Fund-Solid Waste

Hauled Refuse 406,291$                     

Landfill Operations 510,992$                     

Capital Expenditures 110,000$                     

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND-SOLID WASTE 1,027,283$                

Utility Billing 263,646$                     

Hauled Water 1,531,026$                  

Hauled Sewer 1,573,642$                  

Piped Water 480,844$                     

Piped Sewer 581,010$                     

Water Treatment - BH 583,358$                     

Water Treatment - CS 700,905$                     

Sewer Lagoon 164,887$                     

Capital Expenditures 365,650$                     

General Fund - Capital Expenditures

General Fund - Transfers

 Enterprise Fund-Water & Sewer 

Ordinance# 18-12

Page 2 of 376



TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND-WATER & SEWER 6,244,968$                

Municipal Dock-Operating 584,405$                     

Municipal Dock-Small Boat Harbor 193,808$                     

Projects 56,000$                      

Capital Expenditures 110,000$                     

Transfers Out 50,000$                      

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND - PORT 994,213$                   

Other Leased Properties 36,738$                      

Court Complex 280,738$                     

Debt Payments 247,498$                     

Capital Expenditures 10,000$                      

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND-LEASED PROPERTIES 317,476$                   

Transit System 429,031$                     

Capital Expenditures 86,120$                      

TOTAL ENTERPRISE FUND-TRANSIT SYSTEM 515,151$                   

Employee Group Health Benefits 2,004,625$                  

TOTAL INTERNAL SVC FUND-EMP GROUP HEALTH 2,004,625$                

Vehicle & Equipment Maintenance 903,448$                     

TOTAL INTERNAL SVC FUND-VEHICLE & EQUIP 903,448$                   

Transfers Out 19,778$                      

TOTAL ENDOWMENT FUND 19,778$                     

Section 3.  That the FY2019 budget is adopted for a period of one (1) year, 

ENACTED THIS 12 DAY OF JUNE 2018, BY A VOTE OF _IN FAVOR AND _OPPOSED.

ATTEST:  Richard Robb, Mayor

_____________________________

 Lori Strickler, City Clerk

 Internal Svc Fund-Employee Group Health Benefits 

 Internal Svc Fund-Vehicle & Equipment Maint. 

 Endowment Fund 

 from July 1, 2018 to June 30, 2019. 

 Enterprise Fund-Port 

 Enterprise Fund-Leased Properties 

 Enterprise Fund-Bethel Public Transit System 

Ordinance# 18-12

Page 3 of 377



Introduced by:

Introduction Date:

Public Hearing:

Action:

Vote:

WHEREAS, the City of Bethel and the City of Bethel Employees Association, Local 6055, APEA/AFT, signed a collective

bargaining agreement for the period July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2020;

WHEREAS, the collective bargaining agreement contains provisions for cost of living salary increases and utility services

cost increases, and these changes are contained herein;

Section 1.  That the following sums of money as may be needed or deemed necessary to provide for increased

CHANGE TO STREETS AND ROADS DEPARTMENT

ACCOUNT # Increases

10-51-501 SALARIES 2,500 

10-53-501 SALARIES 4,000 

10-54-501 SALARIES 1,100 

10-60-501 SALARIES 4,400 

10-61-501 SALARIES 30,000 

10-65-501 SALARIES 200 

10-66-501 SALARIES 8,700 

10-70-501 SALARIES 2,500 

Total Increases 53,400 

Decreases

10-10100 CASH IN COMBINED FUND (53,400)

Total Decreases (53,400)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 53,400 

Total Decreases 0 

Cumulative Change to APPROPRIATIONS 53,400 

TOTAL CHANGE TO GENERAL FUND BALANCE

Change to General Fund Revenues 0 

Change to General Fund Appropriations 53,400 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (53,400)

SOLID WASTE ENTERPRISE APPROPRIATIONS

CHANGE TO LANDFILL OPERATIONS DEPARTMENT 

ACCOUNT # Increases

50-71-501 SALARIES 3,400 

Total Increases 3,400 

expenses and liabilities of the City of Bethel are hereby appropriated for the corporate purposes and objects of the City hereinafter specified for 

Fiscal Year 2018, July 1, 2017 to June 30, 2018.

An Ordinance of the Bethel City Council Amending the Adopted Annual FY 2018 Budget

Be it Enacted by the Bethel City Council that the FY 2018 Annual Budget be amended as follows:

Section 2.  The following is a summary of the changes by fund and department:

GENERAL FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Peter Williams, City Manager

May 22, 2018

ORDINANCE # 17-28 (o)

CITY OF BETHEL, ALASKA

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28 (o)

1 of 3

78



Decreases

50-10100 CASH IN COMBINED FUND (3,400)

Total Decreases (3,400)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO SOLID WASTE FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 3,400 

Total Decreases 0 

                                                                                                               TOTAL 3,400 

TOTAL CHANGE TO SOLID WASTE FUND BALANCE
Change to Solid Waste Fund Revenues 0 

Change to Solid Waste Fund Appropriations 3,400 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (3,400)

WATER & SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND 

CHANGE TO WATER & SEWER DEPARTMENTS

ACCOUNT # Increases

51-81-501 SALARIES - H WATER 7,700 

51-82-501 SALARIES - PIPED WATER 2,500 

51-83-501 SALARIES - B HEIGHTS - WTP 900 

51-84-501 SALARIES - CITY SUB - WTP 3,100 

51-85-501 SALARIES - H SEWER 12,100 

51-86-501 SALARIES - PIPED SEWER 2,500 

51-87-501 SALARIES - SWR LAGOON 600 

Total Increases 29,400 

Decreases

51-10100 CASH IN COMBINED FUND (29,400)

Total Decreases (29,400)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO WATER & SEWER FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 29,400 

Total Decreases 0 

                                                                                                               TOTAL 29,400 

TOTAL CHANGE TO WATER & SEWER FUND BALANCE
Change to Water & Sewer Fund Revenues 0 

Change to Water & Sewer Fund Appropriations 29,400 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (29,400)

PORT ENTERPRISE FUND 

CHANGE TO PORT DEPARTMENTS

ACCOUNT # Increases

52-50-501 SALARIES 1,100 

Total Increases 1,100 

Decreases

52-10100 CASH IN COMBINED FUND (1,100)

Total Decreases (1,100)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO PORT FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 1,100 

Total Decreases 0 

                                                                                                               TOTAL 1,100 

TOTAL CHANGE TO PORT FUND BALANCE
Change to Port Fund Revenues 0 

Change to Port Fund Appropriations 1,100 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (1,100)
                                                                                          ____________________________________

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28 (o)

2 of 3

79



 TRANSIT ENTERPRISE FUND 

CHANGE TO TRANSIT DEPARTMENT

ACCOUNT # Increases

56-50-501 SALARIES 3,100 

Total Increases 3,100 

Decreases

56-10100 CASH IN COMBINED FUND (3,100)

Total Decreases (3,100)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO TRANSIT FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 3,100 

Total Decreases 0 

                                                                                                               TOTAL 3,100 

TOTAL CHANGE TO TRANSIT FUND BALANCE
Change to Transit Fund Revenues 0 

Change to Transit Fund Appropriations 3,100 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (3,100)

V&E  FUND 

CHANGE TO V&E DEPARTMENT

ACCOUNT # Increases

57-50-501 SALARIES 5,100 

Total Increases 5,100 

Decreases

57-10100 CASH IN COMBINED FUND (5,100)

Total Decreases (5,100)

                                                                                                              TOTAL 0 

TOTAL CHANGE TO V&E FUND APPROPRIATIONS

Total Increases 5,100 

Total Decreases 0 

                                                                                                               TOTAL 5,100 

TOTAL CHANGE TO V&E FUND BALANCE
Change to V&E Fund Revenues 0 

Change to V&E Fund Appropriations 5,100 

Cumulative Increase/Decrease to Fund Balance (5,100)

Change to Revenues  Increase/(Decrease) 0

Change to Appropriations  Increase/(Decrease) 95,500

These changes INCREASE↑ the overall expenditures/expenses of the City by 95,500

Section 3.  Effective Date.  This ordinance becomes effective immediately upon adoption.

PASSED AND APPROVED THIS __ DAY OF May 2018 BY A VOTE OF __ IN FAVOR AND __ OPPOSED.

ATTEST:

_____________________________

Lori Strickler, City Clerk

TOTAL CHANGE TO OVERALL CITY BUDGET

                                                                                          ____________________________________

                                                                       Richard Robb, Mayor

         City of Bethel
Ordinance #17-28 (o)

3 of 3

80



18-38
May 22,2018

81



82



83



84



85



18-39
May 22, 2018

86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



1 

City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action Title:   Authorizing the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with the top scoring 
proposer for billing of ambulance and protective custody services and for collections of delinquent 
City accounts. 

Attachment(s):  Proposed Contract for Services 

Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 

Jim Chevigny, Finance Director 

Pete Williams, City Manager 

Jim Wyckoff, Purchasing Agent 

Patty Burley, City Attorney   PB Procurement process complied with BMC & AK 
law 

Amount of fiscal impact: Account information: 

No fiscal impact at this time. 

Funds in City Budget. 

Funds not in City Budget. 

Summary Statement: 
Billing: 
The City’s ambulance department recently lost the ambulance biller it had been utilizing for 
many, many years when the company decided to shut its doors.  This created an opportunity for 
the City to go out for procurement to obtain a new company.  In the process, the City decided it 
would be cost-effective to also add the protective custody bills to the RFP given the extensive 
volume of those calls and the amount of time they take to process. 

On February 2, 2018, a Request for Proposal was released.  The RFP was open until March 8, 
2018.  During the time it was open, only 1 addenda was issued.  No protests were received 
either during the time the RFP was open or after notice of intent to award was issued. 

A total of five (5) responses were received and scored by a team of 3 employees.  Scoring was 
overseen by the Purchasing Agent.  While the scoring team was provided an opportunity to 
review the proposed prices, the price sheets deliberately had no identifying information so that 
the scorers would not know whose price proposal they were reviewing.   

Shortly after the RFP for billing was released, a 2nd RFP was released for collections services.  As 
demonstrated in each annual budget, the City sits on several uncollected accounts.  These 

Action memorandum No. 

Date action introduced:   May 8, 2018 Introduced by: Peter Williams, City Manager 

Date action taken:  Approved  Denied 

Confirmed by: 

AM 18-40

106



2  

accounts appear to be growing in size annually and have grown to the point that a full-time 
dedicated person could easily be hired to work on nothing but collections.  The more 
economical process, however, is to outsource the process and avoid additional PERS and other 
administrative costs. 
 
On March 1, 2018, an RFP was released for collections services.  During the time it was open, 1 
addenda was issued.  No protests were received either during the time the RFP was open or 
after the notice of intent to award was issued.  
 
On the due date only 1 response was received.  No other responses ever followed.  The sole 
response was reviewed and found to be responsive and responsible.  Coincidentally, the 
respondent for the collections was the top scorer for the billing services. 
 
For efficiency, the two separately proposed contracts were merged into the one contract before 
the City Council.  
 
Because there was only 1 response for the collections, it was not scored.  Instead it was merely 
reviewed to ensure it qualified as responsive.  As for the billing proposals, the scores were as 
follows: 
 
Company A: Disqualified.  Failed to respond to ½ of the proposal. 
Company B:  286 
Company C:  289.5 
Company D:  295.5 (Proposed for Contract) 
Company E:   288.5 
 
The proposed contract is attached.   
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

107



Page 1 of 18 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
FOR 

BILLING and COLLECTION SERVICES 
 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this _______day of May 2018, by and between the 

CITY OF BETHEL, a municipal corporation, (hereinafter referred to as CITY),  and Life Line Billing 

Systems, LLC (d/b/a LifeQuest Services) (For hereinafter “Service Provider”). 

Section 01 Scope of Services 

Service Provider hereby agrees to provide the services and/or materials under this Agreement 

pursuant to the provisions and specifications identified within a Request for Proposals for 

Ambulance and Protective Custody Billing and a Request for Proposal for Collection Services 

(hereinafter referred to as the “RFPs”) and the corresponding Responses from Service Provider, 

all of which are attached hereto and incorporated herein by reference as Attachments “B” 

(Request for Proposal) and Attachment “C” (Response to RFP).  The specific Scope of Work shall 

be outlined in Attachment “A”.  In the event of any conflict with the terms, conditions, or 

provisions of the Scope of Work defined in Attachment “A”, the parties shall look to the 

Requests for Proposal and the Responses in that order for guidance. 

A. Billing Services. 
Service Provider will process all required billings for the City’s ambulance and protective 
custody services as outlined in Attachment A-1. 

B. Collections Services. 
Service Provider will process all of the City’s delinquent accounts that have been referred 
for collections as outlined in Attachment A-2. 

 
Section 02 Personnel & Location of Services 

Personnel shall be limited to employees of Life Line Billing Systems, LLC (d/b/a LifeQuest 

Services).   

Services shall be performed by Service Provider at their United States location.  At no time shall 

any of the services performed by Service Provider or any of their subsidiaries or consultants be 

performed outside of the United States.   

Section 03 Term of Agreement 

The Term of this Agreement shall initially be for approximately three (3) years from June 1, 

2018 to June 30, 2021 unless terminated sooner as provided herein.  Service Provider has the 

option to renew this Agreement for an additional two (2) year term by providing notice to CITY 

at least One Hundred Twenty (120) days prior to the expiration of this Agreement. 

108



Page 2 of 18 
 

Section 04 Standard of Performance 

Service Provider shall perform its services consistent with generally accepted standards 

presently maintained by other practicing firms engaged in the same type of work.  Upon written 

notice to Service Provider and by mutual agreement of the parties, Service Provider will correct 

those services not meeting such a standard without additional compensation.   

Section 05 Compensation 

A. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the CITY shall pay Service Provider as follows: 

1. Billing Services.  
a. Ambulance Billing Services.  Service Provider will be paid a contingency fee of 

eleven (11%) percent of the net dollars collected.   
 

b. Protective Custody Billing Services.  Service Provider will be paid a contingency fee 
of eight (8%) percent of the net dollars collected.   

 
2. Collection Services.  Service Provider will be paid a contingency fee of seventeen (17%) 

percent of the net dollars collected on behalf of the City of Bethel. 
 
The contingency fees are based on net dollars collected and include all costs 
associated with providing services including, but not limited to, billing, reporting, 
consulting, in-person training, customer service, personnel,  statements, envelopes, 
claim forms, long distance calls and postage.   

B. CITY agrees to pay Service Provider at the rates specified above for Services performed to the 
satisfaction of the City, in accordance with this Agreement, and Attachment A.   

C. Service Provider shall submit an itemized invoice to CITY by the end of the month during 
which Services are performed.  Payment will be processed promptly upon receipt of invoice 
and in no event will payment be issued more than thirty (30) days from receipt of invoice.   

D. All invoices must be submitted in duplicate and addressed as follows: 

Jim Chevigny, Finance Director 
City of Bethel Finance Department 
PO Box 1388 
Bethel AK 99559-1388 
 

E. Except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, the CITY shall not provide any additional 
compensation, payment, service or other thing of value to Service Provider in connection with 
performance of Agreed upon duties.  The parties understand and agree that, except as 
otherwise provided in this section, administrative overhead and other indirect or direct costs 

109



Page 3 of 18 
 

Service Provider may incur in the performance of its obligations under this Agreement have 
already been included in computation of Service Provider’s fee and may not be charged to 
the CITY.   

Section 06 Independent Contractor 
 
CITY and Service Provider agree that Service Provider is an independent contractor and shall 

not represent itself as an agent or employee of CITY for any purpose in the performance of 

Service Provider’s duties under this Agreement.  Accordingly, Service Provider shall be 

responsible for payment of all federal, state and local taxes as well as business license fees 

arising out of Service Provider’s activities in accordance with this Agreement.  For purposes of 

this Agreement, taxes shall include, but not be limited to, Federal and State Income, Social 

Security and Unemployment Insurance taxes. 

Section 07 Health and Safety 
 
Service Provider shall be responsible for initiating, maintaining and supervising all safety 
precautions and programs required by OSHA and all other regulatory agencies while providing 
Services under this Agreement. 
 
Section 08 Non-Discrimination 
 
Service Provider will not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment 
because of race, color, religion, sex, sexual identity, sexual orientation, national origin, 
handicap, pregnancy, parenthood, age, marital status, status as a disabled veteran, or veteran 
of the Vietnam War era.  Service Provider shall take affirmative action to ensure that applicants 
are employed and that employees are treated during employment without regard to their race, 
color, religion, sex, sexual identity, sexual orientation, national origin, handicap, pregnancy, 
parenthood, age, marital status, status as a disabled veteran, or veteran of the Vietnam War 
era.  Such actions shall include, but not be limited to the following:  employment, upgrading, 
demotions, or transfers; recruitment or recruitment advertising; layoffs or terminations; rates 
of pay or other forms of compensation; selection for training, including apprenticeship; and 
participation in recreational and educational activities. 
 
Section 09 Performance and Default 
 
If, through any cause, Service Provider shall fail to fulfill in a timely and proper manner the 
obligations under this Agreement, then CITY shall thereafter have the right to immediately  
terminate this Agreement by giving written notice to Service Provider and specifying the 
effective date thereof.  In that event, all finished or unfinished deliverable items under this 
Agreement prepared by Service Provider shall, at the option of the CITY, become its property, 
and Service Provider shall be entitled to receive just and equitable compensation for any 
satisfactory work completed on such materials.  In such event, Service Provider shall not be 

110



Page 4 of 18 
 

relieved of liability to the CITY for damages sustained by the CITY by virtue of any breach of this 
Agreement, and the CITY may withhold any payment due Service Provider for the purpose of 
setoff until such time as the exact amount of damages due the CITY from such breach can be 
determined. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Service Provider shall be entitled to not less than 
thirty (30) days written notice to cure any reasonably curable condition alleged to constitute 
a default by CITY before a breach of this Agreement shall be declared by CITY as a result 
thereof.   
 
In case of default by Service Provider, the city may procure the services from other sources and 
hold Service Provider responsible for any excess cost occasioned thereby.  In addition, in the 
event of default by Service Provider under this Agreement, or upon the Service Provider filing a 
petition for bankruptcy or the entering of a judgment of bankruptcy by or against the Service 
Provider, the CITY may immediately cease doing business with Service Provider, immediately 
terminate for cause all existing contracts the CITY has with Service Provider, and de-bar Service 
Provider from doing future business with the CITY. 
 
Section 10 Termination for Convenience 
 
In addition to terminations for cause as provided for in this Agreement, CITY may unilaterally 
terminate this Agreement at any time without cause by providing one hundred twenty (120) 
calendar days written notice from CITY to Service Provider.  In that event, all finished or 
unfinished deliverable items prepared by Service Provider under this Agreement shall, at the 
option of the CITY, become its property.  If the Agreement is terminated by the CITY as 
provided herein, Service Provider shall be paid for services satisfactorily completed, less 
payment or compensation previously made.  Termination of this Agreement, either with or 
without cause, shall not form the basis for loss of anticipated profits by either party.   
 
Section 11 Termination for Non-Availability of Government Funds 
 
If the City Council fails to appropriate sufficient funds or to authorize the expenditure of 
sufficient funds to continue service under this Agreement, CITY may submit a written notice to 
Service Provider  terminating this Agreement.  Such notice shall be in writing and shall be not 
less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of termination.  The notice shall include a 
written statement documenting the reason for termination and an official document certifying 
the non-availability of funds (e.g., city council action; official budget or other official 
government document).  CITY shall be liable to Service Provider for all charges and costs 
incurred for products and/or services prior to the effective date of the termination.   
  
Section 12 Causes Beyond Control 
 
In the event Service Provider is prevented by a cause or causes beyond control of Service 
Provider from performing any obligation of this Agreement, non-performance resulting from 
such cause or causes shall not be deemed to be a breach of this Agreement which will render 
Service Provider liable for damages or give rights to the cancellation of the Agreement for 

111



Page 5 of 18 
 

cause.  However, if and when such cause or causes cease to prevent performance, Service 
Provider shall exercise all reasonable diligence to resume and complete performance of the 
obligation with the least possible delay. The phrase "cause or causes beyond control," as used 
in this section, means any one or more of the following causes which are not attributable to the 
fault or negligence of Service Provider and which prevent the performance of Service Provider: 
fire, explosions, acts of God, war, orders or law of duly constituted public authorities, and other 
major uncontrollable and unavoidable events, all of the foregoing which must actually prevent 
Service Provider from performing the terms of the Agreement as set forth herein.  Events which 
are peculiar to Service Provider and would not prevent another company from performing, 
including, but not limited to financial difficulties, are not causes beyond the control of Service 
Provider.  The CITY will determine whether the event preventing Service Provider from 
performing is a cause beyond Service Provider’s control. 
 
Section 13 Non-Assignment 
 
No assignment of Service Provider’s obligations, nor the Service Provider’s right to receive 
payment hereunder shall be permitted unless otherwise agreed to in writing by CITY. 
 

a. ASSIGNMENT OF PAYABLES:  Upon written request approved by CITY, Service Provider 
may: 
(i) Forward Service Provider’s payment check(s) directly to any person/entity designated  

by Service Provider, or 
(ii) Include any person/entity designated by Service Provider as a joint payee on Service 

Provider’s check(s). 
 

b. KEY PERSONNEL: Service Provider shall not substitute key personnel assigned to the 
performance of this Agreement without prior written approval by CITY.  The individuals 
designated as key personnel for purposes of this Agreement are those specified in Service 
Provider’s response to the CITY’s RFP.   
 

c. SUBCONTRACTING:  Work proposed to be performed under this contract by Service 
Provider or its employees shall not be subcontracted without prior written approval by 
CITY.  Acceptance of Service Provider’s RFP proposal included any subcontractors 
specified therein. 
 

d. OUTSOURCING:  Any firm or subcontractor performing call or contact center services to 
CITY shall disclose to inbound callers the location from which the caller contact center 
services are being provided.  If, after award of this Agreement, the Service Provider wishes 
to outsource any portion of the Services to a location outside of the United States, prior 
written approval must be obtained from the CITY.  Service Provider must give notice to 
the CITY of any relocation of the Service Provider, or of its employees, subcontractors, or 
other persons performing Services for Service Provider under this Agreement for CITY’s 
benefit if located outside of the United States.   

 

112



Page 6 of 18 
 

Section 14 Confidentiality 
 
All data and information, both written and verbal, furnished to Service Provider by CITY shall be 
regarded as confidential, shall remain the sole property of the CITY and shall be held in 
confidence and safekeeping by Service Provider for the sole use of the parties and Service 
Provider under the terms of this Agreement.  Service Provider agrees that its officers, 
employees, and agents will not disclose to any person, firm or entity other than CITY or CITY’s 
designated legal counsel, accountants or practice management consultants any information 
about CITY, its practice or billing, or any of the patients of CITY.  Service Provider agrees to carry 
out its obligations to CITY in compliance with the privacy and security regulations pursuant to 
Public Law 104-191 of August 21, 1996, known as the Health Insurance Portability and 
Accountability Act of 1996, (“HIPPA”). 

Section 15 Audit Rights 
 
For all services being provided hereunder, CITY shall have the right to inspect, examine and 
make copies of any and all books, accounts and invoices, records and other writing relating to 
the performance of the Services.  Audits shall take place at times and locations mutually agreed 
upon by both parties.  Notwithstanding the foregoing, Service Provider must make the 
materials to be audited available within one (1) week of the request for them. 
 
Section 16 City not Responsible for Expenses 
 
CITY shall not be liable to Service Provider for any expenses paid or incurred by Service 
Provider, unless otherwise agreed to in writing. 
 
Section 17 Equipment 
 
Service Provider shall supply, at is sole expense, all equipment, tools, materials, and/or supplies 
required to provide the Services hereunder, unless otherwise agreed to in writing.  All 
equipment provided by Service Provider is understood to be owned by Service Provider and 
shall at all times remain the sole and exclusive property of the Service Provider.   
  
Section 18 Modifications 
 
The parties may mutually agree to modify the terms of the Agreement.  Modifications to the 
Agreement shall be incorporated into the Agreement by written amendments.  
   
Section 19 Insurance 
 
The Service Provider shall purchase from and maintain in a company or companies lawfully 
authorized to do business in the State of Alaska as admitted insurers or surplus lines insurers 
approved by City, such insurance as will protect the Service Provider from claims set forth 
below and others, which may arise out of or as a result from the Service Provider’s operations 

113



Page 7 of 18 
 

under this contract, whether such operations are by the Service Provider or by a sub-
contractors or by anyone directly or indirectly employed by any of them, or by anyone for 
whose acts any of them may be liable.  Restrictions, conditions or exclusions contained in the 
insurance policies shall not reduce the obligations of the Service Provider under this contract. 
 

a) Claims under worker’s compensation, employers liability, disability benefits, 
and other similar employee benefit acts which are applicable to the work to be 
performed under this contract. 

 
Claims for damages because of bodily injury, mental anguish, sickness, disease or death 
of any person other than the Respondent’s employees. 

 
Claims for damages insured by usual personal injury liability insurance coverage which 
are sustained (1) by a person as a result of an offense directly or indirectly related to the 
employment of such person by the Service Provider, or (2) by any other person or 
entity. 
 
Claims for damages, other than to the product supplied, or to the services performed,  
itself because of damage to or destruction of tangible property, including loss of use 
resulting therefrom. 
Claims for damages because of bodily injury, including death of a person, or damage to 
property arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use  of any motor vehicle. 

  
Claims involving the Service Provider’s contractual obligations and assumption of 
liability under this Agreement. 

 
Liability insurance shall include at a minimum, all major divisions of coverage and be on 
a commercial general liability form including: 

 
  Premises/Operations Liability 
  Products/Completed Operations Liability 
  Personal/Advertising Injury Liability 
  Fire Damage Liability 
  Medical Payments  
 

b) The insurance required in this section, including subsection (a), shall be written for not 
less than the limits listed in (c) below or those limits required by law,  whichever limit is 
higher.  Insurance, whether written on an occurrence, or a claims-made basis, shall be 
maintained without interruption from the date of commencement of the work to the 
date of final payment, or termination of any insurance required to be maintained after 
final payment. 

 
c) The insurance required in this section including subsection (a) shall be written for not 

 less than the following limits: 

114



Page 8 of 18 
 

1. Worker’s Compensation Insurance:    
  Statutory Requirements of the State of Alaska, and  

Employer Liability Insurance limits of:       
  $500,000.00 each accident. 
  $500,000.00 disease each employee. 
  $500,000.00 disease policy limit. 
 

2. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Form CG0001 04/13 or equivalent. 
  $1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Occurrence 
  $1,000,000.00 Personal/Advertising Injury Limit of Liability per Occurrence 
  $2,000,000.00 Annual General Aggregate Limit of Liability 

$2,000,000.00 Annual Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit of                                                                  
             Liability 

  $100,000.00 Fire Damage Limit of Liability Any One Fire 
  $5,000.00 Medical Payment Limit Any One Person 
 

3. Commercial Automobile Liability Insurance: Form CA0001 03/10 or equivalent. 
  $1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Accident 
  For all Owned, Hired, and Non-Owned Vehicles.  
  

4. Crime Insurance:  Form CR0021115 or equivalent.  
  $200,000.00 Limit for Employee Theft. 
  $200,000.00 Limit for Forgery or Alteration.  
  $200,000.00 Limit for Computer and Funds Transfer Fraud. 
 

5. Cyber Liability Insurance 
$1,000,000 Limit per occurrence 

$2,000,000 Annual Aggregate Limit 

 

6. Errors & Omissions Insurance 
$1,000,000 Limit per occurrence 

$2,000,000 Annual Aggregate Limit 

 

7. Excess Liability Insurance 
$3,000,000 minimum 

 
  City of Bethel shall be named as Loss Payable.   
 

d) Worker’s compensation insurance and employers liability insurance shall be in 
compliance with the statutory requirements of the State of Alaska, and any other 
statutory obligation, whether federal or state pertaining to compensation of injured 
employees.  The worker’s compensation insurance and employers liability insurance 
shall contain a waiver of subrogation provision in favor of CITY. 

115



Page 9 of 18 
 

 
e) The commercial general liability insurance shall name CITY as an additional insured as 

respects this contract. 
 

f) Service Provider’s required insurance is subject to review and adjustment by CITY, who 
may require reasonable changes in the amounts and types of insurance based upon 
changes of risk.  Service Provider shall be provided a written explanation for any such 
changes. 

 
g) Certificates of insurance acceptable to CITY shall be filed with CITY prior to the  

commencement of the beginning of any services by the Service Provider.  These 
certificates and the insurance policies shall contain a provision that the policy shall not 
be canceled until prior written notice has been sent to the insured Service Provider 

 
If any of the insurance policies required above are canceled for any reason, the Service 
Provider shall provide immediate notice to CITY of the cancellation and either provide:  
evidence of replacement or notice of reinstatement. Immediately in this section means 
within five (5) business days of receipt of cancellation by the Service Provider.   

 
 Failure to maintain these insurance provisions required of the Service Provider or failure 

to immediately notify CITY of cancellation shall be considered a material breach of this 
contract by the Service Provider, subject to termination provisions of this contract.   

 
Section 20 Publication, Reproduction and Use of Materials 
 
No material produced, in whole or in part, under this Agreement shall be subject to copyright in 
the United States or in any other country.  CITY shall have unrestricted authority to publish, 
disclose, distribute and otherwise use, in whole or in part, any reports, data or other materials 
prepared under this Agreement. 
 
Section 21 Jurisdiction; Choice of Law 
 
This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of the State of Alaska. 
 
Section 22 Time Bar to Legal Action 
 
All legal actions by either party against the other arising out of or in any way connected with 
the services to be performed hereunder shall be barred and under no circumstances shall any 
such claim be initiated by either party after three (3) years have passed from the earlier of the 
date of substantial completion of services or the date of termination of the Agreement.   
 
Section 23 Representation and Warranties by CITY. 
CITY represents and warrants to Service Provider and agrees to the following: 

 

116



Page 10 of 18 
 

1. CITY has the power and authority to place Accounts with Service Provider for Service 
Provider to provide services. 
 

2. Any amounts, fees, interest, or charges owing on the Accounts are authorized by law or 
the underling agreement creating the amount due. 
 

3. CITY shall provide Service Provider with accurate and timely consumer and Account 
Information necessary to provide services on CITY’S behalf, including, but not limited to, 
accurate balance information. 
 

4. CITY maintains in its possession all documentation sufficient to prove the accuracy of the 
information on any Account placed with Service Provider. 
 

5. City will not knowingly place accounts  with Service Provider that: (a) have been 
discharged in bankruptcy or included in a presently pending bankruptcy; (b) have been 
disputed, settled, or paid-in-full; (c) are  being represented or managed by a consumer 
attorney;  or (d) have  been the subject of any previous litigation. 
 

6. CITY shall promptly notify Service Provider of any and all notices received by CITY or CITY 
representatives from a Consumer with respect of an Account, or regarding 
CONSULTANT’s Services regarding any Account. 
 

7. City shall promptly notify Service Provider of City’s actual, constructive or reasonably 
conceived knowledge of any of the following events: (i) any customer of an Account files 
bankruptcy, is represented by an attorney or has submitted a dispute(s) regarding any 
Account placed with Service Provider, or is the subject of a complaint or a cease and desist 
notification by a debtor during the time in which Service Provider is providing Services; or 
(ii) CITY receives any direct or indirect payment on an Account or a returned check on any 
such payment during the time in which Service Provider is providing Services to CITY. 

 
Section 23 Non-Waiver 
 
No waiver of a breach of any covenant, term or condition of this Agreement shall not be a 
waiver of any subsequent breach of the same or any other covenant, term or condition or a 
waiver of the covenant, term or condition itself.   
 
Section 24 Defense and Indemnification  
 
Service Provider agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, to indemnify and hold CITY 
harmless from any damage, liability or cost (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of 
defense) to the extent caused by Service Provider’s negligent acts, errors, or omissions in the 
performance of professional services under this Agreement and those of its sub consultants, 
subcontractors, or anyone for whom Service Provider may be legally liable.  Under no 

117



Page 11 of 18 
 

circumstance is the CITY obligated to indemnify Service Provider for Service Provider’s own 
negligence. 
 
Section 24 (a) Service Provider Indemnification 
 
 CITY agrees, to the fullest extent permitted by law, and conditioned upon the availability of a 
valid existing appropriation to cover the obligation, to indemnify and hold Service Provider 
harmless from any damage, liability or cost (including reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of 
defense) to the extent caused by CITY’s negligent acts, errors, or omissions in the performance 
of professional services under this Agreement and those of its sub consultants, subcontractors, 
or anyone for whom CITY may be legally liable.  Under no circumstance is the Service Provider 
obligated to indemnify CITY for CITY’s own negligence.  The parties to this Agreement recognize 
and agree that the CITY has no current appropriation available to it to indemnify under the 
provisions of this Agreement and that the enactment of an appropriation in the future to 
finance a payment under these provisions remains in the sole discretion of the City Council.  
The City Council’s failure to make the appropriation creates no further obligation or liability of 
the CITY.  However, during all times pertinent to this Agreement, the CITY will maintain 
sufficient insurance coverage to protect against any damage to or suits arising out of CITY’s 
actions (or inactions) under this Agreement. 
 
Section 25 Dispute Resolution    
 
In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise between the parties under this Agreement, the 
CITY and Service Provider agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating to this 
Agreement shall be submitted first to nonbinding mediation.   
 
Section 26 Understanding 
 
Service Provider acknowledges that it has read and understands the terms of this Agreement, 
has had the opportunity to review the same with counsel of their choice, and is executing this 
Agreement of their own free will. 
 
Section 27 Severability 
 
If any section or clause of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent jurisdiction, or 
is otherwise invalid under the law, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain in full force 
and effect.  
 
Section 28 Notices 
 
Any notice required pertaining to the subject matter of the Agreement shall be personally 

delivered or mailed by prepaid first-class, registered or certified mail to the following address: 

 

118



Page 12 of 18 
 

CITY:   City of Bethel 
   Attn: Legal Department 
   PO Box 1388 
   Bethel AK 99559 
 

LIFE LINE BILLING SYSTEMS, LLC:  
   Attn:  Kevin Beck 
   N2930 State Road 22 
   Wautoma WI 54982 

 
Section 29 Records Retention 
 
 Service Provider shall retain copies of all records submitted by or on behalf of the CITY, 
including correspondence, call logs, electronic transfers, etc., for a minimum of three (3) years 
after the close of the City’s financial audit (not Service Provider’s) for the year in which the file 
was closed. 
 
Section 30 Audit Rights 

The City reserves the right at its own expense to conduct an annual audit relating to the 
actions performed on behalf of the City by an external expert and/or industry professional at 
any time for any reason; provided, however, the City shall not seek or use the services of a 
competitor of Service Provider.  Service Provider agrees to cooperate by providing, upon 
reasonable notice which shall be not less than thirty (30) calendar days prior to the date of 
audit, and at no additional cost, such books, papers, statements, memoranda, records, 
accounts and other written material as may be set out in the request by the finance director or 
City Manager.  In the case of an audit, the City shall be responsible for selecting and scheduling 
the audit.   
 
 
CITY OF BETHEL     LIFE LINE BILLING SYSTEMS, LLC. 

 

             
By: Peter A. Williams     By:  Michael J. Finn   
Title:  City Manager     Title:  Chief Executive Officer  

Dated:        Dated:     

Attachments 
A-1 Scope of Work – Billing Services 
A-2 Scope of Work – Collection Services 
B-1 Request for Proposal for Billing Services 

119



Page 13 of 18 
 

B-2 Proposal from LifeQuest Services 
B-3 Request for Proposal for Collection Services 
B-4 Proposal from LifeQuest Services 

120



Page 14 of 18 
 

ATTACHMENT A-1 
SCOPE OF WORK 

BILLING SERVICES: AMBULANCE AND PROTECTIVE CUSTODY 

Gathering of Billing Information:  
Ambulance – Service Provider will interface with Trend Elite PCR at least weekly via secure 
connection. 
 
Protective Custody.  City will forward protective custody information at least twice per month to 
Service Provider in an electronic format. 
 
Information received from City accounts will be data and insurance scrubbed, reviewed for 
proper signatures, and reviewed for any missing and/or necessary information such as insurance 
information. 
 
Coding: 
Upon receipt and verification, Service Provider’s certified ambulance coders will code ambulance 
and protective custody services in accordance with condition code, medical necessity and level 
of service for each transport.  Service Provider will correct any errors promptly and will re-code 
whenever necessary to comply with insurance company requirements.   
 
Submission of Claims: 
Once property coded, claims will be submitted to the proper payor.  As appropriate, these claims 
will be accompanied by statements and invoices to the patient throughout the life of the account.  
Service Provider will work with any co-insurance or other payor to ensure that all claims are 
properly processed thus avoiding delay in payment. 
 
Billing: 
Service Provider will provide patients with a copy of each bill as well as any information received 
from the payor which may affect the claim.  At a minimum, patient’s will be billed three (3) times 
before an account can be deemed uncollectable.   
 
Payment Processing:  
Service Provider will process all payments received from insurers and patients in a timely manner.   
 
Customer Service/Patient Support: 
For patients who need or desire to pay the claim directly, Service Provider will provide a Patient 
Portal which will accept at least three (3) different payment methods.  Patients will be provided 
access to a toll-free telephone number as well as the ability to contact Service Provider 
electronically.   
 
Submission of Monies to City: 
Service Provider will submit all monies collected on behalf of City at least monthly to the account 
designated by City at Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.  Submission of monies will be accompanied by a 

121



Page 15 of 18 
 

statement detailing where and who the monies were obtained from (see reporting 
requirements).  Contingency fees will not be withheld from the deposit to City but will instead be 
billed separately to City. 
 
Refund/Overpayments: 
In the event a patient is owed a refund due to an overpayment or other adjustment, Service 
Provider shall provide all necessary records and communication required for the efficient and 
accurate refund process.  Refunds shall be issued within two (2) weeks of processing. 
 
Denial Resolution: 
Service Provider will review all payment denials and will address as many of the denials as 
reasonably possible.  When applicable, Service Provider will appeal the claim denial. 
 
Write-Offs/Account Closures: 
Service Provider will utilize its best judgment when determining if an account should be a write-
off.  Accounts determined to be a write-off will be returned to the City along with an explanation 
of Service Provider’s reason/rationale for the write-off determination.   
 
Record Keeping: 
Service Provider will keep timely and accurate records of all activities including, but not limited 
to, receipt of patient billing files, processing of patient billing files, submission of claims, payment 
processing and any issues that may occur in the interim.   
 
Reporting: 
Service Provider will provide City with a detailed report at least monthly.  Such reports will be 
provided no later than the fifth (5th) day following the end of the previous month.  The reports 
will include, at a minimum, the following information: 
 

1. All transport information received by Service Provider, including date of receipt; 
2. All transactions returned to the City or pending due to insufficient information received 

from the City; 
3. All transport information billed, including date of billing and whom billed;  
4. Aged accounts receivable sorted by category (Medicare, Medicaid, Private insurance, and 

private pay).  This report should show receivables at 30, 60, 90, 120 days... 
5. Report should show the last day of activity on each account and where next dollar 

payment is expected from; 
6. Detailed report of payments received, date received, method of payment, balance owed 

(if any) and date payment was transmitted to the City; 
7. Report of all refunds processed; 
8. Report of any accounts recommended for collections; 

 
Service Provider shall also provide a quarterly analysis regarding billing, any issues which may 
have arisen during the quarter, and ways the City can improve its billing methods. 
 

122



Page 16 of 18 
 

Training: 
Service Provider to provide training to City staff, at least annually, on documentation and 
methods for maximizing revenue and complying with all applicable laws and regulations. 
  

123



Page 17 of 18 
 

ATTACHMENT A-2 
SCOPE OF WORK 

COLLECTION SERVICES 
 

Receipt of Collection from City: 
Service Provider will be provided with accounts from City at least monthly.  Upon receipt, Service 
Provider shall acknowledge the transmission.  Within ten (10) calendar days of receipt of the 
account, Service Provider shall inform City if any additional information is needed in order to 
proceed with the collection process. 
 
Collections: 
Service Provider is to provide collection services on all viable accounts referred by City.  Collection 
services shall be initiated as promptly as possible after referral and should include, but not be 
limited to, recovery score modeling, skiptracing, telephone campaigns, collection letters, credit 
bureau reporting, PFD garnishments and/or litigation. 
 
Payment Processing:  
Service Provider will process all payments received from insurers and patients in a timely manner.   
 
Customer Service/ Support: 
Service Provider will provide customer service access to City customers regarding their past due 
accounts.  Customers will be provided at least three (3) different payment methods, including 
the ability to arrange installment payments, when deemed appropriate by Service Provider.    
Service Provider will maintain a toll-free number that can be used by City customers as well as an 
online portal.     
 
Submission of Monies to City: 
Service Provider will submit all monies collected on behalf of City at least monthly to the account 
designated by City at Wells Fargo Bank, N.A.  Submission of monies will be accompanied by a 
statement detailing where and who the monies were obtained from (see reporting 
requirements).  Contingency fees will not be withheld from the deposit to City but will instead be 
billed separately to City. 
 
Record Keeping: 
Service Provider will keep timely and accurate records of all activities including, but not limited 
to, collection files, collection attempts, collection results (or lack thereof), payments recovered 
and any issues that may arise.   
 
Reporting: 
Service Provider will provide City with a detailed report at least monthly.  Such reports will be 
provided no later than the fifth (5th) day following the end of the previous month.  The reports 
will include, at a minimum, the following information: 
 

124



Page 18 of 18 
 

1. A summary of all collections files received from the City by Service Provider the previous 
month; 

2. A summary of all collection files currently held by Service Provider for the City;  
3. All transactions returned to the City or pending due to insufficient information received 

from the City; 
4. A summary of progress or action on each collection file belonging to the City;  
5. Aged accounts receivable at 30, 60, 90, 120 days... 
6. Report showing the last day of activity on each account and where next dollar payment is 

expected from; 
7. Detailed report of payments received, date received, method of payment, balance owed 

(if any) and date payment was transmitted to the City; 
8. Report of any refunds processed; 
9. Report of any accounts recommended for write-off and reason for recommendation; 

 
Service Provider shall provide City with updated addresses for customers at least once per 
quarter.   
 
Training: 
Service Provider to provide training to City staff, at least annually, on documentation and 
methods for maximizing revenue and complying with all applicable laws and regulations. 
 
  

 

125



City of Bethel Action Memorandum 

Action memorandum No.  18-41 
Date action introduced: May 8, 2018 Introduced by:   Council Member Springer 
Date action taken: 

 
          Approved                                 Denied                                           

Confirmed by:  
 

AM No. 18-41  

Confirming the Council’s $5,000 financial allocation in the FY 2019 Budget for 4th of July 
stage performance payment.  

Route to:  Department/Individual: Initials: Remarks: 
 
 

City Manager    

 
Amount of fiscal impact: $5,000 in the next fiscal year budget 

 
The City Council recognizes the 4th of July Celebration is important to the community. 
Although the City does not have the resources to organize the entire event, the City 
Council confirms their contribution of $5,000 in the Fiscal Year 2019 budget specifically 
to pay for the production of on-stage performances.  
 
Direct Administration to draft and release a Request for Bid to hire an individual or 
company to produce a five-hour show for the 4th of July celebration at a fixed cost. The 
Request for Bid would require the contractor to ensure all the stage needs are met for 
the celebration to include but not be limited to audio equipment, master of ceremonies 
and the performers to fill the five-hour timeline. The performers would be identified in 
the Bid submission with the associate rate and timeframe for each performance. The 
paid performers and the producer of the show would be required to complete a liability 
waver and agreement in advance of the Celebration.  

126



  

AM NO. 18-42 1 

 

CITY OF BETHEL ACTION MEMORANDUM 
 

Action Memorandum No. 18-42 
Date Action Introduced: May 22, 2018 Introduced By: C. Manager Williams 
Date Action Taken: May 22, 2018  Approved       Denied 
Confirmed By:  

 
Authorize the City Manager to negotiate and execute a contract with Capital Industries, Inc., for 
the purchase of fifteen (15) dumpsters with lids.   
 

Route To: Department/Individual Initials Remarks 

 Purchasing Agent JW  

 City Manager PW  

 City Attorney   PB Procurement complied w/BMC 

 Affected Dept. Director   

 Procurement Facilitator   

 
Attachment(s): copy of RFB; contract 
 
 

Amount of Fiscal Impact  Account Information 

 No fiscal impact  

$30,000 Funds are Budgeted for  

 Funds are not budged for 
Budget modification required 

 

 
On April 10, 2018 a Request for Bids was released seeking the largest number of dumpsters 
w/lids as possible for the total purchase price of $30,000.  The purchase had to include delivery 
to Bethel. 
 
The bid was open until May 10.  During the bid opening, there were no addenda and no 
protests.   
 
On May 10, 2 responses were received.  The winner, Capital Industries, could provide 15 
dumpsters, with lids, at the purchase price.  The other bidder could only provide 8. 
 
 

127



Purchase-Sale Agreement 
For 

Six-Yard Steel Dumpsters 
 

This Purchase Agreement (this “Agreement”) is entered into this    day of May 2018 by 
and between the City of Bethel, a municipal corporation (hereinafter “Buyer”) and CAPITAL 
INDUSTRIES, INC. (hereinafter “Seller”).  Buyer and Seller may be referred to in this Agreement 
individually as a “Party” and/or collectively as the “Parties.” 
 
The Parties agree as follows: 
 
1. Sale of Dumpsters.  Seller agrees to sell and Buyer agrees to purchase the proper described 

below (the “Property”) 
 

Fifteen (15) Six-Yard Steel Dumpsters with Lids 
 

2. Purchase Price.  Buyer will pay Seller for the Property and for all obligations specified in this 
Agreement, if any, as the full and complete purchase price, the sum of Thirty Thousand Dollars 
($30,000) (the “Purchase Price”) 
 

3. Method of Payment.  Seller shall submit an itemized invoice to Buyer upon delivery of the 
Property to Bethel.  Payment will be processed by promptly by Buyer upon receipt of invoice 
and in no event will payment be issued more than thirty (30) calendar days from receipt of 
invoice (provided dumpsters have been delivered to Buyer). 

 
All invoices must be submitted in duplicate and addressed as follows: 
Public Works Director     City Manager 
City of Bethel Public Works    City of Bethel Administration 
PO Box 1388      PO Box 1388 
Bethel, AK 99559 -1388     Bethel, AK 99559-1388 
 
Except as provided in this Purchase-Sale Agreement, the Buyer shall not provide any 
additional compensation, payment, service or other thing of value to Seller in connection with 
performance of this Agreement.  The parties understand and agree that, except as otherwise 
provided in this Agreement, all costs, whether indirect or direct, incurred by Seller have been 
built into the Purchase Price. 
 

4. Taxes.  Seller shall be responsible for payment of all federal, state and local taxes incurred as 
a result of this Purchase-Sale Agreement.  
 

5. Delivery.  Buyer is entitled to take possession of the Property upon arrival in Bethel, Alaska 
via barge service.  Buyer shall not be responsible for taking delivery of property that has been 
delivered in a damaged condition.   

 
6. Insurance.  Seller shall provide proof of insurance (per a Certificate of Insurance) that Seller 

has and maintains, Commercial General Liability Insurance in the minimums set forth below: 

128



 
Commercial General Liability Insurance: Form CG0001 04/13 or equivalent. 
$1,000,000.00 Combined Single Limit of Liability per Occurrence 
$2,000,000.00 Annual General Aggregate Limit of Liability 
$2,000,000.00 Annual Products/Completed Operations Aggregate Limit of                                                                  

              Liability 
   
7. Seller’s Representations.  Seller represents and warrants that he/she has good and marketable 

title to the Property and full authority to sell the Property.  Seller also represents that the 
Property is sold free and clear of all liens, indebtedness, or liabilities.   

 
8. Governing Law.  This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the 

laws of the State of Alaska. 
 

9. Modification.  The Parties may mutually agree to modify the terms of this Agreement.  
Modifications to the Agreement shall be incorporated into the Agreement by written 
amendments. 

 
10. Disputes.  In an effort to resolve any conflicts that arise between the Parties under this 

Agreement, the Buyer and Seller agree that all disputes between them arising out of or relating 
to this Agreement shall be submitted first to nonbinding mediation. 

 
11. Severability.  If any section or clause of this Agreement is held invalid by a court of competent 

jurisdiction, or is otherwise invalid under the law, the remainder of this Agreement shall remain 
in full force and effect.  

 
12. Binding Effect.  This Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be binding upon Buyer 

and Seller and their respective successors and assigns. 
 

13. Headings.  The captions or headings in this Agreement are for convenience only and in no 
way define, limit, or describe the scope or intent of any provision of this Agreement.   

 
14. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement shall be the exclusive agreement between the Parties 

and supersedes any and all prior oral or written agreements or understandings between the 
Parties concerning the subject matter of this Agreement.   

 
15. Execution in Counterparts.  This Agreement may be executed in one or more counterparts, 

each of which shall be deemed an original and all of which together shall constitute one and 
the same document.  

 
 
 
 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK] 
 
 

129



16. Facsimile Signatures.  The delivery of signatures to this Agreement by facsimile transmission 
shall be binding as original signatures. 

 
CAPITAL INDUSTRIES, INC.    CITY OF BETHEL 
SELLER       BUYER 
 
 
              
By: Bryan Taylor      By: Peter A. Williams 
Executive Vice President     City Manager 
 

130



18-07
May 22, 2018

131



132



133



18-08
May 22, 2018

134



CITY OF BETHEL

REVENUES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEARNED PCNT

WATER 

51-42-410 TRUCKED WATER             1,845,745.93 1,845,745.93 2,497,704.00 651,958.07 73.9

51-42-412 METERED PIPED WATER COMM. 288,958.85 288,958.85 464,397.00 175,438.15 62.2

51-42-414 UNMETERED PIPED WTR RESID 540,434.27 540,434.27 827,502.00 287,067.73 65.3

51-42-416 CONTRACT WATER 8,717.00 8,717.00 7,800.00 (                917.00) 111.8

51-42-436 PUMPHOUSE WATER 10,231.75 10,231.75 10,500.00 268.25 97.5

TOTAL WATER  2,694,087.80 2,694,087.80 3,807,903.00 1,113,815.20 70.8

SEWER

51-43-411 TRUCKED SEWER (EVAC/HB)   1,025,947.46 1,025,947.46 1,540,427.00 514,479.54 66.6

51-43-412 METERED PIPED SEWER COMM. 520,057.54 520,057.54 812,104.00 292,046.46 64.0

51-43-414 UNMETERED PIPED SEWER RES 159,997.96 159,997.96 248,251.00 88,253.04 64.5

51-43-416 CONTRACT SEWER     16,552.23 16,552.23 25,000.00 8,447.77 66.2

TOTAL SEWER 1,722,555.19 1,722,555.19 2,625,782.00 903,226.81 65.6

MISCELLANEOUS

51-45-434 UTILITY PENALTY/INTEREST  30,847.90 30,847.90 22,000.00 (             8,847.90) 140.2

51-45-435 RECONNECT FEES            1,680.00 1,680.00 7,500.00 5,820.00 22.4

51-45-450 SENIOR DISCOUNT           (           29,767.56) (           29,767.56) (           38,000.00) (             8,232.44) (  78.3)

51-45-467 NSF CHECKS AND FEES .00 .00 300.00 300.00 .0

51-45-468 UTILITY INSPECTION FEES   1,321.16 1,321.16 1,500.00 178.84 88.1

51-45-471 WATER SUBSCRIPTION FEES .00 .00 165,500.00 165,500.00 .0

51-45-472 SEWER SUBSCRIPTION FEES .00 .00 176,958.00 176,958.00 .0

51-45-487 INVESTMENT INCOME .04 .04 .00 (                      .04) .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 4,081.54 4,081.54 335,758.00 331,676.46 1.2

MISCELLANEOUS

51-49-466 CASH OVER/SHORT           24.12 24.12 .00 (                  24.12) .0

51-49-487 INVESTMENT INCOME         .00 .00 5,254.00 5,254.00 .0

51-49-495 MISCELLANEOUS INCOME 1,428.56 1,428.56 .00 (             1,428.56) .0

TOTAL MISCELLANEOUS 1,452.68 1,452.68 5,254.00 3,801.32 27.7

TOTAL FUND REVENUE 4,422,177.21 4,422,177.21 6,774,697.00 2,352,519.79 65.3

135



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

UTILITY BILLING

51-80-501 SALARIES                  43,564.54 43,564.54 81,458.00 37,893.46 53.5

51-80-502 OVERTIME             658.61 658.61 2,000.00 1,341.39 32.9

51-80-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 4,108.00 4,108.00 .0

51-80-511 MEDICARE FICA             649.39 649.39 1,220.00 570.61 53.2

51-80-512 GROUP HEALTH INSURANCE    23,204.39 23,204.39 45,360.00 22,155.61 51.2

51-80-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,585.00 1,585.00 .0

51-80-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 498.00 498.00 1,018.00 520.00 48.9

51-80-518 PERS 9,527.51 9,527.51 18,515.00 8,987.49 51.5

51-80-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           751.15 751.15 7,980.00 7,228.85 9.4

51-80-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 3,500.00 3,500.00 .0

51-80-561 SUPPLIES 759.00 759.00 6,000.00 5,241.00 12.7

51-80-649 ONLINE BILL PAY 1,810.40 1,810.40 3,000.00 1,189.60 60.4

51-80-721 INSURANCE                 376.00 376.00 1,000.00 624.00 37.6

51-80-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-80-733 POSTAGE                   2,500.00 2,500.00 6,000.00 3,500.00 41.7

51-80-736 BANK CHARGES              26,260.13 26,260.13 36,500.00 10,239.87 72.0

51-80-799 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSES    .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-80-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 9,755.16 9,755.16 16,566.00 6,810.84 58.9

51-80-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 15,953.00 15,953.00 29,287.00 13,334.00 54.5

TOTAL UTILITY BILLING 136,267.28 136,267.28 266,597.00 130,329.72 51.1

136



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

HAULED WATER

51-81-501 SALARIES                  250,798.61 250,798.61 366,344.00 115,545.39 68.5

51-81-502 OVERTIME                  81,092.42 81,092.42 120,000.00 38,907.58 67.6

51-81-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 20,495.00 20,495.00 .0

51-81-511 MEDICARE                  4,945.21 4,945.21 7,052.00 2,106.79 70.1

51-81-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   124,190.30 124,190.30 224,856.00 100,665.70 55.2

51-81-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              5,662.30 5,662.30 7,925.00 2,262.70 71.5

51-81-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 13,624.00 13,624.00 14,359.00 735.00 94.9

51-81-518 PERS 70,208.74 70,208.74 106,996.00 36,787.26 65.6

51-81-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           22,335.62 22,335.62 39,558.00 17,222.38 56.5

51-81-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           1,803.51 1,803.51 4,000.00 2,196.49 45.1

51-81-561 SUPPLIES                  6,184.13 6,184.13 9,525.00 3,340.87 64.9

51-81-563 WEARING APPAREL           730.40 730.40 8,000.00 7,269.60 9.1

51-81-600 TIRES                    25,045.36 25,045.36 25,045.36 .00 100.0

51-81-601 VEHICLE MT. (PARTS & TOOLS) 20.00 20.00 5,000.00 4,980.00 .4

51-81-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       65,360.18 65,360.18 110,000.00 44,639.82 59.4

51-81-621 ELECTRICITY               4,503.80 4,503.80 10,000.00 5,496.20 45.0

51-81-622 TELEPHONE 178.27 178.27 600.00 421.73 29.7

51-81-623 HEATING FUEL              11,440.62 11,440.62 26,507.67 15,067.05 43.2

51-81-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 5,514.44 5,514.44 8,200.00 2,685.56 67.3

51-81-650 LAB TESTS 600.00 600.00 2,000.00 1,400.00 30.0

51-81-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR 189,551.40 189,551.40 303,823.64 114,272.24 62.4

51-81-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  3,492.33 3,492.33 3,492.33 .00 100.0

51-81-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           868.13 868.13 2,000.00 1,131.87 43.4

51-81-721 INSURANCE                 36,400.56 36,400.56 21,000.00 (           15,400.56) 173.3

51-81-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER (           14,200.00) (           14,200.00) 10,000.00 24,200.00 (142.0)

51-81-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 9,000.00 9,000.00 .0

51-81-799 MISCELLANEOUS             545.55 545.55 1,000.00 454.45 54.6

51-81-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 8,894.40 8,894.40 15,359.00 6,464.60 57.9

51-81-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 114,631.00 114,631.00 162,827.00 48,196.00 70.4

TOTAL HAULED WATER 1,034,421.28 1,034,421.28 1,644,965.00 610,543.72 62.9

137



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

PIPED WATER

51-82-501 SALARIES                  75,598.57 75,598.57 133,030.00 57,431.43 56.8

51-82-502 OVERTIME                  21,564.36 21,564.36 45,000.00 23,435.64 47.9

51-82-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 2,867.89 2,867.89 6,819.00 3,951.11 42.1

51-82-511 MEDICARE                  1,473.87 1,473.87 2,581.00 1,107.13 57.1

51-82-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   40,470.18 40,470.18 55,728.00 15,257.82 72.6

51-82-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 3,970.00 3,970.00 .0

51-82-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 5,256.00 5,256.00 .0

51-82-518 PERS 21,090.81 21,090.81 39,167.00 18,076.19 53.9

51-82-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           3,851.32 3,851.32 9,804.00 5,952.68 39.3

51-82-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

51-82-561 SUPPLIES                  3,428.40 3,428.40 4,525.00 1,096.60 75.8

51-82-563 WEARING APPAREL           664.45 664.45 2,000.00 1,335.55 33.2

51-82-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         1,709.44 1,709.44 5,000.00 3,290.56 34.2

51-82-601 VEHICLE MT. (PARTS & TOOLS) 232.78 232.78 .00 (                232.78) .0

51-82-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       5,585.31 5,585.31 20,000.00 14,414.69 27.9

51-82-621 ELECTRICITY-UTIL MT SHOP  2,890.87 2,890.87 7,500.00 4,609.13 38.5

51-82-622 TELEPHONE                 870.73 870.73 2,750.00 1,879.27 31.7

51-82-623 HEATING FUEL              14,477.66 14,477.66 20,000.00 5,522.34 72.4

51-82-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB    332.00 332.00 600.00 268.00 55.3

51-82-627 STAFF CELLULAR PHONES 182.62 182.62 .00 (                182.62) .0

51-82-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES .00 .00 3,000.00 3,000.00 .0

51-82-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      2,105.61 2,105.61 3,037.00 931.39 69.3

51-82-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  35.00 35.00 2,500.00 2,465.00 1.4

51-82-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           1,350.15 1,350.15 3,000.00 1,649.85 45.0

51-82-721 INSURANCE                 2,688.00 2,688.00 5,400.00 2,712.00 49.8

51-82-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-82-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-82-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-82-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 33,679.00 33,679.00 54,065.00 20,386.00 62.3

TOTAL PIPED WATER 237,149.02 237,149.02 448,232.00 211,082.98 52.9

138



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

BETHEL HTS WTR TREATMENT  

51-83-501 SALARIES                  70,894.90 70,894.90 94,389.00 23,494.10 75.1

51-83-502 OVERTIME                  23,081.67 23,081.67 31,000.00 7,918.33 74.5

51-83-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 11,239.00 11,239.00 .0

51-83-511 MEDICARE                  334.48 334.48 1,818.00 1,483.52 18.4

51-83-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   14,982.29 14,982.29 44,064.00 29,081.71 34.0

51-83-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,014.00 2,014.00 .0

51-83-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 3,668.00 3,668.00 .0

51-83-518 PERS 20,015.42 20,015.42 27,585.00 7,569.58 72.6

51-83-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           7,456.70 7,456.70 7,752.00 295.30 96.2

51-83-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

51-83-561 SUPPLIES                  48,587.81 48,587.81 50,000.00 1,412.19 97.2

51-83-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

51-83-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

51-83-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       111.07 111.07 .00 (                111.07) .0

51-83-621 ELECTRICITY (PUMPHOUSE)   53,091.33 53,091.33 70,000.00 16,908.67 75.8

51-83-622 TELEPHONE                 378.13 378.13 1,600.00 1,221.87 23.6

51-83-623 HEATING FUEL (PUMPHOUSE)  76,961.95 76,961.95 130,000.00 53,038.05 59.2

51-83-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES      .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-83-650 LAB TESTS                 5,570.43 5,570.43 5,000.00 (                570.43) 111.4

51-83-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,460.60 1,460.60 3,037.00 1,576.40 48.1

51-83-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  8,651.52 8,651.52 10,000.00 1,348.48 86.5

51-83-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           4,605.87 4,605.87 5,000.00 394.13 92.1

51-83-721 INSURANCE                 8,800.00 8,800.00 10,380.00 1,580.00 84.8

51-83-727 ADVERTISING               17.75 17.75 500.00 482.25 3.6

51-83-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 9,181.31 9,181.31 15,822.00 6,640.69 58.0

51-83-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 27,200.00 27,200.00 40,103.00 12,903.00 67.8

TOTAL BETHEL HTS WTR TREATMENT  381,383.23 381,383.23 573,271.00 191,887.77 66.5

139



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

CITY SUB WTR TREATMENT    

51-84-501 SALARIES                  70,226.23 70,226.23 96,735.00 26,508.77 72.6

51-84-502 OVERTIME                  18,799.80 18,799.80 29,000.00 10,200.20 64.8

51-84-508 LEAVE CASHOUT .00 .00 5,257.00 5,257.00 .0

51-84-511 MEDICARE                  1,314.62 1,314.62 18,232.00 16,917.38 7.2

51-84-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   36,469.43 36,469.43 44,064.00 7,594.57 82.8

51-84-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 2,014.00 2,014.00 .0

51-84-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 3,712.00 3,712.00 .0

51-84-518 PERS 18,605.93 18,605.93 27,662.00 9,056.07 67.3

51-84-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           2,711.47 2,711.47 7,752.00 5,040.53 35.0

51-84-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           1,000.00 1,000.00 3,000.00 2,000.00 33.3

51-84-561 SUPPLIES                  48,825.18 48,825.18 45,000.00 (             3,825.18) 108.5

51-84-563 WEARING APPAREL           .00 .00 800.00 800.00 .0

51-84-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-84-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       579.46 579.46 600.00 20.54 96.6

51-84-621 ELECTRICITY (CS WTF)      28,483.93 28,483.93 50,000.00 21,516.07 57.0

51-84-622 TELEPHONE                 23.03 23.03 1,800.00 1,776.97 1.3

51-84-623 HEATING FUEL(CS WTF)      58,303.22 58,303.22 80,000.00 21,696.78 72.9

51-84-649 ENGINEERING SERVICES      .00 .00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .0

51-84-650 LAB TESTS                 5,610.44 5,610.44 7,500.00 1,889.56 74.8

51-84-661 VEHICLE MAINT (ISF)  1,467.37 1,467.37 3,037.00 1,569.63 48.3

51-84-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  (             1,182.99) (             1,182.99) 15,000.00 16,182.99 (    7.9)

51-84-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           763.86 763.86 5,000.00 4,236.14 15.3

51-84-721 INSURANCE                 5,488.00 5,488.00 5,700.00 212.00 96.3

51-84-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-84-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 10,042.06 10,042.06 17,181.00 7,138.94 58.5

51-84-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 29,786.00 29,786.00 42,058.00 12,272.00 70.8

TOTAL CITY SUB WTR TREATMENT    337,317.04 337,317.04 515,104.00 177,786.96 65.5

140



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

HAULED SEWER

51-85-501 SALARIES 263,949.88 263,949.88 403,733.00 139,783.12 65.4

51-85-502 OVERTIME                  50,594.15 50,594.15 85,000.00 34,405.85 59.5

51-85-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 4,779.81 4,779.81 24,164.00 19,384.19 19.8

51-85-511 MEDICARE                  4,648.04 4,648.04 7,957.00 3,308.96 58.4

51-85-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   142,358.67 142,358.67 250,776.00 108,417.33 56.8

51-85-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              11,044.47 11,044.47 10,150.00 (                894.47) 108.8

51-85-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 13,512.00 13,512.00 16,201.00 2,689.00 83.4

51-85-518 PERS 67,754.35 67,754.35 120,721.00 52,966.65 56.1

51-85-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           11,198.61 11,198.61 44,118.00 32,919.39 25.4

51-85-561 SUPPLIES                  5,274.76 5,274.76 5,525.00 250.24 95.5

51-85-563 WEARING APPAREL           2,893.75 2,893.75 10,000.00 7,106.25 28.9

51-85-600 TIRES & WHEELS            12,000.00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .00 100.0

51-85-601 VEHICLE MT. (PARTS & TOOLS) 93.50 93.50 4,200.00 4,106.50 2.2

51-85-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       55,390.97 55,390.97 110,000.00 54,609.03 50.4

51-85-621 ELECTRICITY              4,503.80 4,503.80 8,000.00 3,496.20 56.3

51-85-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 350.00 350.00 .0

51-85-623 HEATING FUEL              10,154.04 10,154.04 30,000.00 19,845.96 33.9

51-85-626 WATER/SEWER/GARBAGE 5,514.44 5,514.44 6,500.00 985.56 84.8

51-85-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      225,769.73 225,769.73 313,869.00 88,099.27 71.9

51-85-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  (             3,491.00) (             3,491.00) .00 3,491.00 .0

51-85-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           482.10 482.10 2,000.00 1,517.90 24.1

51-85-721 INSURANCE                 29,584.87 29,584.87 17,000.00 (           12,584.87) 174.0

51-85-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER 339.43 339.43 10,000.00 9,660.57 3.4

51-85-738 BAD DEBT EXPENSE          .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

51-85-799 MISCELLANEOUS             35.00 35.00 1,000.00 965.00 3.5

51-85-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 286.92 286.92 615.00 328.08 46.7

51-85-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 111,998.00 111,998.00 183,502.00 71,504.00 61.0

TOTAL HAULED SEWER 1,030,670.29 1,030,670.29 1,689,381.00 658,710.71 61.0

141



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

PIPED SEWER

51-86-501 SALARIES                  72,067.67 72,067.67 143,080.00 71,012.33 50.4

51-86-502 OVERTIME                  21,583.71 21,583.71 35,000.00 13,416.29 61.7

51-86-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 2,867.88 2,867.88 6,819.00 3,951.12 42.1

51-86-511 MEDICARE                  1,422.95 1,422.95 2,582.00 1,159.05 55.1

51-86-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   39,236.06 39,236.06 57,024.00 17,787.94 68.8

51-86-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 3,971.00 3,971.00 .0

51-86-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 5,258.00 5,258.00 .0

51-86-518 PERS 20,318.27 20,318.27 39,178.00 18,859.73 51.9

51-86-519 UTILITY BENEFITS          7,317.42 7,317.42 9,478.00 2,160.58 77.2

51-86-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-86-561 SUPPLIES                  2,714.61 2,714.61 5,525.00 2,810.39 49.1

51-86-563 WEARING APPAREL           2,136.90 2,136.90 2,500.00 363.10 85.5

51-86-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 4,000.00 4,000.00 .0

51-86-602 GASOLINE/DIESEL/OIL       2,696.32 2,696.32 25,000.00 22,303.68 10.8

51-86-621 ELECTRICITY-LIFTST & BLDG 57,684.28 57,684.28 75,000.00 17,315.72 76.9

51-86-622 TELEPHONE                 .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-86-623 HEATING FUEL              14,962.35 14,962.35 35,000.00 20,037.65 42.8

51-86-626 WATER/SEWER/GARB 332.03 332.03 600.00 267.97 55.3

51-86-661 VEHICLE MAINT/REPAIR      1,825.92 1,825.92 3,037.00 1,211.08 60.1

51-86-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  2,135.98 2,135.98 20,000.00 17,864.02 10.7

51-86-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           44,515.98 44,515.98 125,000.00 80,484.02 35.6

51-86-721 INSURANCE                 2,656.00 2,656.00 4,500.00 1,844.00 59.0

51-86-722 INSURANCE-DED EXP & OTHER .00 .00 5,000.00 5,000.00 .0

51-86-736 LEASED PROPERTY-LIFT STATIONS 14,408.30 14,408.30 10,000.00 (             4,408.30) 144.1

51-86-996 ADMIN OVERHEAD-IT SVCS 286.92 286.92 615.00 328.08 46.7

51-86-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 33,128.00 33,128.00 54,251.00 21,123.00 61.1

TOTAL PIPED SEWER 344,297.55 344,297.55 676,418.00 332,120.45 50.9

142



CITY OF BETHEL

EXPENDITURES WITH COMPARISON TO BUDGET

FOR THE 8 MONTHS ENDING FEBRUARY 28, 2018

WATER & SEWER SERVICES

PERIOD ACTUAL YTD ACTUAL BUDGET UNEXPENDED PCNT

SEWER LAGOON

51-87-501 SALARIES                  19,241.35 19,241.35 54,327.00 35,085.65 35.4

51-87-502 OVERTIME                  4,822.46 4,822.46 9,000.00 4,177.54 53.6

51-87-508 LEAVE CASHOUT 637.31 637.31 1,616.00 978.69 39.4

51-87-511 MEDICARE                  363.74 363.74 918.00 554.26 39.6

51-87-512 EMPLOYEE GROUP BENEFITS   10,008.85 10,008.85 18,144.00 8,135.15 55.2

51-87-515 UNEMPLOYMENT              .00 .00 1,412.00 1,412.00 .0

51-87-516 WORKERS' COMPENSATION .00 .00 1,870.00 1,870.00 .0

51-87-518 PERS 5,230.60 5,230.60 13,932.00 8,701.40 37.5

51-87-519 UTILITY BENEFIT           778.23 778.23 3,016.00 2,237.77 25.8

51-87-545 TRAINING/TRAVEL           1,500.00 1,500.00 1,500.00 .00 100.0

51-87-561 SUPPLIES                  1,091.60 1,091.60 1,000.00 (                  91.60) 109.2

51-87-563 WEARING APPAREL           (                  45.80) (                  45.80) 1,200.00 1,245.80 (    3.8)

51-87-592 PLUMBING SUPPLIES         .00 .00 2,500.00 2,500.00 .0

51-87-602 GASOLINE                  6,334.21 6,334.21 15,000.00 8,665.79 42.2

51-87-650 LAB TESTS (SAMPLES)       .00 .00 12,000.00 12,000.00 .0

51-87-669 OTHER PURCHASED SERVICES  .00 .00 1,000.00 1,000.00 .0

51-87-683 MINOR EQUIPMENT           .00 .00 2,000.00 2,000.00 .0

51-87-721 INSURANCE                 176.00 176.00 800.00 624.00 22.0

51-87-727 ADVERTISING               .00 .00 500.00 500.00 .0

51-87-998 ADMINISTRATIVE OVERHEAD-GF 8,309.00 8,309.00 18,700.00 10,391.00 44.4

TOTAL SEWER LAGOON 58,447.55 58,447.55 160,435.00 101,987.45 36.4

TOTAL FUND EXPENDITURES 3,559,953.24 3,559,953.24 5,974,403.00 2,414,449.76 59.6

NET REVENUE OVER EXPENDITURES 862,223.97 862,223.97 800,294.00 (           61,929.97) 107.7

143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



 

Mayor’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

166



167



 

City Manager’s Report 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

168



 
CITY OF BETHEL 

P.O. Box 388 
Bethel, Alaska  99559 

Ph. (907) 543-4150 
Fax (907) 543-3817 

 

 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

DATE: 

 

May 2,to May 15, 2018 

 

  
TO: 

 
City Council 

 
FROM: 

 
Peter Williams, City Manager 

RE: Managers’ Report 
  

  

May 2- Out of the office 

 

May 3-Out of the office 4hrs.- Reviewed message from YKHC that part of Tracts D&H in 

the Kasayuli subdivision had been set aside as part of a mitigation plan for the PJCP 

Project. We will be working with YKHC Director of Construction to resolve this matter.- 

Discussed with DOWL Bethel’s Long Range Transportation Plan. DOWL has submitted a 

proposal to develop a plan. The funds for this plan have not been approved by the council.  

 

May 7- Discussed cleaning up around the dumpsters and removing vehicles with the PW 

and Port Directors.- Asked the Finance Director to complete the budget mods needed for 

the wage increases, utility benefits, and insurance deductibles.- Approved payments for 

five different projects.- Signed time sheets.-MOA With the State regarding the CEHH sent 

to the DOT. – Reviewed courthouse budget mods and FY! ( proposed budget. There was a 

new contract that we were made aware of with Otis Elevator from 2007.-Discussed ONC 

subdivision agreement with the City Planner and CA.- 

 

May 8- Discuss City properties with the Risk Manger.-Sent application in for the FY 

2019PILT.-Reviewed the Courthouse budget for FY-18&19-  

 

May 9- Discussions with HR and Finance Depts regarding employees raises, budget 

modifications.-Meet With the Fin. Director and discussed budget mods passed by the 

council-Risk Manager and myself discussed bid to clean the water sub-stations water 

tanks.- Instructed Property Maintenance to contact Otis Elevator and to resolve any issues 

and update on the work in Owl Park.-Discussed CSP Grant with FD and Grants Mgr.- 

Signed PO for equipment for a Sports Field ( our parks need names).-Signed Line item 

trans. For the landfill. 

 

169



May 10- Received a e-mmail from LKSD regarding the clean-up on Kilbuck stating that 

LKSD is working on a process to clean up the site.-Reviewed the pending items from the 

auditors.-Received a letter stating that Bethel’s Hazardous Mitagation Program had been 

acceppted by FEMA.-The State Comm Rev. Sharing program was increased by eight-

million dollars, the same as last year.-Meet with the dept. heads. 

 

May 11- Forward information to the Parks and Recs committee regarding Kasaulli sub-

division tracts.-Requested the PD and FD to produce stats for the Achohol Task Meeting.-

Reviewed RFP for fuel services for the COB.-Recived a letter from the DOT asking us to 

forward the information needed to provide utility crossings across CEHH. We would like 

to install as many as we can before the the CEHH is repaved.-Reviewed a citizen complaint 

 

 

 

 

 

 

PROJECTS 

 
Coin Collector- Signed Proposal from Tec-Pro to install a coin collector and have accepted 

their proposal to install a dollar bill collector for the amount of  $4,884.28. 

 

 
Institutional Corridor – Bethel Builders will resume work May 21. We received good 

news that the installation of the culvert crossing the high way will cost $70,000, down from 

$360,000. 

 

Jetty/Sewer Lagoon – Merril Bros. will resume dredging at the end of May. Our request 

for the unused funds to be applied to the purchase of five new sewer trucks is still pending. 

 

.The Avenues- Waiting for the PER/EA to be completed. There are five highway crossings 

associated with this project. The $70,000 price tag was good news Vs. the original estimate 

of $360,000.  

 

Bethel Heights Water and Sewer System ( A, B, C Loops )- We applied to VSW to 

update the PPER/EA’s. 

 

Ridgecrest Drive/LKSD- Reviewed final plans on May 14th. Waiting to see if the bid will 

go out as scheduled for this year. 

 

Tundra Ridge Road Realignment-  Waiting to see whom the DOT assigns this to in their 

Department. Construction probably won’t start before 2021. 

 

Landfill Closure-  Still pending 

 

PW Boilers- Design completed. RFP will be published. The originally estimate was for 

$220,000, it looks like the cost is around $359.000, but we will wait to see what the bids 

come in at before asking for any extra funds. 

 

170



Lift Stations- We are still working on the scope of work, Trying to fit the work into the 

budgeted amount of $900,000. 

 

Courthouse; Meeting scheduled with ACS, architects and the City Administration for May 

16th in Anchorage. 

 

 

 

Peter Williams 

City Manager 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

171



 

 
 

Management Team Reports 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

172



 

City Clerk’s Report  
 

 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

173



1 of 1 cityclerk@cityofbethel.net  

907-543-1384 

 

City of Bethel, Alaska 
City Clerk’s Office 
 

Council Meetings and Events 
June 12, 2018 Regular City Council Meeting 
 
Budget Meeting Dates:  May 10, 17, 24, 29, 31   June 5, 7 
 
Burial Permits May 1 to Current 
1 Burial Permits and or Reservations have been issued. 
 
Passport Applications May 1 to Current 
5 Passport Applications have been processed. 

 
Committee Training  
Now that the Public Works Committee is scheduled to meet in May, the City Clerk’s Office has requested a 
training for the Body in June.  
The City Clerk will be meeting with the Chair and Vice Chair of the Public Safety and Transportation 
Commission to establish additional rules of procedures and guidelines for the chair.  
Continue to work committee recorders and ex officio members to make sure they fully understand their 
role and how it relates to the Committee/Commissions.  
 
Alcohol Task Force 
Met on May 15, the next meeting will be June 19.  
 
Document Preparation/ Research 
Alcohol Task Force Meeting preparation.  
Public Awareness Posts related to alcohol. Three posts have been created with the first being published on 
Friday, May 11.   
Prepared an AM for Council to confirm the Council’s contribution of $5,000 in the FY 2019 budget for 
performances at the 4th of July event.  
Review legal files and boxes with City Attorney.  
Finalized an Ordinance placing the local option petition question on the October 2, Regular Election Ballot.  
Reviewed the information related to the Osage public nuisance property and working with the Planning 
Department on a future abatement hearing.   
Put all of the Action Memorandums on the website.  

 
The City Clerk attended the Election Policy Working Group meetings in Anchorage the week of  May 7th. The 
Working Group initially believed the blending of election processes to include mailed ballots with onsite and 
mail in options would be the best progression for the State. After this last meeting, based off of surveys 
conducted in Bethel, Dillingham and Kusilvak as well as the focus group conducted here in Bethel, the State 
will be reviewing their options further.  

 

174

mailto:cityclerk@cityofbethel.net


 

 
 

Executive Session   
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

175



 

Additional Information  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

176


	Approval of the Meeting Minutes
	Reports of Standing Committees
	Special Order of Business
	Unfinished Business
	New Business
	Mayor’s Report
	City Manager’s Report
	Management Team Reports
	City Clerk’s Report
	Executive Session



